San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800  info@sfcta.org  www.sfcta.org

Agenda

SAN FRANCISCO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Meeting Notice

DATE: Tuesday, October 7, 2025, 10:00 a.m.
LOCATION: Legislative Chamber, Room 250, City Hall
Watch SF Cable Channel 26 or 99
(depending on your provider)
Watch www.sfgovtv.org

PUBLIC COMMENT CALL-IN: 1-415-655-0001; Access Code: 2664 485 1332 # #

To make public comment on an item, when the item is called, dial *3' to be added to
the queue to speak. Do not press *3 again or you will be removed from the queue.
When the system says your line is unmuted, the live operator will advise that you will
be allowed 2 minutes to speak. When your 2 minutes are up, we will move on to the
next caller. Calls will be taken in the order in which they are received.

COMMISSIONERS: Melgar (Chair), Sauter (Vice Chair), Chan, Chen, Dorsey,
Engardio, Fielder, Mahmood, Mandelman, Sherrill, and Walton

CLERK: Amy Saeyang

Participation

Members of the public may attend the meeting to observe and provide public
comment at the physical meeting location listed above or may watch SF Cable
Channel 26 or 99 (depending on your provider) or may visit the SFGovTV website
(www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meeting or may watch them on demand.

Members of the public may comment on the meeting during public comment periods
in person or remotely. In-person public comment will be taken first; remote public
comment will be taken after.

Written public comment may be submitted prior to the meeting by emailing the Clerk
of the Transportation Authority at clerk@sfcta.org or sending written comments to
Clerk of the Transportation Authority, 1455 Market Street, 22nd Floor, San Francisco,
CA 94103. Written comments received by 5 p.m. on the day before the meeting will be
distributed to Board members before the meeting begins.

1. Roll Call
2. Approve the Minutes of the September 30, 2025 Meeting — ACTION* 5
3. Community Advisory Committee Report — INFORMATION*

Page 1 of 3



https://www.sfgovtv.org/

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Board Meeting Notice — Draft Agenda Page 2 of 3

4.

10.

Reappoint Austin Milford-Rosales and Najuawanda Daniels as the District 6 and District
10 Representatives, Respectively, to the Community Advisory Committee — ACTION* 19

State and Federal Legislation Update — INFORMATION* 29

Amend the Prop K Standard Grant Agreement for the Mission Bay School Access Plan
[NTIP Planning and Capital] (Plan) to Allow $30,000 in Funds Held in Reserve for
Implementation of Plan Recommendations to be Used for Additional Planning and
Outreach; Release $30,000 from the Reserve; and Appropriate $20,000 in Prop K Funds,
with conditions, for the Plan — ACTION* 33

Allocate $6,606,363 in Prop L Funds, with Conditions, and Allocate $1,100,000 in Prop
AA Funds, with Conditions, for Four Requests — ACTION* 53

Projects: Prop L: SFMTA: Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement FY25-26 ($1,000,000).
Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35 ($5,345,363). West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP]
($261,000). Prop AA: SFPW: Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements ($1,100,000).

Amend the One Bay Area Grant Cycle 2 Project List and the Prop K Standard Grant
Agreement for the Bay Area Rapid Transit District's Embarcadero Station: New Northside
Platform Elevator Project to Reflect a New Phased Approach to Project Delivery —
ACTION* 113

Approve San Francisco’s Program of Projects for the 2026 Regional Transportation
Improvement Program, Totaling $9,887,000 — ACTION* 137

Projects: RTIP: MTC: Planning, Programming, and Monitoring ($196,000). Project to be
Determined ($9,393,000). SFCTA: Planning, Programming, and Monitoring ($298,000).

Authorize Borrowing of up to $60,000,000 under the Amended and Restated Revolving
Credit Agreement with U.S. Bank National Association — ACTION* 155

Other Items

11.

12.
13.

Introduction of New ltems — INFORMATION

During this segment of the meeting, Commissioners may make comments on
items not specifically listed above or introduce or request items for future
consideration.

Public Comment

Adjournment

*Additional Materials

Items considered for final approval by the Board shall be noticed as such with [Final Approval] preceding the item

title.

The meeting proceedings can be viewed live or on demand after the meeting at www.sfgovtv.org. To know the
exact cablecast times for weekend viewing, please call SFGovTV at (415) 554-4188 on Friday when the cablecast
times have been determined.



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Board Meeting Notice — Draft Agenda Page 3 of 3

The Legislative Chamber (Room 250) and the Committee Room (Room 263) in City Hall are wheelchair accessible.
Wheelchair-accessible entrances are located on Van Ness Avenue and Grove Street.

Meetings are real-time captioned and are cablecast open-captioned on SFGovTV, the Government Channel 26 or
99 (depending on your provider). Assistive listening devices for the Legislative Chamber and the Committee Room
are available upon request at the Clerk of the Board’s Office, Room 244. To request sign language interpreters,
readers, large print agendas, or other accommodations, please contact the Clerk of the Transportation Authority at
(415) 522-4800. Requests made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting will help to ensure availability.
Attendees at all public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical-based
products.

If any materials related to an item on this agenda have been distributed to the Board after distribution of the
meeting packet, those materials are available for public inspection at the Transportation Authority at 1455 Market
Street, 22nd Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103, during normal office hours.

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be
required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign & Governmental Conduct Code Sec. 2.100] to
register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San
Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; (415) 252-3100;
www.sfethics.org.



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800  info@sfcta.org  www.sfcta.org

DRAFT MINUTES

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Tuesday, September 30, 2025

1.

Roll Call
Chair Melgar called the meeting to order at 10:10 a.m.

Present at Roll Call: Commissioners Chan, Chen, Dorsey, Engardio, Fielder,
Mahmood, Mandelman, Melgar, and Sauter (9)

Absent at Roll Call: Commissioners Sherrill and Walton (2)
Chair’s Report - INFORMATION

Chair Melgar reported that the month was eventful, beginning with Transit Month
celebrations at City Hall and concluding with ribbon cuttings for the 6th Street
Pedestrian Safety Project and at BART to mark the completion of the new fare gates
systemwide. She highlighted legislative successes, including the passage of the State
Cap-and-Invest legislation, which stabilized the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund to
support transit (and other investments) statewide. She reported that Senate Bill 63,
authorizing a regional transit measure for the November 2026 ballot, passed the
Legislature and was awaiting the Governor’s signature. Chair Melgar continued by
recognizing some regional achievements, including one year of Caltrain electrified
service, and BART's adoption of credit card payments, record ridership, and the
installation of over 700 faregates systemwide—delivered four months early with $12.5
million in Transportation Authority funding, reducing fare evasion by 50%. Chair Melgar
also thanked colleagues and community members for supporting passage at the Board
of Supervisors of the Safe Streets Act, which improves multimodal traffic safety. She
concluded by congratulating the Transportation Authority Finance team, led by Cynthia
Fong, for earning its eighth consecutive Award of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting.

During public comment, a commenter disagreed with the Chair’s Report.

Executive Director’s Report - INFORMATION

Tilly Chang, Executive Director, presented the Executive Director’s Report.

During public comment, a commenter disagreed with the Executive Director’s Report.
Approve the Minutes of the September 9, 2025 Meeting - ACTION

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Fielder moved to approve the minutes, seconded by Commissioner
Mandelman.

The minutes were approved without objection by the following vote:

Ayes: Commissioners Chan, Chen, Dorsey, Engardio, Fielder, Mahmood,

Page 1 of 3



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3

Mandelman, Melgar, and Sauter (9)

Absent: Commissioners Sherrill and Walton (2)

Consent Agenda

5. [Final Approval] Reappoint Phoebe Ford as the District 4 Representative to the
Community Advisory Committee- ACTION

6. [Final Approval] Allocate $14,340,000 in Prop L Funds, with Conditions, for Three
Requests and Amend the Prop K Standard Grant Agreement for the Next Generation
Sanchez Slow Street [NTIP Capital] Project (Project) and Release $190,000 in Funds Held
in Reserve for the Project’s Construction, with Conditions - ACTION

7. [Final Approval] Authorize an Additional Construction Allotment of $9,635,000;
Approve a Contract Amendment with WMH Corporation in the Amount of $200,000;
Approve a Contract Amendment with WSP USA, Inc. in the Amount of $665,000 for the
West Side Bridges Seismic Retrofit Project - ACTION

8. [Final Approval] Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute and
Submit an Allocation Request to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for
$16,250,000 in Regional Measure 3 Bridge Toll Funds as the Implementing Agency for
the Yerba Buena Island Multi-Use Pathway and Demonstrating Project Compliance with
Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures - ACTION

9. [Final Approval] Approve Programming of $1,374,000 in Senate Bill 1 Local Partnership
Program Formulaic Funds to the Yerba Buena Island Multi-Use Pathway Segment 4 -
Treasure Island Road Improvements Project - ACTION

10. [Final Approval] Approve the Conceptual Safety-Focused Autonomous Vehicle
Permitting Framework Report - ACTION

There was no public comment.

Commissioner Mahmood moved to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by
Commissioner Fielder.

The Consent Agenda approved without objection by the following vote:

Ayes: Chan, Chen, Dorsey, Engardio, Fielder, Mahmood, Mandelman, Melgar, and
Sauter (9)

Absent: Commissioners Sherrill and Walton (2)

End of Consent Agenda

11. Investment Report and Debt Expenditure Report for the Quarter Ended June 30,
2025 - INFORMATION

Cynthia Fong, Deputy Director for Finance and Administration, presented the item per the
staff memorandum.

There was no public comment.



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3

Other Items

12. Introduction of New Items - INFORMATION
There were no new items introduced.

13. Public Comment
There was no public comment.

14. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 10:31 a.m.



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800  info@sfcta.org  www.sfcta.org

DRAFT MINUTES

Community Advisory Committee
Wednesday, September 24, 2025

1. Committee Meeting Call to Order
Chair Siegal called the meeting to order at 6:09 p.m.

CAC members present at Roll: Phoebe Ford, Sean Kim, Venecia Margarita, Austin Milford-
Rosales, Rachael Ortega, and Kat Siegal (6)

CAC Members Absent at Roll: Sara Barz, Najuawanda Daniels, Zameel Imaduddin
(entered during ltem 4), Jerry Levine (4)

2. Chair’s Report - INFORMATION

Chair Siegal reminded the CAC that September was Transit Month, featuring events, a ride
contest, and a rally. She also noted that the District 2 Safety Study would launch its second
round of outreach in early October, with a survey, community presentations, and pop-up
events and the Inner Sunset Transportation Study now had a multilingual survey on the
project website regarding recommendations to improve transportation safety and access
within the commercial core of the neighborhood. She noted that more information on
both studies was available on the agency website at www.sfcta.org.

There was no public comment.
3. Approve the Minutes of the September 3, 2025 Meeting - ACTION

Clerk Saeyang stated Mr. Mason, a member of the public had brought some
administrative corrections to her attention in the minutes, specifically: on page 4 of the
minutes, in the second-to-last paragraph of page four, need to change “28th Avenue” to
"28th Street” and on page six, in the first paragraph of page six, need to change “J and L
lines” to “J Line".

There was no public comment.

Member Milford-Rosales moved to approve the minutes with the corrections as read by
the clerk, seconded by Member Margarita.

The minutes were approved by the following vote:
Ayes: CAC Members Ford, Kim, Margarita, Milford-Rosales, Ortega, and Siegal (6)
Absent: CAC Members Barz, Daniels, Imaduddin, and Levine (4)
4, State and Federal Legislation Update — INFORMATION

Amber Crabbe, Senior Public Policy Manager and Martin Reyes, Principal Transportation
Planner, Government Affairs presented the item per the staff memorandum.

Member Ford asked what happened if the Governor took no action on a bill presented for
signature.

Page 1 of 9



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Community Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 9

Mr. Reyes responded that bills passed by the Legislature and not signed by the Governor
by the October 12th deadline automatically became law.

Member Ford asked why the Transportation Authority expected no revenues from the
potential regional measure.

Mr. Reyes explained that most revenues from the regional measure in San Francisco were
expected to be dedicated to addressing the large share of operator deficits attributed to
San Francisco based on ridership, which left nothing to return to the Transportation
Authority.

Chief Deputy Director Maria Lombardo added that San Francisco was well-served by
SFMTA and regional transit operators, and thus needed to help address a large share of
operator deficits as Mr. Reyes noted. She said at the same time San Francisco generated a
relatively lower amount of sales tax revenues within the potential regional measure
compared to other counties’ revenue generation potential. She continued by saying that
this meant all the revenues generated went toward transit deficits, leaving no surplus
revenues to return to the Transportation Authority.

Member Ford asked how Cap-and-Invest proceeds could be increased and how the
program treated activities within and outside of California.

Ms. Crabbe replied that the proceeds were based on auctions and could not directly have
been impacted by the Transportation Authority. However, she noted the program's
extension to 2045 would increase revenues due to ongoing participation in the program
by emitters beyond 2030 and said she would follow up on Member Ford's second
question regarding the treatment of emitters’ activities.

Member Milford-Rosales asked for a comparison of San Mateo County's accountability
framework proposal and the framework that was included in the final version of Senate Bill
(SB) 63.

Mr. Reyes explained the differences between the two accountability frameworks, noting
that San Mateo County's proposal would have given them unilateral authority to withhold
funding from operators.

Member Ortega asked for clarification on Cap-and-Invest funding for High Speed Rail and
the funding request from the Bay Area for bookend projects.

Ms. Crabbe clarified that the Bay Area requested $2.2 billion in total for bookend projects,
while the $1 billion would be set aside annually for High Speed Rail through 2045.

Member Ortega asked why BART's deficit was larger than other transit agencies and why
it was receiving the most funding from the regional measure.

Mr. Reyes explained that BART's deficit was largely due to the shift from in-person to
remote work which impacted the agency's farebox recovery. He added that Muni had a
similar deficit to BART, however the amount of measure funds directed to Muni was much
less due to the limited tax revenues San Francisco could direct to Muni within the measure
after accounting for its contributions to other operators.

Member Margarita asked if there was any flexibility in the sales tax rate in San Francisco.

Mr. Reyes explained that the one-cent sales tax rate for San Francisco was included in SB
63 to reflect the benefits San Francisco derives from the services provided by the major



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Community Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 9

operators (SFMTA, BART, Caltrain).

Ms. Lombardo added that San Francisco was included at a higher rate that the other
counties to better balance revenue generation with the need, noting that the revenues
generated by a half-cent sales tax in San Francisco were about half the amount generated
by a half-cent sales tax in Alameda County.

Member Margarita asked whether additional sales tax increases would occur assuming
the regional measure passed.

Mr. Reyes responded that he was unaware of discussions regarding additional sales taxes.

Member Kim asked for clarification on how the measure authorized under SB 63 would be
placed on the ballot and whether multiple regional measures could appear on the same
ballot.

Mr. Reyes explained that there had been news reports about potential citizen initiatives
and he speculated that MTC would need to monitor them when considering whether to
place the regional measure on the ballot to avoid competing measures.

Member Siegal asked for clarification on how the $200 million for low-carbon transit
operations under Cap-and-Invest would be allocated and what restrictions applied.

Ms. Crabbe replied that the funding would be distributed by formula directly to transit
agencies and would be flexible for use in reducing emissions primarily through transit
operations.

During public comment, Edward Mason stated that sales tax should be replaced by
delivery fees and expressed reluctance to use funding from SB 63 for repaving state
highways. He also suggested charging an electricity tax for large industrial sites such as
data centers and fees for private commuter buses.

Roland Lebrun described the various transportation sales taxes established in Santa Clara
County and pointed out that hospitals in the county were facing closures and looking at
sale tax to help with that. He also commented on how transit agencies would repay
potential state transit loans and the Cap-and-Invest program.

5. Adopt a Motion of Support to Amend the Prop K Standard Grant Agreement for the
Mission Bay School Access Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital] (Plan) to Allow $30,000
in Funds Held in Reserve for Implementation of Plan Recommendations to be Used
for Additional Planning and Outreach; Release $30,000 from the Reserve; and
Appropriate $20,000 in Prop K Funds, with conditions, for the Plan — ACTION

David Long, Senior Transportation Planner, presented the item per the staff
memorandum.

Member Kim asked for an explanation of the raised crosswalks.

Mr. Long explained that vehicles approached the roundabout with crosswalks across each
leg. He stated that installing raised crosswalks would make pedestrians more visible to
drivers and encourage vehicles to slow down when approaching the crossings.

Member Ford said she was excited about the new school because she had an elementary
schooler and believed the neighborhood shared this enthusiasm. She raised concerns
about how car drop-off lines would interact with pedestrian and bike drop-offs, noting
that it was difficult to picture traffic flow without the school design. She also asked about



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Community Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 9

the adequacy of a 12-foot bike lane shared by parents walking with children and children
riding bikes, saying it seemed too tight. She added that Mission Bay's wide roads could
allow for better space allocation

Mr. Long stated that the revised design work was intended to improve safety. He
explained that the goal had been to make the designs more pedestrian-friendly and
responsive to the neighborhood context, particularly given the presence of many
children.

During public comment, Edward Mason asked whether the school had been part of the
original Mission Bay design, and if so, whether any work had to be redone. He also asked
how this related to the Caltrain tunnel project, whether the two projects impacted each
other, and whether the tunnel’s route might affect current plans.

Sarah Bertram stated she lived in Mission Bay and was excited about the school project.
She explained the school had been part of the Mission Bay Redevelopment Plan from the
start and welcomed its progress. Ms. Bertram added that neighborhood organizers,
including herself, had been coordinating with the school district on pick-up and drop-off
plans and aligning them with the SFMTA's traffic calming efforts. She emphasized
ensuring bike routes did not conflict with car traffic and agreed on the importance of
adequate pedestrian width.

Roland Lebrun suggested using Google Earth or Maps with street views to clarify the
project location and planned pavement treatments. He referenced Edward Mason'’s
comment about Caltrain tracks near the school, emphasizing safety concerns for children
biking to and from school. He shared that he was the original designer of the Pennsylvania
Alignment which ran north of Cesar Chavez across Potrero Hill to Seventh Street, where
the tracks would be 60 feet down, at the proposed station location. He highlighted the
importance of following Caltrain discussions, especially CPUC funding for grade
separations, as the formula depended on train volume and the number of cars crossing
the tracks. He noted that combining grade separations, like King and Mission, could
optimize calculations and make the project a top California priority.

Member Imaduddin moved to approve the item, seconded by Member Milford-Rosales.
The item was approved by the following vote:

Ayes: CAC Members Ford, Imaduddin, Kim, Margarita, Milford-Rosales, Ortega, and
Siegal (7)

Absent: CAC Member(s) Barz, Daniels, and Levine (3)
6. Adopt a Motion of Support to Allocate $6,606,363 in Prop L Funds, with Conditions,

and Allocate $1,100,000 in Prop AA Funds, with Conditions, for Four Requests —
ACTION

Rachel Seiberg, Transportation Planner, presented the item per the staff memorandum.

Member Kim expressed concern about merchants losing business during construction of
the Japantown Buchanan Mall. He asked if there was a merchant impact mitigation plan in
place for this project.

Jeffrey Jackson, Project Manager at San Francisco Public Works (SFPW), replied that
merchant coordination was a high priority for the project because many businesses
located directly within the construction area. He said in August 2025, SFPW met with the



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Community Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 9

Japantown Task Force and other community groups, where merchants raised concerns
and SFPW outlined mitigation measures, including construction working hours, noise and
dust control, rodent management, and secure fencing. He stated that construction would
occur during a limited timeframe of 4-5 days when concrete would be poured in front of
the businesses, temporarily limiting access, and that merchants were made aware of this
timeframe.

Member Kim followed up by asking if SFPW construction crews would also replace the
sewer line or water line as well.

Mr. Jackson clarified that SFPW had coordinated with the San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission (SFPUC) and aimed to dig into the ground once rather than multiple times to
minimize impacts on businesses and residents. He said during the design phase, SFPUC
learned of the project and chose to add their scope to replace aging infrastructure while
SFPW was already excavating.

Member Kim referenced the Geary Boulevard Sewer and Water Improvements Phase 2
project, noting merchants experienced multiple excavations by construction crews. He
asked if there were funds set aside to mitigation impacts on merchants.

Mr. Jackson responded that SFPW could not give funds directly to businesses. He referred
to a monthly standing meeting with about five community groups to discuss coordination
and outreach. He added that these community groups were considering contacting
Supervisor Mahmood's office for protective mitigation resources.

Member Kim recommended supporting businesses impacted by construction and urged
efficient coordination among SFPW, SFPUC, Pacific Gas and Electric Company, and other
agencies or third parties.

Mr. Jackson stated that SFPW was coordinating with outside agencies and the Japantown
community. He added that, besides monthly community meetings, SFPW held regular
check-ins with external departments to anticipate and prevent potential delays.

Member Kim asked whether Prop AA could be used to repair Geary sidewalks damaged
by tree roots, saying the sidewalks were in poor condition.

Mr. Jackson responded that the project included some ADA curb ramp improvements,
although sidewalk improvements were not part of the project’s scope.

Anna LaForte, Deputy Director of Policy and Programming, replied that the Prop AA
vehicle registration fee included a pedestrian safety project category and that sidewalk
improvements were eligible. She added that funds were programmed in five-year
increments and that the current cycle would run through Fiscal Year 2026/2027.

Member Kim followed up by asking whether there were any equity-related criteria for
selecting projects for funding.

Ms. LaForte clarified that equity considerations applied to all Transportation Authority fund
programs.

Member Ortega asked about the average life expectancy of a traffic signal was.

Bryant Woo, Engineer at SFMTA, said that the average life expectancy depended on the
location. He stated that near the Great Highway, traffic signals typically had a shorter
lifespan due to exposure to moisture, salt, and sand, with a maximum of around 40 years.



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Community Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 9

He added that traffic signals located further inland might last up to 50 years. He then
clarified that controllers had a service life of approximately 10 years.

Member Ortega asked if the Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35 request met standard
update requirements.

Mr. Woo replied that it depended on the hardware's complexity. He emphasized the
urgent need to replace controllers after instances of simultaneous signal outages.

Member Ortega asked what caused the controllers to fail.

Mr. Woo clarified that the controllers were not failing, but instead had security
vulnerabilities.

Member Ortega asked for confirmation that these controllers needed to be replaced
regardless of their age.

Mr. Woo confirmed that this was correct.

Member Ortega expressed appreciation for the inclusion of the 29th Street, 30th Street,
and San Jose Avenue signals in the Traffic Signal Upgrades Contract 35 project.

Member Milford-Rosales asked about the traffic signal controller’s security vulnerabilities
and whether CAC members could review a report on them.

Mr. Woo stated the security vulnerability was discovered by accident and was not a
malicious attack and he wasn't able to share more information publicly.

Chair Siegal thanked SFMTA for the signal upgrades and asked if they tracked collisions
before and after the improvements to determine if collisions decreased.

Mr. Woo replied that safety improvements depended on the location and that lower-traffic
areas, such as 6th Avenue and Balboa Street, saw smaller gains than High Injury Network
locations with many collisions. He noted the easiest and most economical improvements
involved signal retiming to give pedestrians more crossing time, allow vehicles more to
clear intersections, and slow traffic between signals. He stated that complex, costly
improvements were implemented alongside other infrastructure upgrades, including
bulb-outs and Class 4 bike facilities. He added that more complex intersections received
more expensive upgrades. He cited a 20% reduction in collisions from new signal mast
heads in the 1990s and he noted that such improvements were possible since they were
replacing poor or outdated infrastructure, but over time, as technology and infrastructure
advanced, gains became more marginal.

During public comment, Edward Mason referenced previous remarks he made about
pedestrian push button security vulnerabilities. He asked whether they were vulnerable, if
they were related to the controller security issue, and whether pedestrian push buttons
and other SFMTA infrastructure had sufficient security.

Mr. Woo replied that the pedestrian push button security vulnerability had been made
public, noting that the vendor had provided an Apple Store application for signal
operators to program accessible pedestrian signals. He explained that the first weakness
was making the software easily available, and the second was that agencies did not
change the default password. He stressed the severity of the matter, especially for visually
impaired individuals who rely on accessible audio messages or visual cues to cross the
street safely.



15

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Community Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 9

Member Kim moved to approve the item, seconded by Member Milford-Rosales.
The item was approved by the following vote:

Ayes: CAC Members Ford, Imaduddin, Kim, Margarita, Milford-Rosales, Ortega, and
Siegal (7)

Absent: CAC Member(s) Barz, Daniels, and Levine (3)

7. Adopt a Motion of Support to Amend the One Bay Area Grant Cycle 2 Project List
and the Prop K Standard Grant Agreement for the Bay Area Rapid Transit District’s
Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform Elevator Project to Reflect a New
Phased Approach to Project Delivery - ACTION

Amelia Walley, Senior Program Analyst, presented the item per the staff memorandum.

Member Ortega asked how BART would assist passengers during the elevator
construction.

Michael Gerbracht, Senior Manager of Engineering Programs at BART, said BART had
paratransit services providing access to adjacent stations for passengers who need it.

Chair Siegal asked if there would be periods when no elevators were working at the
station.

Mr. Gerbracht confirmed that, with only one elevator at the station, service would be
unavailable during maintenance and modernization.

There was no public comment.
Member Imaduddin moved to approve the item, seconded by Member Ortega.
The item was approved by the following vote:

Ayes: CAC Members Ford, Imaduddin, Kim, Margarita, Milford-Rosales, Ortega, and
Siegal (7)

Absent: CAC Member(s) Barz, Daniels, and Levine (3)

8. Adopt a Motion of Support to Approve San Francisco’s Program of Projects for the
2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program, Totaling $9,887,000 -
ACTION

Mike Pickford, Principal Transportation Planner, presented the item per the staff
memorandum.

There was no public comment.
Member Imaduddin moved to approve the item, seconded by Member Ford.
The item was approved by the following vote:

Ayes: CAC Members Ford, Imaduddin, Kim, Margarita, Milford-Rosales, Ortega, and
Siegal (7)
Absent: CAC Member(s) Barz, Daniels, and Levine (3)
9. Adopt a Motion of Support to Authorize Borrowing of up to $60,000,000 under the

Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement with U.S. Bank National
Association — ACTION



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Community Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 9

Cynthia Fong, Deputy Director for Finance and Administration, presented the item per the
staff memorandum.

Member Ortega asked what would happen when the agreement expired in 2027 or if
additional funds were needed sooner.

Ms. Fong stated that the Transportation Authority could first use funds from its revolving
credit agreement before considering market options. She said the agency could either
increase the credit amount or issue a long-term bond. In 2017, she recounted that the
Transportation Authority fully utilized its revolving credit, consulted financial advisors,
considered market conditions, and issued a long-term bond to spread costs over many
years. She added that the current loan must be repaid by October 29, 2027.

Member Ortega asked if the Transportation Authority would need to repay the $125
million by October 29, 2027.

Ms. Fong stated that the Transportation Authority would be required to repay the funds,
with costs depending on the interest rate and the agency'’s credit rating.

Member Ortega asked if the current interest rate were lower than the standard rate.

Ms. Fong stated that the revolving credit agreement rate was 3.18%, while a bond would
be at 4.1% under current market conditions.

Member Ortega asked about the potential timing for requesting the remaining $60
million on the credit line.

Ms. Fong stated that after the mid-year budget amendment process, the Transportation
Authority might request up to $60 million in additional funding. She reported that $65
million was spent in year one and that the subject $60 million was being allocated in year
two. She said that if this trend continued, the Transportation Authority could seek
additional funds as early as March 2026 or the following year.

Member Ortega asked for clarification on the term “sponsors”.

Ms. Fong explained that by “sponsors” she referred to agencies that received project
grants from the Transportation Authority such as SFMTA, the Transbay Joint Powers
Authority, and BART.

Member Kim asked about the revolving credit, clarifying that it had a variable component
and whether the Transportation Authority must still pay the 0.2% cost even if the credit
were unused. He noted that the current revolving credit rate was lower than the long-term
bond rate, making it beneficial to use, and confirmed that board approval was required
before withdrawal.

Ms. Fong confirmed that Member Kim’'s understanding was correct.

There was no public comment.

Member Margarita moved to approve the item, seconded by Member Kim.
The item was approved by the following vote:

Ayes: CAC Members Ford, Imaduddin, Kim, Margarita, Milford-Rosales, Ortega, and
Siegal (7)

Absent: CAC Member(s) Barz, Daniels, and Levine (3)



17

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Community Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 9

Other Items

10.

11.

12.

Introduction of New Business - INFORMATION

Chair Siegal requested that the Transportation Authority provide estimates of potential
revenue from package delivery fees or delivery platform taxes, either as a flat fee,
percentage, or gross receipts tax. She explained that several of these options were
discussed at the Muni Funding Working Group. She emphasized the need to understand
both the revenue potential and any legal hurdles to implementing these options to inform
future funding strategies amid ongoing deficits.

There was no public comment.
Public Comment

During public comment, Edward Mason noted observing numerous Waymo vehicles
looping near 14th Street and South Van Ness, including a storage and battery-recharging
facility between South Van Ness and Folsom Street. He said he was concerned about the
high electricity consumption of these vehicles, noting it could strain future energy supply
for data centers and electrification efforts. He suggested implementing a tax on heavy
electricity users to offset infrastructure costs and ensure that those with high demand pay
their share.

Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 8:17 p.m.



18

[ this page intentionally left blank ]

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800

Memorandum

AGENDA ITEM 4
DATE: October 1, 2025
TO: Transportation Authority Board

FROM: Maria Lombardo - Chief Deputy Director

info@sfcta.org www.sfcta.org

SUBJECT: 10/07/2025 Board Meeting: Reappoint Austin Milford-Rosales and Najuawanda
Daniels as the District 6 and District 10 Representatives, Respectively, to the

Community Advisory Committee

RECOMMENDATION OliInformation X Action

Per Section 5.2(a) of the Administrative Code, each
Commissioner shall nominate one member to the Community
Advisory Committee (CAC). Neither staff nor CAC members
make recommendations regarding CAC appointments.

SUMMARY

The term for the District 6 (Austin Milford-Rosales)
representative expires on October 23 and there is an open
seat on the 11-member CAC for District 10 as the result of the
prior representative (Najuawanda Daniels) automatically being
removed from the CAC for missing four of the last twelve
regularly scheduled meetings consistent with the
Transportation Authority’s Administrative Code.
Commissioner Dorsey has indicated his intent to renominate
Austin Milford-Rosales to the District 6 seat and Commissioner
Walton has indicated his intent to renominate Najuawanda
Daniels for the District 10 seat. The Administrative Code
requires Mr. Milford-Rosales and Ms. Daniels to reappear
before the Board to speak on their behalf. CAC members
serve for a two-year term. There are no term limits. The current
roster of CAC members is included in Attachment 1. The
applications for the two CAC candidates are included in
Attachment 2.

O Fund Allocation

O Fund Programming
O Policy/Legislation
O Plan/Study

O Capital Project
Oversight/Delivery

O Budget/Finance
O Contract/Agreement

Other: CAC
Reappointments

Page 1 of 3

19



20

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 4 Page 2 of 3

BACKGROUND

As described in the Transportation Authority’s Administrative Code, the CAC shall
provide input to the Transportation Authority in:

1. Defining the mission of the Transportation Authority;

2. Reflecting community values in the development of the mission and program
of the Transportation Authority, and channeling that mission and program
back to the community;

3. Defining criteria and priorities for implementing the Expenditure Plan
programs consistent with the intention of the half-cent sales tax funding
purposes; and

4. Monitoring the Transportation Authority’s programs and evaluating the
sponsoring agencies’ productivity and effectiveness.

DISCUSSION

The Board appoints 11 members to the CAC and each Commissioner nominates one
member to the committee. Per Section 5.2(a) of the Administrative Code, the CAC:

“...shall include representatives from various segments of the community, including
public policy organizations, labor, business, senior citizens, people with disabled,
environmentalists and the neighborhoods and reflect broad transportation interests.
The committee is also intended to reflect the racial and gender diversity of San
Francisco residents.”

An applicant must be a San Francisco resident to be considered eligible for
appointment. Applicants are asked to provide residential location and areas of
interest but provide ethnicity and gender information on a voluntary basis. CAC
applications are distributed and accepted on a continuous basis. CAC applications
were solicited through the Transportation Authority’s website, Commissioners’
offices, and email blasts to community-based organizations, advocacy groups,
business organizations, and at public meetings attended or hosted by the
Transportation Authority. Applications can be submitted through the Transportation
Authority’s website at sfcta.org/cac.

All applicants have been advised that they need to appear in person before the
Board in order to be appointed unless they have previously appeared. If a candidate
is unable to appear before the Board on the first appearance, they may appear at the
following Board meeting in order to be eligible for appointment.



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 4 Page 3 of 3

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The requested action would not have an impact on the adopted Fiscal Year 2025/26
budget.

CAC POSITION

None. The CAC does not make recommendations on the appointment of CAC
members.

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS

e Attachment 1 - CAC Roster
e Attachment 2 - CAC Applications
e Attachment 3 - Resolution

21



22

ATTACHMENT 1

Community Advisory Committee Members

Name

VACANT

VACANT

Austin Milford-Rosales

Kat Siegal

Margarita Venecia

Rachael Ortega

Sara Barz

Jerry Levine

Zameel Imaduddin

Sean Kim

Phoebe Ford

Ethnicity*

H/L

District

10

"

Neighborhood

Mission Bay/SOMA

Cole Valley / Haight Ashbury

Portola

NP

Sunnyside

Cow Hollow

District 11

Central Richmond

Central Sunset

*A - Asian | AA - African American | Al - American Indian or Alaska Native | C - Caucasian
* H/L - Hispanic or Latino | NH - Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander | ME - Middle Eastern | NP - Not Provided (Voluntary Information)

Affiliation / Interest

Environment; Public Policy

Disabled; Environment; Social and racial justice ; Labor;
Neighborhood; Public Policy; Senior; Other

Business; Disabled; Environment; Social and racial justice;
Labor; Neighborhood; Public Policy; Senior; Youth,

undocumented communities

Business; Environment; Social and racial justice;
Neighborhood; Public Policy

Business; Environment; Social and racial justice;
Neighborhood; Public Policy

Business; Neighborhood; Public policy

Student

Business; Disabled; Environment; Social and racial justice;
Labor; Neighborhood; Public Policy; Senior

Business; Environment; Neighborhood

First
Apppointed

October 2023

February 2022

February 2024

October 2022

July 2022

November 2018

March 2025

May 2023

September 2023

Term
Expiration

October 2025

February 2026

February 2026

October 2026

July 2026

February 2027

March 2027

May 2027

September 2027



ATTACHMENT 2 2 3

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800 info@sfcta.org www.sfcta.org

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Application for Membership on the Community Advisory Committee

Austin Milford-Rosales Male

FIRST NAME LAST NAME GENDER (OPTIONAL)

Caucasian, European, or White Yes

ETHNICITY (OPTIONAL) IDENTIFY AS HISPANIC, LATINO, OR LATINX? (OPTIONAL)
District 6 Mission Bay/SOMA [ redacted ] [ redacted ]
HOME SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT ~ NEIGHBORHOOD OF RESIDENCE HOME PHONE HOME EMAIL

[ redacted ] [ redacted ] [ redacted ] [ redacted ]
STREET ADDRESS OF HOME CITY STATE ZIP

[ redacted ] [ redacted ] [ redacted ] [ redacted ]
WORK SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT  NEIGHBORHOOD OF WORKPLACE WORK PHONE WORK EMAIL

[ redacted ] [ redacted ] [ redacted ] [ redacted ]
STREET ADDRESS OF WORKPLACE CITY STATE ZIP

Statement of qualifications:

My qualifications for this position are based on my use of transit and biking infrastructure
and undergraduate coursework. | have lived near Fourth and King for two years, and do
not own a car. As a result, | travel all over the city using a mixture of public transit and my
bike. Since my part of town is blessed with multiple transit connections to a lot of
destinations, in addition to solid bike infrastructure, | have taken different bus lines, the
muni metro, and my bike to almost every place | frequent. | am very used to comparing
tradeoffs between both agencies (BART vs SFMTA) and transit modes, and the time |
spend on bike and on foot allows me to see and experience my neighborhood and the
greater city, specifically with regards to transit infrastructure, to a greater degree than
someone who exclusively drives. In addition, | completed a major in engineering and
public policy as part of my undergraduate degree. Many of my courses required
extensive reading of government and academic papers, and would often require us to
make unofficial recommendations and even one public comment to a federal agency. Of
particular note, one class involved a project where we analyzed both resurfacing

and targeted pothole and crack filling for a road near our campus. Although my focus
was not on civil engineering, | believe my familiarity with both analysis and decision
making methods will be useful in the context of a non-professional community advisory
committee.

Statement of objectives:

If appointed, | hope to help support allocating funds towards programs that expand on
vision zero and climate goals for the city. Vehicle caused fatalities have trended in the
wrong direction since the adoption of the vision zero policy through 2022, and just last
month, there was a traffic fatality outside my apartment building. | appreciated
Supervisor Dorsey’s near-instant support for a quick build project to improve the safety
of the intersection at 4th and King, and would like to help with the longer project of

Continued on next page Page 1 of 2



24

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Application for Membership on the Community Advisory Committee

improving safety at similar intersections with multiple turn lanes as well as supporting
broader initiatives that help meet vision zero goals. In addition, | plan on supporting
projects that help move the city towards lowering transportation emissions. We are in a
climate crisis, and projects that improve the quality of pedestrian, cycling, and public
transit infrastructure will help induce more demand for those modes, lowering the
number of gasoline car trips taken in the city.

Please select all categories of affiliation or interest that apply to you:
Environment;Public Policy

Can you commit to attending regular meetings (about once a month for the
Transportation Authority CAC, or once every two to three months for
project CACs):

Yes

By entering your name and date below, and submitting this form, you certify that all the
information on this application is true and correct.

Austin Milford-Rosales 9/25/2025

NAME OF APPLICANT DATE

Page 2 of 2



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800 info@sfcta.org www.sfcta.org

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Application for Membership on the Community Advisory Committee

Najuawanda Daniels Female

FIRST NAME LAST NAME GENDER (OPTIONAL)

Black descended or African American No

ETHNICITY (OPTIONAL) IDENTIFY AS HISPANIC, LATINO, OR LATINX? (OPTIONAL)

District 10 [ redacted ] [ redacted ]
HOME SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT NEIGHBORHOOD OF RESIDENCE HOME PHONE HOME EMAIL

[ redacted ] [ redacted ] [ redacted ] [ redacted ]
STREET ADDRESS OF HOME CITY STATE ZIP

Statement of qualifications:

| am a SF native, living in District 10 for over 30 years. | have utilized public transportation here in the City for well over 20
years. This allows me familiarity; | am also employed by one of SF's many labor organizations.

Statement of objectives:

My objective is to offer input and contribute to the work of this committee ensuring equitable transportation. As well as learn
more about the processes this committee utilizes to serve our City.

Continued on next page Page 1 of 2

25



Tghborhood

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Application for Membership on the Community Advisory Committee

Please select all categories of affiliation or interest that apply to you:
Business; Environment; Neighborhood

Can you commit to attending regular meetings (about once a month for the Transportation Authority CAC, or once every two
to three months for project CACs):

Yes

By entering your name and date below, and submitting this form, you certify that all the information on this application
is true and correct.

Najuawanda Daniels 9/29/2025

NAME OF APPLICANT DATE

Page 2 of 2



ATTACHMENT 3

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING AUSTIN MILFORD-ROSALES AS THE DISTRICT 6
REPRESENTATIVE AND NAJUAWANDA DANIELS AS THE DISTRICT 10
REPRESENTATIVE TO THE COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE OF THE SAN
FRANCISCO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, Section 131265(d) of the California Public Utilities Code, as
implemented by Section 5.2(a) of the Administrative Code of the San Francisco County
Transportation Authority, requires the appointment of a Community Advisory
Committee (CAC) consisting of 11 members; and

WHEREAS, There is an upcoming vacancy on October 23, 2025 that will result
from the term expiration for the District 6 representative (Austin Milford-Rosales) and
currently a vacancy on the CAC for a District 10 representative since the prior
representative (Najuawanda Daniels) was automatically removed from the CAC for
missing four of the last twelve regularly scheduled meetings consistent with the
Transportation Authority’s Administrative Code; and

WHEREAS, At its October 7, 2025, meeting, Commissioner Dorsey nominated
Austin Milford-Rosales as the District 6 CAC representative and Commissioner Walton
nominated Najuawanda Daniels as the District 10 CAC representative; and

WHEREAS, Both candidates spoke to their interests and qualifications for
serving on the CAC at the October 7, 2025, Board meeting; and

WHEREAS, The Board reviewed and considered the applicants qualifications
and experience and recommended reappointing Austin Milford-Rosales and
Najuawanda Daniels to serve on the CAC for a period of two years; now therefore, be it

RESOLVED, That the Board hereby reappoints Austin Milford-Rosales as the
District 6 representative and Najuawanda Daniels as the District 10 representative to
serve on the CAC of the San Francisco County Transportation Authority for a two-year
term; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Executive Director is authorized to communicate this

information to all interested parties.

Page 1 of 2

27



28

[ this page intentionally left blank ]

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800  info@sfcta.org  www.sfcta.org

AGENDA ITEM 5
STATE LEGISLATION - OCTOBER 2025
(Updated October 1, 2025)
To view documents associated with the bill, click the bill number link.

The final day for the Legislature to pass bills in the first year of the 2025-26 session was
September 12. The Governor has until October 12 to sign or veto bills or take no action, in
which case the bill comes law. The Legislature reconvenes for the second year of the
session on January 5, 2026.

Table 1 shows the status of bills on which the Board has already taken a position or that
staff have been monitoring as part of the Watch list. We will provide an update based on
the most recent information available at the October 7, 2025 Board meeting.

Page 1 of 3

29



30

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 5

Table 1. Bill Status for Positions Taken in the 2025-26 Session

Page 2 of 3

Below are updates for the two-year bills for which the Transportation Authority has taken a

position or identified as a bill to watch. Updates to bills since the Board's last state legislative

update are italicized.

projects.

Makes permanent and extends the sunset date for
certain existing California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) exemptions for specified types of
sustainable transportation plans and projects.

Adopted | Bill # Bill Title and Description Update to Bill
Positions / | Author Status'
Monitorin (as of
g Status 10/1/2025)
AB 891 Quick-Build Pilot Program. Dead
Zbur D
- Establish a state Quick-Build Pilot Program and
commit to funding a minimum of 6 quick-build
improvements statewide by the end of 2028.
AB 1085 License plates: obstruction or alteration. Enrolled
Stefani D Prohibits manufacturing and sale of devices that
shield license plates from detection.
AB 1532 Public Utilities Commission. Enrolled
Comrgumca‘uo Among other things, extends the expiration date
ns an of the TNC Access for All program from 2026 to
Conveyance
. 2032.
Support | Committee
SB 63 San Francisco Bay area: local revenue measure: | Enrolled
Wiener D, transportation funding.
A in D
Aredun= Authorizes MTC to pursue a regional revenue
measure for transit.
SB 71 California Environmental Quality Act: Enrolled
Wiener D exemptions: environmental leadership transit



https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260AB891
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260AB891
https://a51.asmdc.org/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260AB1085
https://a19.asmdc.org/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260AB1532
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260AB1532
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260SB63
https://sd11.senate.ca.gov/
https://sd07.senate.ca.gov/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260SB71
https://sd11.senate.ca.gov/

San Francisco
County Transportation

Authority
Agenda ltem 5 Page 3 of 3
SB 572 Vehicles: advanced driver assistance system: Dead
Gonzalez D crash reports.
Requires manufacturers of Level 2 autonomous
vehicles to report crash data to the Department of
Motor Vehicles (DMV) if no longer required at the
federal level.
AB 939 The Safe, Sustainable, Traffic-Reducing Two-Year Bill
SchultzD Transportation Bond Act of 2026.
Watch Places a $20 billion state transportation bond
measure on the November 2026 ballot.

'"Under this column, “Chaptered” means the bill is now law, “Dead” means the bill is no
longer viable this session, and “Enrolled” means it has passed both Houses of the
Legislature. Bill status at a House's “Desk” means it is pending referral to a Committee, and
“Two Year Bill” means the bill didn't meet its statutory deadlines but is eligible to proceed
in the second year of the two-year session.

31


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260SB572
https://sd33.senate.ca.gov/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260AB939
https://a44.asmdc.org/

32

[ this page intentionally left blank ]

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800

Memorandum

AGENDA ITEM 6
DATE: September 25, 2025
TO: Transportation Authority Board

FROM: Rachel Hiatt - Deputy Director for Planning

info@sfcta.org www.sfcta.org

Anna LaForte - Deputy Director for Policy and Programming

SUBJECT: 10/7/2025 Board Meeting: Amend the Prop K Standard Grant Agreement for the
Mission Bay School Access Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital] (Plan) to Allow
$30,000 in Funds Held in Reserve for Implementation of Plan Recommendations
to be Used for Additional Planning and Outreach; Release $30,000 from the
Reserve; and Appropriate $20,000 in Prop K Funds, with conditions, for the Plan

RECOMMENDATION Olinformation [X Action

Amend the Prop K Standard Grant Agreement (SGA) for the
Mission Bay School Access Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital]
(Plan) to allow $30,000 held in reserve for implementation of
Plan recommendations to be used for additional planning and
outreach.

Release $30,000 from the reserve.

Appropriate $20,000 in Prop K funds, with conditions, for the
Plan.

SUMMARY

In March 2023, the Board allocated and appropriated a total
of $319,307 in District 6 Neighborhood Program funds for the
Mission Bay School Access Plan. This included funding for the
Transportation Authority to develop the Plan and for the San
Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) to
participate in plan development, as well as $90,000 placed on
reserve for SFMTA to implement Plan recommendations
following Board approval of the plan. The purpose of the Plan
is to identify and mitigate barriers students and caregivers
could experience accessing a new school being built in
Mission Bay. To date, the study team has identified barriers
with input from the community, developed conceptual

Fund Allocation
0 Fund Programming
O Policy/Legislation

O Plan/Study
O Capital Project

Oversight/Delivery
O Budget/Finance

Contract/Agreement

O Other:

Page 1 of 3

33



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 6 Page 2 of 3

designs to mitigate those barriers, and sought feedback from
community members on draft recommendations. We are
seeking Board release of $30,000 from the reserve - $20,000
for the Transportation Authority and $10,000 for SFMTA, for
additional refinement of concepts intended to improve safety
and connectivity for cyclists traveling through the roundabout
where Owens Street and Mission Bay Drive converge, and
additional outreach to share the refined concepts with the
community. The project team shared alternatives with the
community earlier this year and received feedback that
suggests some design modifications could improve the
project. At the meeting, staff will provide a project update and
be able to answer questions. We expect to present the final
report to the Board for adoption in April 2026.

BACKGROUND

In 2023 through approval of Resolution 23-37, the Board allocated and appropriated
a total of $319,307 in Prop K sales tax Neighborhood Program funds for the Mission
Bay School Access Plan (Plan) in response to a request from District 6 Commissioner
Dorsey. This amount included $121,885 for the Transportation Authority to lead Plan
development, $107,422 for the SFMTA to support Plan development, and $90,000
held in reserve for SFMTA for implementation of the Plan recommendations.
Following Board approval of the Plan, SFMTA will be able to submit an Allocation
Request Form detailing the proposed scope, schedule, cost, and funding for the
proposed recommendations to be implemented with Prop K funds and request that
the Board release the funds held on reserve.

DISCUSSION

The San Francisco Unified School District is building a new school in the Mission Bay
Neighborhood. Through the Mission Bay School Access Plan, the Transportation
Authority and SFMTA worked with community members to identify key barriers to
accessing the new school by walking or rolling, then designed improvements to
those barriers. Community members identified three key barriers: Mission Bay
Boulevard North and South, the roundabout where Owens Street and Mission Bay
Drive converge (roundabout), and the undercrossing where Mission Bay Drive passes
underneath 1-280. The project team shared concepts designed to improve conditions
at each of these barriers with the community and heard positive feedback about
recommendations for the Mission Bay Boulevard and the I-280 undercrossing.

In response to community members’ feedback during outreach, the project team
proposes to further refine draft recommendations for the roundabout, specifically to



35

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 6 Page 3 of 3

explore ways to improve the pedestrian experience in the draft recommendation.
The project team believes that refinements which respond to this community
feedback may be feasible and seeks to allow a portion of the study’s implementation
funds ($30,000 of the $90,000 implementation reserve) for additional planning work
to explore modifications which respond to this input, then return to the community
for additional outreach on updated designs.

The subject funds would be used to prepare and evaluate updated conceptual
designs during the remainder of 2025, conducting supplemental outreach early in
early 2026 and completing the final report in the spring of 2026. Recommendations
for Mission Bay Boulevard will be advanced by SFMTA in parallel to roundabout
concept refinement. That work will begin imminently and will include additional
public outreach.

Attachment 1 includes a summary of the recommended release of funds from the
Plan reserve and corresponding amendment to the Standard Grant Agreement for
the Plan, as requested by Transportation Authority and SFMTA staff. Attachment 2
includes an updated allocation request form with detailed information on the scope,
schedule, budget, funding, deliverables, and special conditions.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The recommended action would release $30,000 in previously allocated Prop K
funds set on reserve for implementation of Plan recommendations and enable them
to be spent on further planning and outreach work. The expenditure of those funds
would be subject to the amended Fiscal Year Cash Flow Distribution Schedule
contained in the attached allocation request form.

There is no impact on the Transportation Authority’s Fiscal Year 2025/26 budget.

CAC POSITION

The CAC consider this item at its September 24, 2025 meeting and unanimously
adopted a motion of support for the staff recommendation.

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS

e Attachment 1 - Proposed SGA Amendment for Mission Bay School Access Plan
[NTIP Planning and Capital] (Amendment)

e Attachment 2 - Allocation Request Form

e Attachment 3 - Resolution



36

Attachment 1

Proposed Standard Grant Agreement (SGA) Amendment - Mission Bay School Access Plan

Resolution Prop K SGA | Project Name (Project Need for Amendment and Project Description Recommendations
Number Sponsor)
The SFCTA and SFMTA are developing the Mission Bay School Access Plan
(Plan) to improve active transportation access to a new school which the San
Francisco Unified School District is building in Mission Bay. To date, the
study team has identified barriers with input from the community,
developed conceptual d‘eygns to mitigate those barriers, ar?d sought Special Condition:
feedback from community members on draft recommendations. The Board . .
) ) 1) The recommended amendment is contingent upon
previously allocated and appropriated a total of $319,307 to the SFCTA and SFCTA Board release of $30.000 in sales tax funds previous|
SFMTA for the Plan. Of this amount, $90,000 is on reserve for SFMTA to . . o p y
. . . . ) set aside for implementation of Plan recommendations
implement Plan recommendations following Board adoption of the final .
report through approval of Resolution 23-37.
Mission Bay School port.
140-907111, Access Plan [NTIP . L . 2) The remaining $60,000 set aside for Plan implementation
23-37 138-901197 | Planning and Capital] Based on community feedback and support from the District 6 Supervisor, may be released by the SFCTA Board following the Board's

(SFMTA)

SFCTA and SFMTA staff request that the Board release $30,000 from the
implementation reserve to be used to analyze two potential modifications to
the draft roundabout recommendation where Owens Street and Mission Bay
Drive converge and conduct additional community outreach. Of the
$30,000, the SFMTA would use $10,000 for this additional work and the
SFCTA would use the remaining $20,000. This would require amendment of
the corresponding Standard Grant Agreement with SFMTA and
appropriation of $20,000 to the SFCTA.

See proposed amended Allocation Request Form for additional details and
the accompanying staff memorandum for a Plan update.

adoption of the Mission Bay School Access Plan and SFMTA
submittal of an Allocation Request Form detailing the
proposed scope, schedule, cost, and funding for the
proposed recommendations to be implemented with Prop K
funds.




San Francisco County Transportation Authority 37
A"ocation Request Form Proposed October 2025 amendment to

release $30,000 from implementation reserve

ATTACHMENT 2 (phase TBD) for planning phase concept
refinement and outreach: ~$10.000 to SFMTA

-$20,000 to SFCTA

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2022/23

Project Name: | Mission Bay School Access Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital] (Amendment)

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco County Transportation Authority

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Supervisorial District | District 06

REQUEST

Brief Project Description

The San Francisco Unified School District (SFUSD) is developing a new elementary school, Mission Bay School, at the
intersection of 6th Street and Mission Bay Boulevard South. The requested NTIP funds will be used to analyze
connectivity between the school site, the existing active transportation network, and existing/planned transit, and then
design and implement infrastructure improvements to mitigate 1-2 key barriers to active transportation. The project will
also coordinate expected transportation programs and improvements from adjacent developments to ensure school
access is supported.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach

Proposed October 2025 Amendment

Based on community feedback and support from the District 6 Supervisor, the proposed amendment seeks to release
$30,000 in funds currently on reserve for implementation of Mission Bay School Access Plan recommendations to allow
those funds to be used to analyze two potential modifications to the draft roundabout recommendation and conduct
additional community outreach. Of the $30,000, the SFMTA will use $10,000 for this additional work and the SFCTA
$20,000. The project schedule, cost, budget, and recommendations in this allocation request form have been updated to
reflect the proposed amendment and current project status. The corresponding staff memo includes a brief project update
on the Mission Bay School Access Plan.

Background

The San Francisco Unified School District (SFUSD) is developing a new elementary school, Mission Bay School, at the
intersection of 6th Street and Mission Bay Boulevard South. SFSUD anticipates opening the new school in August 2026.
This project will analyze connectivity between the school site, the existing low-stress active transportation network, and
existing/planned transit, and then design infrastructure improvements to mitigate 1-2 key barriers to active transportation.
The project will also coordinate expected transportation programs and improvements from adjacent developments to
ensure school access is supported.

The project is informed by the emerging finding from San Francisco's district-wide School Access Plan that caregivers
want investment in infrastructure which supports safer school trips. The project will also advance the goal of San
Francisco's Safe Routes to School Program to reduce the proportion of school trips made in a single-family vehicle to 30%
by 2030.

The Transportation Authority’s Neighborhood Program (NTIP) is intended to strengthen project pipelines and advance the
delivery of community supported neighborhood-scale projects, especially in Equity Priority Communities and other
neighborhoods with high unmet needs. Commissioner Dorsey has expressed support for using the $319,307 in District 6
NTIP funds included in this request.

Scope of Mission Bay School Access Plan
Task 1 - Project Management



38

Manage all project activities and required reporting.

Deliverables: Quarterly Progress Reports
Lead Agency: San Francisco County Transportation Authority (SFCTA).

Task 2 - Outreach

The study will build on outreach conducted by SFUSD through the school development process. Outreach will involve
conversations with community groups in addition to one workshop and one online town-hall intended for the general
public. Outreach will also include coordination with The University of California San Francisco (UCSF) which plans to
develop several parcels adjacent to the planned school. UCSF also operates a shuttle service near the school site. The
study will coordinate with UCSF to ensure transportation programs and future improvements support school access.

As of Fall 2025, additional outreach is requested as part of the planning phase. This task will supplement outreach for the
Mission Bay School Access Plan, adding a third round to review refined roundabout concepts with the community,
development of new materials, additional meetings with Community Based Organizations, and an additional online town
hall.

Deliverable: Outreach Materials; Outreach Summary Memorandum
Lead Agency: SFCTA. SFCTA will contract with a consultant for multilingual support.

Task 3 - Goals and Existing Conditions
The study team will draft an Existing Conditions Report which documents current transportation conditions, services, and
planned improvements near the school site.

In parallel with the Existing Conditions Report, the study team will review and refine study goals, then develop a Goals and
Objectives Framework (G&O Framework). The G&O Framework will be used to guide discussions with UCSF about
shuttle service and planned nearby developments. It will also be used to guide the development of, then evaluate concepts
developed in Task 4.

Deliverables: Goals and Objectives Framework and Existing Conditions Report
Lead Agency: SFCTA

Task 4 - Concept Development

The study team will review the existing conditions report developed in Task 3 and identify 1-2 key barriers to active
transportation connectivity near the school site. The study will develop 5% conceptual designs for improvements to the
key barriers identified. The study team will also identify a broader package of active transportation improvements which
connect the school site to the active transportation network and transit networks along low-stress routes.

Deliverable: Draft Concepts Memorandum
Lead Agency: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA)

Task 5 - Concept Evaluation and Cost Estimates

The team will develop rough order of magnitude cost estimates for potential improvements developed in Task 4, then use
the G&O Framework developed in Task 3 to evaluate alternatives. The study is not expected to conduct detailed traffic
analysis. The project team will use evaluation results to recommend a suite of transportation improvement concepts.

With the additional planning funds to be released from the construction allocation, Task 5 would be amended to explore
potential modifications to the draft recommendation for roundabout improvements presented by the Mission Bay School
Access Plan during the second round of outreach which mitigate or eliminate pedestrian tradeoffs. Potential modifications
include widening the paved pathway or routing a bikeway through and above the existing rainwater retention areas.
Modifications will be evaluated for engineering feasibility, safety impacts, and cost. Findings from this analysis will be
incorporated into the Mission Bay School Access Plan final recommendations and report, expected April 2026.

Deliverables: Concept Evaluation and Cost Estimate Matrices, Roundabout Alternatives Memorandum
Lead Agency: SFMTA

Task 6 - Report, Recommendations, and Implementation Plan
The study team will compile deliverables from previous tasks and document recommendations in a Final Report. This
report will include recommendations for improvements to active transportation connectivity which address 1-2 key barriers



39

and which connect the school site to existing active transportation and transit networks. The final report will also document
transportation improvements planned through nearby UCSF developments. Recommendations will include a funding and
implementation plan.

Deliverables: Draft and Final Report; Presentation to SFCTA Board for final decision
Lead Agency: SFCTA

Implementation of Recommendations [SFMTA Task]

$60,000 would remain on reserve to implement the study recommendations. The SFMTA will prioritize and identify
recommended improvements for up to a total cost of $60,000. Improvements will be prioritized based on need, cost, and
time to implement. The implementation cost may include environmental review, design, or construction and construction
may be a combination of quick-build or permanent construction.

Project Location

Roads within approximately 1/4 mile of the planned school site at 6th Street / Mission Bay South

Is this project in an Equity Priority Community? | No

Does this project benefit disadvantaged populations? | Yes

Project Phase(s)

Planning/Conceptual Engineering (PLAN), Design Engineering (PS&E), Construction (CON)

5YPP/STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION

Type of Project in the Prop K 5YPP/Prop| Named Project
AA Strategic Plan?

Is requested amount greater than the | Less than or Equal to Programmed Amount
amount programmed in the relevant
5YPP or Strategic Plan?




40

San Francisco County Transportation Authority

Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action:

FY2022/23

Project Name:

Mission Bay School Access Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital] (Amendment)

Primary Sponsor:

San Francisco County Transportation Authority

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type:

Categorically Exempt

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End
Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year
Planning/Conceptual Engineering (PLAN) Jan-Feb-Mar | 2023 Apr-May-Jun | 2026

Environmental Studies (PA&ED)

Right of Way

Design Engineering (PS&E)

Advertise Construction

Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract)

Operations (OP)

Open for Use

Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure)

SCHEDULE DETAILS

Planning Phase Schedule:

Task 2 Outreach: February 2024 - February 2026

Task 3 Goals and Existing Conditions: April 2023 - October 2023
Task 4 Concept Development: March 2024 - October 2025

Task 5 Concept Evaluation and Cost Estimates: June 2024 - November 2025
Task 6 Report, Recommendations, and Implementation Plan: December 2025 - April 2026

Implementation of Recommendations [SFMTA Task] - TBD upon approval of the Mission Bay School Access Plan Final

Report



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action:

FY2022/23

Project Name:

Mission Bay School Access Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital] (Amendment)

Primary Sponsor:

San Francisco County Transportation Authority

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source

Planned

Programmed

Allocated

Project Total

Phases In Current Request Total:

$0

$0

$0

$0

FUNDING PLAN - ENTIRE PROJECT (ALL PHASES)

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total
$0 $20,000 $299,307 $319,307
Funding Plan for Entire Project Total: $0 $20,000 $299,307 $319,307

COST SUMMARY

Phase Total Cost Source of Cost Estimate
Planning/Conceptual Engineering $259,307 | Estimated cost based on scope of work
Environmental Studies $0
Right of Way $0
Design Engineering $0
Construction $60,000 | Funds available
Operations $0

Total: $319,307
% Complete of Design: | N/A
As of Date: | N/A
Expected Useful Life: | N/A




42

MAJOR LINE ITEM BUDGET

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

BUDGET SUMMARY
Task 1 - Project Task 2 - Task 3 -.Gt.)als Task 4 - Tasks - Task 6 - Final
Agency and Existing Concept Concept Total
Management Outreach " . Report
Conditions Development Evaluation

SFMTA $ - $ 28,810.16 | $ 5,058.38 | $ 4979172 | $ 30,384.92 | $ 3,208.24 [ $ 117,253
SFCTA $ 16,581.42 | $ 43,690.02 [ $ 8,216.20 | $ 582440 | $ 4,078.77 | $ 24.663.05 [ $ 103,054
Consultant $ - $ 24,000.00 [ $ 14,999.00 | $ - $ - $ - $ 38,999
Total $ 16,581 | $ 96,500 | $ 28,274 | $ 55,616 | $ 34,464 | $ 27,871 | $ 259,306




DETAILED LABOR COST ESTIMATE - BY AGENCY

San Francisco County Transportation Authority

Base Hourly

Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

Overhead

Fully Burdened

Ll Hours Rate Multiplier Hourly Cost FTE Total
Engineer (5241) 322| $ 88.81 2551 9% 226.35 15% $ 72,885
Transportation Planner llI 254| $ 67.26 260 | % 174.68 12% $ 44,369
Total 576 0.28 $ 117,253

Base Hourly Overhead | Fully Burdened

ST Hours Rate Multiplier Hourly Cost FTE Total
Tansportation Planner 398 $ 57.88 269 | $% 155.88 19% $ 62,040
Planning Intern 172 $ 28.00 269 | % 75.41 8% $ 12,971
Deputy Director of Planning 25| $ 106.56 269 9% 287.00 1% $ 7,175
Communications Manager 35 $ 60.30 269 | % 162.40 2% $ 5,684
Director of Communications 15 $ 95.43 269 | $% 257.02 1% $ 3,855
Senior Graphic Designer 80| $ 52.58 269 | $ 141.61 4% $ 11,329
Total 725 35% $ 103,054

Implementation Budget: The proposed October 2025 amendment would release $30,000 of the original $90,000 implementation reserve to allow further planning and
outreach related to the draft roundabout recommendation. Following the SFCTA Board's adoption of the Mission Bay School Access Plan, the SFMTA may submit an
allocation request form detailing the proposed scope, schedule, cost, and funding for the proposed recommendations to be implemented with Prop K funds, and

request that the Board release the remaining implementation funds from the reserve. These actions may be considered concurrently.

43



44

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2022/23

Project Name: | Mission Bay School Access Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital] (Amendment)

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco County Transportation Authority

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number: Resolution Date:
Total PROP K Requested: $0 Total PROP K Recommended $319,307
SGA Project | 138.901197 Name: | Mission Bay School Access Plan
Number: [NTIP Planning and Capital] -
SFCTA Planning
Sponsor: | San Francisco County Expiration Date: | 09/30/2026
Transportation Authority
Phase: | Planning/Conceptual Engineering Fundshare: | 100.0%
Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year
Fund Source FY2022/23 FY2023/24 FY2025/26 Total
PROP K EP-138 $7,318 $114,567 $20,000 $141,885
Deliverables

1. Quarterly progress reports (QPRs) shall include % complete of the funded phase, % complete by task, work
performed in the prior quarter, work anticipated to be performed in the upcoming quarter, and any issues that may
impact schedule, in addition to all other requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement.

2. Upon completion of Task 2 Outreach, provide Outreach Materials and an Outreach Summary Memorandum with a
summary of feedback.

3. Upon completion of Task 3 Goals and Existing Conditions, submit the Existing Conditions Report and Goals and
Objectives Framework.

4. Upon completion of Task 4 Concept Development, submit a Draft Concepts Memorandum with a summary of the
broader package of active transportation improvements and the 5% conceptual designs for improvements.

5. Upon completion of Task 5 Concept Evaluation and Cost Estimates, submit the Concept Evaluation, Cost Estimate
Matrices, and Roundabout Alternatives Memorandum.

6. Upon completion of Task 6 Report, Recommendations, and Implementation Plan, submit the Final Report.

7. Upon completion of the planning phase, project team shall provide a final report with recommendations for
improvements. This report shall include photos of existing conditions, a summary of public feedback, and
recommendations including detailed plans, cost estimates, and funding options to implement the recommendations.
Project team shall present the final report to the CAC and Board for approval. (Anticipated April 2026).

Special Conditions

1. The recommended allocation is contingent upon amendment of the Prop K Pedestrian Circulation and Safety 5YPP.
See attached 5YPP amendment for details. (Approved Res 23-027, March 2023).




45

2. The recommended amendment is contingent upon SFCTA Board release of $30,000 in sales tax funds previously set
aside for construction of the subject project through approval of Resolution 23-37. Of the $30,000 released, $20,000 is
reflected in SGA 138-901197 and $10,000 is reflected in SGA 140-907111.

Notes

1. The Transportation Authority will share quarterly progress reports with the District Supervisor for this NTIP project.

2. Reminder: All flyers, brochures, posters, websites and other similar materials prepared with Proposition K funding
shall comply with the attribution requirements established in the Standard Grant Agreement.

SGA Project | 138.907198 Name: | Mission Bay School Access Plan
Number: [NTIP Planning and Capital] -
SFMTA Planning

Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Expiration Date: | 09/30/2026
Transportation Agency

Phase: | Planning/Conceptual Engineering Fundshare: | 100.0%

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY2022/23 FY2023/24 Total

PROP K EP-138 $42,969 $64,453 $107,422

Deliverables

1. Quarterly progress reports (QPRs) shall include % complete of the funded phase, % complete by task, work
performed in the prior quarter, work anticipated to be performed in the upcoming quarter, and any issues that may
impact schedule, in addition to all other requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement.

2. Upon completion of Task 2 Outreach, provide Outreach Materials and an Outreach Summary Memorandum with a
summary of feedback.

3. Upon completion of Task 3 Goals and Existing Conditions, submit the Existing Conditions Report and Goals and
Objectives Framework.

4. Upon completion of Task 4 Concept Development, submit a Draft Concepts Memorandum with a summary of the
broader package of active transportation improvements and the 5% conceptual designs for improvements.

5. Upon completion of Task 5 Concept Evaluation and Cost Estimates, submit the Concept Evaluation, Cost Estimate
Matrices, and Roundabout Alternatives Memorandum.

6. Upon completion of Task 6 Report, Recommendations, and Implementation Plan, submit the Final Report.

7. Upon completion of the planning phase, project team shall provide a final report with recommendations for
improvements. This report shall include photos of existing conditions, a summary of public feedback, and
recommendations including detailed plans, cost estimates, and funding options to implement the recommendations.
Project team shall present the final report to the CAC and Board for approval. (Anticipated April 2026).

Special Conditions

1. The recommended allocation is contingent upon amendment of the Prop K Traffic Calming 5YPP. See attached 5YPP
amendment for details. (Approved Res 23-027, March 2023).

Notes

1. The Transportation Authority will share quarterly progress reports with the District Supervisor for this NTIP project.

2. Reminder: All flyers, brochures, posters, websites and other similar materials prepared with Proposition K funding
shall comply with the attribution requirements established in the Standard Grant Agreement.




46

SGA Project | 140-907111 Name: | Mission Bay School Access Plan
Number: [NTIP Planning and Capital]
Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Expiration Date: | 09/30/2026
Transportation Agency
Phase: Fundshare: | 100.0%
Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY2024/25 Total
PROP K EP-140 $70,000 $70,000

Deliverables

1. Deliverables to be determined as part of Board action to release implementation funds.

Special Conditions

1. The recommended allocation is contingent upon amendment of the Prop K amendment of the Pedestrian Circulation
and Safety 5YPP. See attached 5YPP amendment for details. (Approved Res 23-027, March 2023).

2. The $60,000 set aside for plan implementation may be released by the Transportation Authority Board following the
Board's adoption of the Mission Bay School Access Plan and submittal of an Allocation Request Form detailing the
proposed scope, schedule, cost, and funding for the proposed recommendations to be implemented with Prop K funds.

3. The recommended amendment is contingent upon SFCTA Board release of $30,000 in sales tax funds previously set
aside for construction of the subject project through approval of Resolution 23-37. Of the $30,000 released, $20,000 is
reflected in SGA 138-901197 and $10,000 is reflected in SGA 140-907111.

Metric PROP AA TNC TAX PROP K

Actual Leveraging - Current Request No PROP AA No TNC TAX | 0.0%

Actual Leveraging - This Project No PROP AA No TNC TAX | 0.0%




San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2022/23

Project Name: | Mission Bay School Access Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital] (Amendment)

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco County Transportation Authority

EXPENDITURE PLAN SUMMARY

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no

circumstance replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement:

AW

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager
Name: | David Long Mike Pickford
Title: | Planner Principal Transportation Planner
Phone: | (415) 593-1669 (415) 522-4822
Email: | david.long@sfcta.org mike.pickford@sfcta.org




48

Mission Bay School Access Plan

School Site

=== Project Area

16th =t
16th St
16th St
a Eals T

1S PIE

1S PIE

15 PIE

15 PIE




ATTACHMENT 3

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE PROP K STANDARD GRANT AGREEMENT FOR THE
MISSION BAY SCHOOL ACCESS PLAN [NTIP PLANNING AND CAPITAL] (PLAN) TO
ALLOW $30,000 HELD IN RESERVE FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PLAN
RECOMMENDATIONS TO BE USED FOR ADDITIONAL PLANNING AND
OUTREACH; RELEASING $30,000 FROM THE RESERVE; AND APPROPRIATING
$20,000 IN PROP K FUNDS, WITH CONDITIONS, FOR THE PLAN

WHEREAS, In March 2023, through approval of Resolution 23-37, the
Transportation Authority allocated and appropriated a total of $319,307 in Prop K
District 6 Neighborhood Program funds for the Mission Bay School Access Plan,
including $121,885 for the Transportation Authority to lead Plan development,
$107,422 for the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) to support
Plan development, and $90,000 held in reserve for SFMTA for implementation of
Plan recommendations;

WHEREAS, The purpose of the Plan is to identify and mitigate barriers
students and caregivers could experience accessing a new school being built in
Mission Bay; and

WHEREAS, To date, the study team has identified barriers with input from the
community, developed conceptual designs to mitigate those barriers, and sought
feedback from community members on draft recommendations; and

WHEREAS, In response to community feedback, Transportation Authority
staff, with the support of SFMTA staff, is recommending amendment of the Prop K
Standard Grant Agreement (SGA) for the Plan (SGA 138-901197, 140-907111) to
release $30,000 from the reserve - $20,000 for the Transportation Authority and
$10,000 for SFMTA, for additional refinement of concepts intended to improve safety
and connectivity for cyclists traveling through the roundabout where Owens Street
and Mission Bay Drive converge, and additional outreach to share the refined

concepts with the community as summarized in Attachment 1; and

Page 1 of 4



50

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

WHEREAS, The attached revised allocation request form (Attachment 2) for
the Plan updates the scope, schedule, budget and funding plan to reflect the
proposed SGA amendment and also includes updated deliverables, timely use of
funds requirements, and Fiscal Year Cash Flow Distribution Schedules; and

WHEREAS, There are sufficient funds in the Capital Expenditures line item of
the Transportation Authority’s approved Fiscal Year 2025/26 budget to cover the
proposed actions; and

WHEREAS, At its September 24, 2025 meeting, the Community Advisory
Committee was briefed on the subject SGA amendment request and unanimously
adopted a motion of support for the staff recommendation; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby amends the Prop K SGA
for the Plan, releases $30,000 in funds held in reserve for implementation of Plan
recommendations to be used for additional planning and outreach, and appropriates
$20,000 in Prop K funds, with conditions, for the Plan, as detailed in Attachment 2;
and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Capital Improvement Program of the Congestion
Management Program is hereby amended, as appropriate; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby authorizes the actual
expenditure (cash reimbursement) of funds for these activities to take place subject
to the Fiscal Year Cash Flow Distribution Schedules detailed in Attachment 2; and be
it further

RESOLVED, That the Capital Expenditures line item for subsequent fiscal year
annual budgets shall reflect the maximum reimbursement schedule amounts
adopted and the Transportation Authority does not guarantee reimbursement levels
higher than those adopted; and be it further

RESOLVED, That as a condition of this authorization for expenditure, the
project sponsors shall provide the Transportation Authority with any other

information it may request regarding the use of the funds hereby authorized.

Page 2 of 4



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

Attachments:
e Attachment 1 - Proposed SGA Amendment for Mission Bay School Access

Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital] (Amendment)
e Attachment 2 - Allocation Request Form

Page 3 of4

51



52

[ this page intentionally left blank ]

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority



53

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800  info@sfcta.org  www.sfcta.org

Memorandum

AGENDA ITEM 7

DATE: September 25, 2025

TO: Transportation Authority Board

FROM: Anna LaForte - Deputy Director for Policy and Programming

SUBJECT: 10/7/2025 Board Meeting: Allocate $6,606,363 in Prop L Funds, with Conditions,
and Allocate $1,100,000 in Prop AA Funds, with Conditions, for Four Requests

RECOMMENDATION Olinformation [X Action Fund Allocation

Allocate $6,606,363 in Prop L funds, with conditions, to San Fund Programming
Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) for: O Policy/Legislation
1. Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement Program FY26 O Plan/Study

($1,000,000) O Capital Project
2. Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35 ($5,345,363) Oversight/Delivery

3. West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP] ($261,000) O Budget/Finance

Allocate $1,100,000 in Prop AA funds, with conditions, to San 0 Contract/Agreement
Francisco Public Works (SFPW) for: O Other:

4. Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements

SUMMARY

Attachment 1 lists the requests, including phase(s) of work and
supervisorial district(s). Attachment 2 provides a brief
description of the projects. Attachment 3 contains staff
recommendations. Project sponsors will attend the meeting to
answer any questions the Board may have regarding these

requests.

DISCUSSION

Attachment 1 summarizes the subject requests, including information on proposed
leveraging (i.e., stretching Prop L sales tax dollars further by matching them with
other fund sources) compared with the leveraging assumptions in the Prop L
Expenditure Plan. Attachment 2 includes brief project descriptions. Attachment 3
summarizes the staff recommendations for these requests, highlighting special

Page 1 of 2



54

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 7 Page 2 of 2

conditions and other items of interest. An Allocation Request Form for each project is
included in Attachment 5, with more detailed information on scope, schedule,
budget, funding, deliverables, and special conditions.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The recommended action would allocate $6,606,363 in Prop L funds and $1,100,000
in Prop AA funds. The allocations would be subject to the Fiscal Year Cash Flow
Distribution Schedules contained in the attached Allocation Request Forms.

Attachment 4 shows the Prop L and Prop AA Fiscal Year 2025/26 allocations and
appropriations approved to date, with associated annual cash flow commitments as
well as the recommended allocations, appropriations, and cash flow amounts that
are the subject of this memorandum.

Sufficient funds are included in the Transportation Authority’s FY 2025/26 budget.
Furthermore, sufficient funds will be included in future budgets to cover the
recommended cash flow distributions in those fiscal years.

CAC POSITION

The CAC considered this item at its September 24, 2025 meeting and unanimously
adopted a motion of support for the staff recommendation.

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS

e Attachment 1 - Summary of Requests

e Attachment 2 - Project Descriptions

e Attachment 3 - Staff Recommendations

e Attachment 4 - Prop L and Prop AA Allocations Summary - FY25/26
e Attachment 5 - Allocation Request Forms (4)

e Attachment 6 - Resolution



Attachment 1: Summary of Requests Received

55

Leveraging
Current Total Cost for Expected | Actual Leveraging
EP Line No./ | Project Current Prop AA Requested Leveraging by by Project
Source Category ! Sponsor 2 Project Name Prop L Request Request Phase(s) EP Line ° Phase(s)” Phase(s) Requested District(s)
Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement o o . 1,2,3,56,7,
Prop L 17 SFMTA Program FY26 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000 29% 0% Construction 910,11
o . 1,2,3,57,8,
Prop L 17 SFMTA Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35 $ 5,345,363 $ 18,213,383 29% 71% Construction 9 1011
Prop L 25 SFMTA West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP] $ 261,000 $ 261,000 78% 0% Design, Construction 3
Japantown Buchanan Mall o .
Prop AA Ped SFPW $ 1,100,000 | $ 8,010,000 NA 86% Construction 5
Improvements
TOTAL $ 6,606363|% 1,100,000 | $ 8,271,000
Footnotes

1

"EP Line No./Category" is the Prop L Expenditure Plan line number referenced in the Prop L Strategic Plan (e.g. Traffic Signs and Signals Maintenance and Neighborhood Transportation Program) or the
Prop AA Expenditure Plan line number refererenced in the 2022 Prop AA Strategic Plan (e.g. Pedestrian Safety).

2
Acronyms: SFMTA (San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency) and SFPW (San Francisco Public Works)

3

"Expected Leveraging By EP Line" is calculated by dividing the total non-Prop L funds expected to be available for a given Prop L Expenditure Plan line item by the total expected funding for that Prop L
Expenditure Plan line item over the 30-year Expenditure Plan period. For example, expected leveraging of 90% indicates that on average non-Prop L funds should cover 90% of the total costs for all
projects in that program, and Prop L should cover only 10%.

4
"Actual Leveraging by Project Phase" is calculated by dividing the total non-Prop L, non-Prop AA, or non-TNC Tax funds in the funding plan by the total cost for the requested phase or phases. If the
percentage in the "Actual Leveraging” column is lower than in the "Expected Leveraging” column, the request (indicated by yellow highlighting) is leveraging fewer non-Prop L dollars than assumed in the
Expenditure Plan. A project that is well leveraged overall may have lower-than-expected leveraging for an individual or partial phase.



56

Attachment 2: Brief Project Descriptions’

EP Line No./
Category

Project
Sponsor

Project Name

Prop L Funds
Requested

Prop AA Funds
Requested

Project Description

17

SFMTA

Traffic Signal Hardware
Replacement Program

FY26

$1,000,000

This request will fund replacement of an estimated 98 traffic signal controllers manufactured
between 2012 and 2018 with a known firewall-related security vulnerability. Requested funds
will be used to enhance traffic and pedestrian safety by replacing key signal hardware that
needs to be upgraded to current industry standards. Replacing the controllers will prevent
further signal outages due to the security vulnerability. SFMTA anticipates the project to be
open for use by September 2027.

17

SFMTA

Traffic Signal Upgrade
Contract 35

$5,345,363

Requested Prop L funds will leverage $12.3 million in 2024 Healthy, Safe and Vibrant San
Francisco Bond funds to construct traffic-signal related upgrades at 17 locations throughout
the city. Safety and accessibility upgrades include pedestrian countdown signals, accessible
pedestrian signals, new mast arms with larger signal heads, left turn signals, upgraded
streetlighting, 97 new or upgraded curb ramps, and replacement of old/damaged signal
infrastructure. See attached allocation request form for project locations. SFMTA expects the
project to be open for use in December 2027.

25

SFMTA

West Broadway Tunnel
Safety [NTP]

$261,000

District 3 Neighborhood Program funds will be used to design and construct a series of
transportation improvements to address safety on Broadway between Polk and Powell
streets. The scope of work includes restriping vehicle traffic lanes to a narrower width to
encourage lower vehicle speeds while maintaining two traffic lanes in each direction,
installing a speed feedback radar sign facing westbound traffic at Larkin Street to increase
awareness of vehicle speeds, adding PLAYGROUND warning signs and speed limit signs
between Polk and Larkin streets, upgrading the traffic signals at the intersection of Broadway
and Larkin streets with larger more visible lenses and adjusting the timing to slow the
progression of traffic entering the tunnel, and adding bike parking at Broadway and Polk
streets and turn calming at Broadway and Larkin streets. SFMTA will conduct additional
outreach through surveys and mailers during design and construction and anticipates the
project to be open for use in June 2027.

Ped

SFPW

Japantown Buchanan Mall
Improvements

$1,100,000

This request will fund improvements to the Japantown Buchanan Mall, a culturally significant
public plaza on Buchanan between Post and Sutter streets. Improvements include repaving
the uneven walkways, curb ramps, trees and landscaping with culturally relevant plants,
enhancing the existing historic public art, and installing new energy efficient pedestrian
lighting. SFPW anticipates that the project will be open for use by June 2027.

TOTAL

$6,606,363

$1,100,000

" See Attachment 1 for footnotes.




S7

Attachment 3: Staff Recommendations'

EP Line
No./ Project Prop L Funds Prop AA Funds
Category | Sponsor Project Name Recommended Recommended Recommendations
17 SEMTA Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement $1.000,000
Program FY26
17 SFMTA  [Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35 $5,345 363 Spegal c9ndlt|0|.1: Sponsor shall provide d(?cumentatlon of completion of
design prior to reimbursement for construction phase costs.
Special condition: The recommended allocation is contingent upon
amendment of the Neighborhood Transportation Program 5YPP to add the
25 SFMTA - |West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP] $261,000 subject project with funds from the Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project
Placeholder. See attached 5YPP amendment for details.
Special condition: Recommendation is conditioned upon concurrent
amendment of the Prop AA 5-Year Project List to reprogram $700,000 from
the Oakdale Lighting Improvements Project Phase 1 to the subject project.
Ped SEPW Japantown Buchanan Mall $1.100,000 Oakdale Lighting Phase 1 was completed under budget. See attached Prop AA

Improvements

5-Year Project List for details. In Spring 2026, staff plan to advance a funding
request the design phase of Oakdale Lighting Improvements Phases 2 and 3,
estimated to cost $615,000, with Prop L funds from the Equity Priority
Community Program.

TOTAL

$ 6,606,363

$ 1,100,000

' See Attachment 1 for footnotes.



58

Attachment 4.
Prop L Summary - FY2024/25

PROP L SALES TAX

FY 2025/26 Total FY 2025/26 FY 2026/27 FY 2027/28 FY 2028/29 | FY 2029/30
Prior Allocations $ 16,881,000 % 4,601,000|$% 7,540,000 % 4,740,000 | $ - $ -
Current Request(s) $ 6,606,363 |% 875,000 $ 3,686,000 % 1,845363|% 200,000 | $ -
New Total Allocations | $ 23,487,363 | $ 5476,000$ 11,226,000 $% 6,585363|% 200,000 | $ -

The above table shows maximum annual cash flow for all FY 2025/26 allocations and appropriations approved to date,

along with the current recommended allocations.

Prop L Expenditure Plan

Paratransit
11.4%

ransit Maintenance &

Enhancements 41.2%
Streets &

Prop L Investments To Date (Including Pending
Allocations) Streets and

Transit

Paratransit
11.2%

Freeways
16.2%

Transportation
System
Development

Freeways . and
18.9% Mam;cﬁ;ance Major Management
NEIT Enhancements Tra.nsit L
Transit 46.0% Projects
Projects . : 24.2%
22.6% ansportation System
Development &
Management
5.9%
PROP AA VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE
FY 2025/26 Total FY 2025/26 FY 2026/27 FY 2027/28 FY 2028/29 | FY 2029/30
Prior Allocations $ 2,360,572 |$ 950,000 | $ 950,000 | $ 460,572 $ -1$ -
Current Request(s) $ 1,100,000 | $ 275,000 | $ 825,000 | $ -1$ -1$ -
New Total Allocations [ $ 3,460,572 |$ 1,225,000 ($ 1,775,000 | $ 460,572 $ -1$ -

The above table shows total cash flow for all FY 2025/26 allocations approved to date, along with the

current recommended allocations.

Prop AA Expenditure Plan

Transit

25%

Street
50%

Ped
25%

Prop AA Investments To Date (Including Pending
Allocations)

Transit
24%

Ped
25%

Street
51%




ATTACHMENT 5 59

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement Program FY26

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

PROP L Expenditure Plans | Traffic Signs and Signals Maintenance

Current PROP L Request: | $1,000,000

Supervisorial Districts | District 01, District 02, District 03, District 05, District 06, District 07, District 09,
District 10, District 11

REQUEST

Brief Project Description

Replace approximately 98 traffic signal controllers manufactured between 2012 to 2018 with a known firewall related
security vulnerability. Replacing the traffic signal controllers will prevent signal outages due to the security vulnerability.
Requested funds will be used to enhance traffic and pedestrian safety by replacing key signal hardware that needs to be
upgraded to current industry standards.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach

The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) is seeking $1,000,000 in Prop L funds, including $500,000
programmed in FY 2024/25 and $500,000 programmed in FY 2025/26 towards the construction phase of this project. The
project will replace approximately 98 traffic signal controllers with a known firewall related security vulnerability.

Around 2018, City staff discovered a vulnerability with signal controllers that could allow signal outages to occur under
certain conditions. A replacement effort commenced to identify and replace controllers built from around 2012 to 2018.
Controllers manufactured in 2019 were thoroughly tested and found to address the vulnerability.

After a widespread signal outage occurred in 2022 related to the firewall related security vulnerability, the SFMTA Signal
Shop identified approximately 350 traffic signal controllers that still needed replacement. Replacement of the controllers
continued with 252 controllers replaced in 2024 and 2025 using General Fund Population Growth (Proposition B) and
other MTA funding. Another signal outage occurred in 2025 which further highlighted the need to prioritize the
replacement of controllers with the firewall vulnerability. This Prop L request is estimated to allow for the replacement of
approximately 98 controllers with the firewall vulnerability needing to still be replaced at this time.

Since no excavation is needed, the SFMTA Signal Shop can procure and install the 98 traffic signal controllers proposed
for replacement using the Prop L funds. No construction contract advertised for competitive bid is needed.

See Table 1 (attached) for list of 98 locations proposed for controller replacements using Prop L funds. Final locations will

be determined by the SFMTA Signal Shop as they continue to work through the remaining intersections that need
controller replacements.

Project Location

A list of candidate locations is provided in Table 1 for reference.



60

Is this project in an Equity Priority Community? | Yes

Does this project benefit disadvantaged populations? | Yes

Project Phase(s)

Construction (CON)

5YPP/STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION

Type of Project in the Prop L 5YPP/Prop | Named Project
AA Strategic Plan?

Is requested amount greater than the | Less than or Equal to Programmed Amount
amount programmed in the relevant
5YPP or Strategic Plan?

PROP L Amount | $1,000,000.00




San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement Program FY26

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type: | Categorically Exempt

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End
Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year

Planning/Conceptual Engineering (PLAN)
Environmental Studies (PA&ED) Oct-Nov-Dec | 2025 Oct-Nov-Dec | 2025
Right of Way
Design Engineering (PS&E)
Advertise Construction
Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract) Jan-Feb-Mar | 2026
Operations (OP)
Open for Use Jul-Aug-Sep | 2027
Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure) Jan-Feb-Mar | 2028

SCHEDULE DETAILS

No detailed design phase is needed for this project.

Project coordination will be performed on a case-by-case basis due to the variety of project locations.

Before installation of signal hardware, the project will request environmental clearance review under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for all candidate locations. For similar projects, the environmental review was
successful without encountering any issues. The same environmental process is expected for this year's request.



62

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement Program FY26

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total
EP-217: Traffic Signs and Signals Maintenance $0 $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000
Phases In Current Request Total: $0 $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000
Phase Total Cost PROP L - Source of Cost Estimate
Current
Request
Planning/Conceptual Engineering $0
Environmental Studies $0
Right of Way $0
Design Engineering $0
Construction $1,000,000 $1,000,000 | Based on estimates from similar projects
Operations $0
Total: $1,000,000 $1,000,000

% Complete of Design: | 0.0%

As of Date: | 07/25/2025

Expected Useful Life: | 15 Years




MAJOR LINE ITEM BUDGET

SUMMARY BY MAJOR LINE ITEM (BY AGENCY LA

Budget Line Item Totals Cost P?r # of Controllers SFMTA
Intersection
1. SFMTA Signal Shop Labor to install controllers $517,049 | $ 5,276 98 $517,049
2. Construction Management/ Support $98,000 | $ 1,000 98 $98,000
3. Materials $294,000 | $ 3,000 98 $294,000
4.10% Contingency $90,951 | $ 966 98 $90,951
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION PHASE $1,000,000 $1,000,000




64

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action:

FY2025/26

Project Name:

Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement Program FY26

Primary Sponsor:

San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number:

Resolution Date:

Total PROP L Requested: $1,000,000 Total PROP L Recommended $1,000,000
SGA Project Name: | Traffic Signal Hardware
Number: Replacement Program FY26
Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Expiration Date: | 03/31/2028
Transportation Agency
Phase: | Construction Fundshare: | 100.0%

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY2025/26

FY2026/27 FY2027/28

FY2028/29 Total

PROP L EP-217

$600,000

$350,000 $50,000

$0

$1,000,000

Deliverables

1. Quarterly progress reports (QPRs) shall include % complete to date, photos of work being performed, list of locations
where work has been done to date, upcoming project milestones, and delivery updates including work performed in the
prior quarter, work anticipated to be performed in the upcoming quarter, and any issues that may impact delivery, in

addition to all other requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement.

2. With the first QPR, Sponsor shall provide 2-3 photos of typical before conditions and on completion of the project
Sponsor shall provide 2-3 photos of completed work.

Metric PROP AA TNC TAX PROP L
Actual Leveraging - Current Request No PROP AA No TNC TAX | 0.0%
Actual Leveraging - This Project No PROP AA No TNC TAX | 0.0%




San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement Program FY26

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN SUMMARY

Current PROP L Request: | $1,000,000

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no

circumstance replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement:

ML

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager
Name: | Geraldine De Leon Kathryn Studwell
Title: | Lead Engineer Grant Administration Manager
Phone: | (415) 646-4557 (415) 517-7015
Email: | geraldine.deleon@sfmta.com kathryn.studwell@sfmta.com




66 Table 1. Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement FY 25-26
Candidate Locations for Traffic Signal Controller Replacements Proposed to be Funded with Prop L

# Intersection Supervisor District
1 4th Ave & California 1
2 4th St & Channel 6
3 5th Ave & Geary 1
4 5th Ave & Lincoln 7
5 6th Ave & California 1
6 6th Ave & Lincoln 7
7 7th Ave & Lincoln 7
8 7th St & Brannan 6
9 7th St & Townsend 6
10 8th Ave & California 1
11 8th Ave & Geary 1
12 10th Ave & California 1
13 10th Ave & Geary 1
14 12th Ave & California 1
15 15th St & Potrero 0,9
16 16th St & Capp 9
17 16th St & Harrison 9
18 16th St & Rhode Island 6,10
19 16th St & Vermont 6,10
20 20th St & Mission 9
21 22nd Ave & Geary 1
22 26th Ave & Geary 1
23 27th Ave & Geary 1
24 28th Ave & Geary 1
25 36th Ave & Geary 1
26 Acton, Mission & Sickles 11
27 Alameda & Potrero 0,9
28 Alemany & Geneva 11
29 Amador, Cargo & lllinois 10
30 Arguello & California 1,2
31 Bacon & San Bruno 9
32 Battery & Clay 3
33 Beale & Mission 6
34 Brookdale & Geneva 10,11
35 Bush & Mason 3
36 Bush & Powell 3
37 California & Kearny 3
38 California & Laurel 2
39 California & Lyon 2
40 California & Walnut 2
41 California, Maple & Parker 2
42 Charles J Brenham & McAllister 5
43 Clay & Drumm 3




Candidate Locations for Traffic Signal Controller Replacements Proposed to be Funded with Prop L

Table 1. Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement FY 25-26

# Intersection Supervisor District
44 Clay & Kearny 3
45 Clay & Powell 3
46 Clay & Sansome 3
47 Cyril Magnin & O'Farrell 3,5
48 Davis & Sacramento 3
49 Delano & Geneva 11
50 Dewey, Laguna Honda & Woodside 7
51 Drumm & Sacramento 3
52 Dwight, Paul & San Bruno 9,10
53 Eddy & Mason 3,5
54 Ellis & Mason 3,5
55 Esquina & Geneva 10
56 Fillmore & Sacramento 2
57 Folsom & Russ 6
58 Forest Hill Station & Laguna Honda Blvd 7
59 Geary & Hyde 3,5
60 Geary & Jones 3,5
61 Geary & Mason 3
62 Geary & Polk 3,5
63 Geary & Powell 3
64 Geneva & Howth 11
65 Golden Gate & Jones 5
66 Grant & Post 3
67 Grant & Sacramento 3
68 Grant & Sutter 3
69 Howard & Main 6
70 Howard & Spear 6
71 Howard & Steuart 6
72 Howth & Ocean 7,11
73 Hyde & O'Farrell 5
74 lllinois & Mariposa 6,10
75 Jackson & Mason 3
76 JFK Dr & Stanyan 1,5
77 Jones & Sutter 3
78 Jones, Market & McAllister 5,6
79 Kezar Midblock JFK & Waller 5,7
80 Larkin & O'Farrell 5
81 Larkin & Sutter 3
82 Lawrence, Mission & Oliver 11
83 Leavenworth & McAllister 5
84 Leavenworth & Post 3
85 Lowell, Mission & Naglee 11
86 Lusk & Townsend 6

67



68 Table 1. Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement FY 25-26
Candidate Locations for Traffic Signal Controller Replacements Proposed to be Funded with Prop L

# Intersection Supervisor District
87 Main & Mission 6
88 Mason & O'Farrell 3,5
89 Mason & Post 3
90 Mission & Spear 6
91 Mission & Steuart 3,6
92 Mission, Niagara, Pope & Rolph 11
93 North Point & Powell 3
94 O'Farrell & Taylor 3,5
95 Post & Powell 3
96 Powell & Sacramento 3
97 Powell & Washington 3
98 Sutter & Taylor 3




ATTACHMENT 5 69

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

PROP L Expenditure Plans | Traffic Signs and Signals Maintenance

Current PROP L Request: | $5,345,363

Supervisorial Districts | District 01, District 02, District 03, District 05, District 07, District 08, District 09,
District 10, District 11

REQUEST

Brief Project Description

This request will fund the construction phase of traffic-signal related upgrades at 17 locations across the City. Upgrades
include pedestrian countdown signals (PCS), accessible pedestrian signals (APS), new mast arms with higher-visibility
12-inch signal heads, left turn signals, upgraded streetlighting, curb ramps, and replacement of old/damaged signal
infrastructure. 8 of the intersections are located on the Vision Zero High Injury Network, which encompasses the
pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicle high injury corridors. These signal upgrades will improve accessibility and safety for all.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach

See attached.

Project Location

17 intersections spread throughout the City of San Francisco (see attached list and map)

Is this project in an Equity Priority Community? | Yes

Does this project benefit disadvantaged populations? | Yes

Project Phase(s)

Construction (CON)

5YPP/STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION

Type of Project in the Prop L 5YPP/Prop | Named Project
AA Strategic Plan?

Is requested amount greater than the | Less than or Equal to Programmed Amount
amount programmed in the relevant
5YPP or Strategic Plan?




70

Type of Project in the Prop L 5YPP/Prop
AA Strategic Plan?

Named Project

PROP L Amount

$5,345,363.00




San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type: | Categorically Exempt

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End

Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year

Planning/Conceptual Engineering (PLAN)

Environmental Studies (PA&ED) Jan-Feb-Mar | 2018 Jan-Feb-Mar | 2021
Right of Way

Design Engineering (PS&E) Oct-Nov-Dec | 2017 Oct-Nov-Dec | 2025
Advertise Construction Oct-Nov-Dec | 2025

Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract) Jul-Aug-Sep | 2026

Operations (OP)

Open for Use Oct-Nov-Dec | 2027

Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure) Jul-Aug-Sep | 2028

SCHEDULE DETAILS

A significant portion of the construction phase of Contract 35 is being funded by the 2024 Healthy, Safe and Vibrant San
Francisco Bond, which requires the majority of the construction funds be spent by October 2027 to meet a timely-use-of
funds deadline.

Contract 35 construction work will be coordinated with the following projects: Various Locations (VL) Pavement
Renovation 80 (near Larkin/Post intersection), Sickles Avenue Streetscape Project (near Alemany/Sickles), and 29 Sunset
Muni Forward project (near 25th Ave/Clement). Note that the final design for Contract 35 took into consideration elements
of the VL 80, Sickles Streetscape, and 29 Sunset Muni Forward projects to avoid conflicts.

Various Locations Pavement Renovation 80 (near Larkin/Post intersection) paving project is likely to advertise in Fall 2025,
with construction schedules overlapping with Contract 35. However, because both projects have multiple locations, the
work can be easily scheduled to avoid conflicts. Project excavation limits were adjusted on Contract 35 and VL 80 to avoid
conflicts.

Sickles Avenue Streetscape Project (near Alemany/Sickles) design has been completed, but final construction phase
schedule is on hold while construction phase funding is finalized. Since there is no overlap in the excavation scope
between the two projects, coordination between the projects should not be an issue.



72

29 Sunset Muni Forward project is an on-going improvement project that includes transit improvement scope at 25th
Ave/Clement. That work can be coordinated with Contract 35 signal work at 25th Ave/Clement.



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name:

Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35

Primary Sponsor:

San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total
EP-217: Traffic Signs and Signals Maintenance $0 $5,345,363 $0 $5,345,363
2024 Healthy, Safe and Vibrant San Francisco $0 $12,300,000 $0 $12,300,000
Bond
SFMTA Operating Funds $0 $0 $568,020 $568,020
Phases In Current Request Total: $0 $17,645,363 $568,020 $18,213,383

FUNDING PLAN - ENTIRE PROJECT (ALL PHASES)

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

PROP L $0 $5,345,363 $0 $5,345,363
2024 Healthy, Safe and Vibrant San Francisco $0 $12,300,000 $0 $12,300,000
Bond
PROP K: Prop K Sales Tax $0 $0 $840,000 $840,000
SFMTA Local Funds $0 $0 $1,054,146 $1,054,146
SFMTA Operating Funds $0 $0 $568,020 $568,020

Funding Plan for Entire Project Total: $0 $17,645,363 $2,462,166 $20,107,529

Phase Total Cost PROP L - Source of Cost Estimate
Current
Request
Planning/Conceptual Engineering $0
Environmental Studies $0
Right of Way $0
Design Engineering $1,894,146 Costs incurred to date and expected cost to finish
Construction $18,213,383 $5,345,363 | Cost Estimate at 95% design complete and Previous SFMTA Projects
Operations $0
Total: $20,107,529 $5,345,363




74

% Complete of Design:

95.0%

As of Date:

08/22/2025

Expected Useful Life:

30 Years




San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop L/Prop AA/Prop D TNC Allocation Request Form

MAJOR LINE ITEM BUDGET
SUMMARY BY MAJOR LINE ITEM (BY AGENCY LABOR BY TASK)

Budget Line Item Totals % of contract SFPW SFMTA Contractor
1. Contract
Task 1: Curb Ramps $ 2,920,000 $ 2,920,000
Task 2: Catchbasins & Sewer Laterals $ 900,000 $ 900,000
Task 3: Signals /Mountings $ 1,100,000 $ 1,100,000
Task 4: Poles $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000
Task 5: Pullboxes/Conduits $ 1,800,000 $ 1,800,000
Task 6: Wiring $ 675,000 $ 675,000
Task 7: Traffic Routing $ 680,000 $ 680,000
Task 8: Misc ** $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000
Task 9: PGE Service Points Contracts $ 300,000 $ 300,000
Contract Subtotal $ 10,875,000 $ 300,000 [ $ 10,575,000
2. SFMTA-Provided Materials
Controller Cabinets $ 480,000 $ 480,000
Accessible Ped Signals $ 229,000 $ 229,000
Ped Countdown Modules $ 23,500 $ 23,500
Emergency Vehicle Pre-emption Radio $ 96,000 $ 96,000
Video Detection Camera $ 50,000 $ 50,000
Materials Subtotal $ 878,500 $ 878,500
3. Construction Management/ Support
Muni Overhead Wire De-energization $ 72,000 3 72,000
Construction Engineering / Inspection $ 4,450,000 41% $ 3,600,000 | $ 850,000
Signal Shop $ 485,000 $ 485,000
Paint Shop $ 289,000 $ 289,000
Sign Shop $ 102,000 $ 102,000
Meter Shop $ 8,000 $ 8,000
Labor Subtotal $ 5,406,000 50% $ 3,600,000 | $ 1,806,000
4. Other Direct Costs * $ 1,000 $ 1,000
5. Contingency $ 1,052,883.00 10% $ 200,000 | $ 100,000 | $ 752,883
$ 18,213,383 $ 3,801,000 | $ 3,084,500 | $ 11,327,883
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION PHASE

* City Attorney Review, ** Key tasks includes remove and salvage equipment, permit fees, potholing, and mobilization.



76

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number: Resolution Date:
Total PROP L Requested: $5,345,363 Total PROP L Recommended $5,345,363
SGA Project Name: | Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35
Number:
Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Expiration Date: | 12/31/2028

Transportation Agency

Phase: | Construction Fundshare: | 29.35%

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY2025/26 FY2026/27 FY2027/28 FY2028/29 Total
PROP L EP-201 $200,000 $3,200,000 $1,745,363 $200,000 $5,345,363
Deliverables

1. Quarterly progress reports (QPRs) shall include % complete to date, photos of work being performed, improvements
completed at each location to date, upcoming project milestones (e.g. ground-breaking, ribbon-cutting), and delivery
updates including work performed in the prior quarter, work anticipated to be performed in the upcoming quarter, and
any issues that may impact delivery, in addition to all other requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement.

2. With the first QPR, SFMTA shall provide 2-3 photos of typical before conditions; with the first quarterly report following
initiation of fieldwork Sponsor shall provide a photo documenting compliance with the Prop L attribution requirements as
described in the SGA; and on completion of the project Sponsor shall provide 2-3 photos of completed work.

Special Conditions

1. Sponsor required to provide documentation of completion of design prior to reimbursement of construction costs to
satisfy Deliverable #1 of the design phase grant (SGA 133-907060).

Metric PROP AA TNC TAX PROP L

Actual Leveraging - Current Request No PROP AA No TNC TAX | 70.65%

Actual Leveraging - This Project No PROP AA No TNC TAX | 73.42%




San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN SUMMARY

Current PROP L Request: | $5,345,363

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no

circumstance replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement:

GD

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager
Name: | Geraldine De Leon Kathryn Studwell
Title: | Lead Engineer Grant Administration Manager
Phone: | (415) 646-4557 (415) 517-7015
Email: | geraldine.deleon@sfmta.com kathryn.studwell@sfmta.com




78

Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35 — Construction Phase
Detailed Scope & Project Benefits

The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) is seeking $5,345,363 in Prop L
Sales Tax funds toward the construction phase of traffic signal upgrades and related pedestrian
improvements at 17 locations to be constructed under Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35. Signal
visibility improvements will include new poles with larger signal heads. Related pedestrian safety
improvements include pedestrian countdown signals (PCS), accessible pedestrian signals (APS),
upgraded streetlighting, and upgraded curb ramps to the latest standards and to provide an
accessible landing for the APS, as well as new curb ramps where they are missing. Other
improvements at signal upgrade locations will include new controllers, conduit, and wiring where
they are needed to implement the signal modifications. 8 of the 17 locations are located on the
Vision Zero High Injury Network, and the planned signal improvements are intended to reduce
injuries for pedestrians, cyclists, and motorists.

The specific scope for each location under this project is described in Table 1. The table describes
the intended project scope, supervisorial districts, and whether the intersection is located on the

Vision Zero High Injury Network.

Changes to Scope, Schedule, and Budget

Scope Changes

The final list for Contract 35 includes 17 locations, a change from the list of 23 locations in the
original design phase Prop K allocation from 2017 (SGA 133-907060) and 22 locations in the
Prop L FY 24-28 Project Information Form for the Traffic Signs and Signals Maintenance 5-Year
Prioritization Program.

Taking into account the Prop K SGA that set up original design phase funding, the Prop L FY 24-
28 Project Information Form, and the Prop L SGA that moved construction phase funds from
Contract 35 to Contract 36 — Additional Funds project (SGA 217-907004), the number of locations
included as part of the Contract 35 scope has fluctuated over the years. In the end, seven (7)
intersections were removed and implemented as part of other projects as follows:

e The five (5) locations of Gough/Haight/Market, Folsom/19th St, Folsom/21st St,
Folsom/22nd St, and Folsom/23rd St were moved via change order to the Contract 36
Signal Upgrade project for faster implementation. In particular, the scope for the Folsom
locations was moved to Contract 36 to address expiring Affordable Housing and
Sustainable Communities (AHSC) grant funding. The signal work at the 4 Folsom
locations was completed in early 2025, and Gough/Haight/Market work is on track to be
completed in late 2025.

e Geneva/Naples was completed as part of the Geneva Signal Upgrade project which
finished construction in 2023.



e Masonic/Page was completed using city forces in 2018.
Schedule Changes

Since the design for Contract 35 started in early 2018, the project has been delayed due to various
reasons including other projects/tasks being prioritized during the pandemic leading to staffing
shortage for signal design engineers at SFMTA, staffing shortage at Public Works for curb ramp
designers, curb ramp design process taking longer than originally expected due to an increased
focus on making sure that curb ramps meet strict flat landing related guidelines for accessible
pedestrian signal (APS) accessibility, and a long backlog for critical elevation surveys needed for
curb ramp design. More recently, delivery of the Contract 35 scope compared to the schedule in
the FY 24-28 PIF was further delayed because of the MTA/Public Works project team needing to
focus on completing design for Gough/Haight/Market, Folsom/19th St, Folsom/21st St,
Folsom/22nd St, and Folsom/23rd St when it was decided to move those intersections to Contract
36 for faster implementation.

Budget Changes

Due to the various scope and schedule changes described above, the Contract 35 budget needs
significantly increased for design and construction phases. For design phase, an additional
$1,054,146 in MTA funds were identified to meet the increased budget needs. For construction
phase, an additional $12.3M in funding was identified from the 2024 Healthy, Safe and Vibrant
San Francisco Bond.

Compared to the construction phase budget listed in the FY 24-28 Prop L PIF for Contract 35, the
actual available Prop L construction phase budget decreased from $7,104,000 to $5,345,363, a
reduction of $1,758,637. The $1,758,637 reduction in available Prop L funding was due to funding
needing to be moved from Contract 35 to Contract 36 to allow faster implementation of
Gough/Haight/Market, Folsom/19th St, Folsom/21st St, Folsom/22nd St, and Folsom/23rd St as
part of a change order to Contract 36 (217-907004). The Prop L amount requested as part of this
current ARF was accordingly reduced to $5,345,363.

Location Selection Criteria

The intersections in this scope were selected after careful review by SFMTA staff of traffic
operations and collision patterns on a regular basis. Locations are prioritized based on collision
history, traffic volumes, benefits to roadway users including pedestrians, bicyclists, transit and
motorists, proximity to schools or senior centers and any joint departmental opportunities (e.g.
scheduled paving projects, corridor improvements). All supervisorial districts are represented in
the Contract 35 scope except Districts 4 and 6. District 4 has only 4% of the City's traffic signals,
many of which are relatively new and thus are not in need of upgrades. Ongoing projects in District
4 include a permanent signal at 41st Ave/Lincoln and new signals at 45" Ave/Lincoln and La
Playa/Lincoln. District 6 has many signal upgrades being implemented by projects currently under
design or construction such as Folsom Streetscape Project, 13t Street Safety Improvements, and
Transbay Howard Streetscape Project.

79



80

SFMTA has received 311 requests for signal upgrades at many project locations, with the most
requests occurring at 25th Ave/Clement, 25th Ave/Anza, Anza/Stanyan, Alemany/Sickles,
California/Larkin, and Twin Peaks/Portola.

Implementation:

Alemany/Sickles and Baker/Hayes are the only intersections in the project that are proposing
changes that require a Public Hearing. At Alemany/Sickles, two traffic islands were proposed to
be removed to add a left turn pocket and improve intersection geometry. At Baker/Hayes, some
minor parking removal was proposed due to widened crosswalks. The proposals were presented
at a public hearing on 10/30/2020 and approved without any objections. The approved changes
will be implemented during construction.

SFMTA’s Sustainable Streets Division has been managing the scope of the detailed design.
SFPW’s Infrastructure Design and Construction (IDC) division will manage the issuance and
administration of the contract for construction by a competitively bid contract.

Task: Work Performed By:
e Construction Management SFPW Infrastructure Construction Management
e Contract Support SFPW Infrastructure Design and Construction

e Construction Support SFMTA Sustainable Streets Division



San Francisco County Transportation Authority

Prop L/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

81

TABLE 1. CONTRACT 35 LOCATIONS

2022
. SFCT{\ ]j:qulty Vlsmfl PCS upgrades Upgraded Curb Ramps New .Slfgrfa.l Muni | Supervisor
# Intersection Priority Zero High PR (Upgraded/New per Visibility R A
L. . planned Streetlighting i APS Lines | District
Communities Injury location) Upgrades
Network
1 6th Avenue & Irving Street - -- PCS missing at all Yes 8 Upgraded Yes Yes N 7
crosswalks
PCS missing at all
2 25th Avenue & Clement Street Yes - crosswalks Yes 6 Upgraded/2 New Yes Yes 29 1
PCS missing at all
3 25th Avenue & Anza Street - - crosswalks Yes 6 Upgraded/2 New Yes Yes 29 1
4 30th Avenue & Fulton Street - Yes PCS missing crossing Yes 8 Upgraded Yes Yes 5,5R 1
30th Ave
5 36th Avenue & Fulton Street - Yes PCS missing crossing Yes 8 Upgraded Yes Yes 5,5R 1
36th Ave
6 29th Street & San Jose Avenue - Yes PeS mlzsgltr}llgsctrossmg Yes 8 Upgraded Yes Yes - 8,9
PCS missing crossing J, 24,
7 30th Street & San Jose Avenue - Yes 30th St -- 5 Upgraded/2 New Yes Yes 36 8,9
8 Anza Street & Stanyan Street - - PCS missing at all Yes 8 Upgraded/2 New Yes Yes - 1,2
crosswalks
9 Baker Street & Hayes Street -- -- PCS missing at all Yes - Yes Yes 6 5
crosswalks
10 |  Evans Avenue & Phelps Street - Yes - Yes - - Yes 19 10
11 Haight Street & Steiner Street - - PCS missing at all Yes - Yes Yes 7 5
crosswalks
12 Holloway Avenue & Junipero Serra Yes - PCS missing crossing Yes B Yes Yes 29 711
Boulevard Holloway
Portola Drive & Twin Peaks PCS missing crossing -
13 Boulevard -- -- Twin Peaks Yes -- Yes Yes 48,52 7,8
14 16th Street & Sanchez Street - -- PCS missing crossing Yes 8 Upgraded Yes Yes - 8
Sanchez
Alemany Boulevard & Sickles PCS missing crossing
15 ’ -
Avenue Yes Yes Sickles Yes 6 Upgtraded/2 New Yes Yes 1
16 California Street & Larkin Street -- Yes PCS missing at all Yes 8 Upgraded Yes Yes Cable 3
crosswalks Car
17 Larkin Street & Post Street Yes Yes PCS missing at all -- 8 Upgraded Yes Yes 2 3
crosswalks >

Page 1 of 1



8 2 San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop L/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

—

i St
Califommia

=, Geary Bivd

ER

out i
RlCHMv ,
¥ Fuiton St 2 0
& Fu w " .
' ! , GOLDEN
GATE PARK

Lincotn Way ' frving St

Kirkham

Baibon St

Fuon St

St
OUTER SUNSET =
SUNSET DISTRICT

WEST PORTAL

-

S "
PAKESHORE
““ STONESTQWN
P g
‘ Ay

INGLESIDE

PARKMERCED

Location

6th Avenue & Irving Street
25th Avenue & Clement Street
25th Avenue & Anza Street
30th Avenue & Fulton Street
36th Avenue & Fulton Street
29th Street & San Jose Avenue
30th Street & San Jose Avenue
Anza Street & Stanyan Street
Baker Street & Hayes Street

O[N] WIN|—=|3H

MARINA DISTRICT

PACIFIC HEIGHTS

& JAPANTOWN

HAIGHT-ASHBURY

Fragetich =

17ih St

NOE VALLEY __ )

’.x-: ar Chavez 51

GLEN PARK

T30 &
2 Y
&

. BALEBDA PARK ™

EXCELSIOR

OCEANY CROCKER-AMAZON
Sy,

e T

L0

CHINATOWN
] ILL pine St
UNION SQUARE <5

e

NORTH BEACH

o
&

%
%5 /

' « MISSION BAY,

POTRERO HILL

I!DIA BASIN

RNAL HEIGHT
BE L HEIGHTS ~

PORTOLA

BAYVIEW

|3
v

.
i

MCLAREN PARK
VISITACION
CANDLESTICK

VALLEY POINTSHA

e

Location

10

Evans Avenue & Phelps Street

11

Haight Street & Steiner Street

12

Holloway Avenue & Junipero Serra Boulevard

13

Portola Dr & Twin Peaks Blvd

14

16th Street & Sanchez Street

15

Alemany Boulevard & Sickles Avenue

16

California Street & Larkin Street

17

Larkin Street & Post Street

Page 1 of 1












86 ATTACHMENT 5
San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP]

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

PROP L Expenditure Plans | Neighborhood Transportation Program

Current PROP L Request: | $261,000

Supervisorial District | District 03

REQUEST

Brief Project Description

The West Broadway Tunnel Safety project will improve safety and slow traffic speeds at the west end of the Robert C.
Levy (Broadway) Tunnel. The project will design and implement a series of safety improvements to roadway markings,
signage, and traffic signals on Broadway between Polk and Powell streets, while maintaining two lanes in each direction.
The project also includes bike corrals at Broadway and Polk streets.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach

At the request of District 3 Supervisor Danny Sauter, SFMTA is requesting Prop L Neighborhood Program funds to design
and construct safety the West Broadway Tunnel Safety Project. This project is located on Broadway between Polk Street
and Powell Street. Broadway is the primary arterial street between North Beach/Chinatown and the western parts of the
city. The segment between Larkin Street and Stockton Street has been identified as a Vision Zero High Injury Corridor.
The project aims to address vehicle speeds and pedestrian safety concerns through a series of improvements to roadway
markings, signage and existing traffic signals. Specific improvements include the following:

« Restripe vehicle traffic lanes to a narrower width to encourage lower vehicle speeds while maintaining two traffic
lanes in each direction.

¢ Install a speed feedback radar sign facing westbound traffic at Larkin Street to increase awareness of vehicle speeds.
There is a similar sign currently posted at Powell Street facing eastbound traffic.

¢ Add PLAYGROUND warning signs and speed limit signs between Polk Street and Larkin Street.

e Upgrade the traffic signals at the intersection of Broadway and Larkin Street with larger more visible lenses and
adjust the timing to slow the progression of traffic entering the tunnel.

« Add bike parking at Broadway and Polk Street, and turn calming at Broadway and Larkin Street.

Community outreach will be conducted in partnership with District 3 Supervisor Sauter’s office, who recently coordinated a
community walkthrough to inform this funding request. Additional outreach to the community will be performed by SFMTA
staff during the design and construction phases through online surveys and informational mailers.

The West Broadway Tunnel Safety Project will be designed and implemented by SFMTA engineering and operations staff.
By funding both phases now, the project can proceed seamlessly from design engineering to project approval and
construction. Many of the improvements can be implemented by SFMTA operations staff within a relatively short time
frame, however the larger traffic signals and speed feedback radar sign have long lead times for equipment procurement,
which are reflected in the proposed schedule.

The Transportation Authority’s Neighborhood Transportation Program (NTP) is intended to strengthen project pipelines



87

and advance the delivery of community-supported neighborhood-scale projects, especially in Equity Priority Communities
and other neighborhoods with high unmet needs.

Project Location

Broadway, from Polk Street to Powell Street

Is this project in an Equity Priority Community? | No

Does this project benefit disadvantaged populations? | Yes

Project Phase(s)

Design Engineering (PS&E), Construction (CON)

Justification for Multi-phase Request

Multi-phase allocation is recommended given short duration of design phase and potential for concurrent implementation
of various project elements. Striping and signage improvements can be implemented by SFMTA staff within a relatively
short time frame, however the larger traffic signals and speed feedback radar sign have long lead times for equipment
procurement. Requesting funding for both phases of work will ensure that the project can be implemented as quickly as
the project can be designed.

5YPP/STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION

Type of Project in the Prop L 5YPP/Prop | Project Drawn from Placeholder
AA Strategic Plan?

Is requested amount greater than the | Less than or Equal to Programmed Amount
amount programmed in the relevant
5YPP or Strategic Plan?

PROP L Amount | $948,355.00




88

San Francisco County Transportation Authority

Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action:

FY2025/26

Project Name:

West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP]

Primary Sponsor:

San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type:

Categorically Exempt

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End
Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year

Planning/Conceptual Engineering (PLAN) Apr-May-Jun | 2025 Jul-Aug-Sep | 2025
Environmental Studies (PA&ED)
Right of Way
Design Engineering (PS&E) Jan-Feb-Mar | 2026 Apr-May-Jun | 2026
Advertise Construction
Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract) Jul-Aug-Sep | 2026
Operations (OP)
Open for Use Apr-May-Jun | 2027
Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure) Apr-May-Jun | 2027

SCHEDULE DETAILS

Community Outreach is planned as informational mailers and coordination with the District 3 Supervisor's Office in early
2026. No online surveys are planned at this time.



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action:

FY2025/26

Project Name:

West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP]

Primary Sponsor:

San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total
EP-225: Neighborhood Transportation Program $261,000 $0 $0 $261,000
Phases In Current Request Total: $261,000 $0 $0 $261,000

Phase Total Cost PROP L - Source of Cost Estimate
Current
Request
Planning/Conceptual Engineering $0
Environmental Studies $0
Right of Way $0
Design Engineering $75,000 $75,000 | SFMTA Staff estimate based on similar work
Construction $186,000 $186,000 | SFMTA Staff estimate based on similar work
Operations $0
Total: $261,000 $261,000
% Complete of Design: | 0.0%
As of Date: | 09/11/2025
Expected Useful Life: | 30 Years




20 San Francisco County Transportation Authority

Prop L/Prop AA/Prop D TNC Allocation Request Form

DESIGN PHASE - SUMMARY BY MAJOR LINE ITEM TOTAL :%BE%F(‘;OST BY

CONSTRUCTION PHASE - SUMMARY BY MAJOR LINE ITEM

(BY AGENCY LABOR BY TASK)

Budget Line Item Totals SFMTA Contractor
1. Roadway Markings $ 82,818 | $ 82,818
2. Traffic Signal Retiming $ 5455 | $ 5,455
3. Traffic Signs $ 2,000 | $ 2,000
4. Traffic Signal Lens Upgrade $ 25455 | $ 25,455
5. Speed Feedback Sign $ 45,455 | $ 45,455
6. Bike Corrals $ 7250 | $ 7,250
7. Contingency $ 17,568 | $ 17,568
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION PHASE $ 186000 ' § 186,000 3 )

Budget Line Item Totals % of phase SFMTA $ 63,330
1. Total Labor $ 63,330 TOTAL $ 63,330
2. Consultant $ 5,000
3. Other Direct Costs * $ -
4. Contingency $ 6,670 10%
TOTAL PHASE $ 75,000




91

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP]

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number: Resolution Date:
Total PROP L Requested: $261,000 Total PROP L Recommended $261,000
SGA Project Name: | West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP]
Number:
Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Expiration Date: | 12/31/2026
Transportation Agency
Phase: | Design Engineering Fundshare: | 100.0%
Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year
Fund Source FY2025/26 Total
PROP L EP-225 $75,000 $75,000
Deliverables

1. Quarterly progress reports shall include % complete of the funded phase, work performed in the prior quarter, work
anticipated to be performed in the upcoming quarter, and any issues that may impact schedule, in addition to all other
requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement.

2. With the first quarterly progress report, Sponsor shall provide 2-3 photos of existing conditions.

3. Upon completion, Sponsor shall provide evidence of completion of 100% design (e.g., copy of certifications page,
copy of workorder, internal design completion documentation, or similar).

Special Conditions

1. The recommended allocation is contingent upon amendment of the Neighborhood Transportation Program 5YPP to
add the subject project with funds from the Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder. See attached 5YPP
amendment for details.

Notes

1. Progress reports will be shared with the District 3 Commissioner.

SGA Project Name: | West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP]
Number:
Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Expiration Date: | 12/31/2027

Transportation Agency

Phase: | Construction Fundshare: | 100.0%




92

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY2026/27 FY2027/28 Total

PROP L EP-201 $136,000 $50,000 $186,000

Deliverables

1. Quarterly progress reports (QPRs) shall include % complete to date, photos of work being performed, improvements
completed at each location to date, upcoming project milestones (e.g. ground-breaking, ribbon-cutting), and delivery
updates including work performed in the prior quarter, work anticipated to be performed in the upcoming quarter, and
any issues that may impact delivery, in addition to all other requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement.

2. Upon completion of the project Sponsor shall provide 2-3 photos of completed work.

Special Conditions

1. The recommended allocation is contingent upon amendment of the Neighborhood Transportation Program 5YPP to
add the subject project with funds from the Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder. See attached 5YPP
amendment for details.

Notes

1. Progress reports will be shared with the District 3 Commissioner.

2. Reminder: All construction signage, project fact sheets, websites and other similar materials shall comply with the
attribution requirements established in the Standard Grant Agreement.

Metric PROP AA TNC TAX PROP L

Actual Leveraging - Current Request No PROP AA No TNC TAX | 0.0%

Actual Leveraging - This Project No PROP AA No TNC TAX | 0.0%




San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP]

Primary Sponsor: | San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN SUMMARY

Current PROP L Request: | $261,000

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no

circumstance replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement:

JT

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager
Name: | Jeffrey Tom Kathryn Studwell
Title: | Engineer Grant Administration Manager
Phone: | (415) 646-4315 (415) 517-7015
Email: | jeffrey.tom@sfmta.com kathryn.studwell@sfmta.com




94

2023 Prop L 5-Year Project List (FY 2023/24 - FY 2027/28)
Neighborhood Transportation Program (EP 25)

Programming and Allocations to Date
Pending October 2025 Board

[NTP]

Fiscal Year
Agency Project Name Phase Status Total
2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

SFCTA |Neighborhood Program (NTP) Coordination PLAN/CER Appropriated $100,000 $100,000

SFMTA [Neighborhood Program (NTP) Coordination PLAN/CER Allocated $100,000 $100,000

SFCTA |Neighborhood Program (NTP) Coordination PLAN/CER Appropriated $100,000 $100,000

SFMTA [Neighborhood Program (NTP) Coordination PLAN/CER Programmed $100,000 $100,000

SFCTA |Neighborhood Program (NTP) Coordination PLAN/CER Appropriated $100,000 $100,000

SFMTA [Neighborhood Program (NTP) Coordination PLAN/CER Allocated $100,000 $100,000

SFCTA |Neighborhood Program (NTP) Coordination PLAN/CER Programmed $100,000 $100,000

SFMTA [Neighborhood Program (NTP) Coordination PLAN/CER Programmed $100,000 $100,000

SFCTA |Neighborhood Program (NTP) Coordination PLAN/CER Programmed $100,000 $100,000

SFMTA [Neighborhood Program (NTP) Coordination PLAN/CER Programmed $100,000 $100,000

12,
Any  |Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder g::: TBD Programmed $687,355 $687,355
7.8

Any  [Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder TBD Programmed $2,000,000 $2,000,000

Any  |Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder TBD Programmed $1,850,000 $1,850,000

SFCTA |Walter U Lum Place Public Space Study [NTP] ' |PLAN/CER Appropriated $236,000 $236,000

SFMTA |[Walter U Lum Place Public Space Study [NTP] ' |PLAN/CER Allocated $114,000 $114,000
; 1

SFCTA I[r'llr_ll_eF:]Sunset Multimodal Safety and Access Study PLAN/CER Appropriated $265,000 $265,000
i 1

SEMTA I[r’llr}eI;']Sunset Multimodal Safety and Access Study PLAN/CER Allocated $85,000 $85.,000

SFMTA |Great Highway Gateway [NTP] 2 | PLAN/CER Allocated $159,145 $159,145

SFPW | Clement Street Intersection Improvements 2 PS&E Allocated $25,000 $25,000

SFPW |Clement Street Intersection Improvements 2 CON Allocated $100,000 $100,000
— - - - 3

SEMTA [I?\ﬁ_t%ct 11 Traffic Calming and Sideshow Deterrence PLAN/CER Allocated $50,000 $50,000
istri ; i ; 3

SEMTA [[’)\ﬁcg]ct 11 Traffic Calming and Sideshow Deterrence PS&E Allocated $100,000 $100,000
— - - - 3

SEMTA [I?\ﬁ_t%ct 11 Traffic Calming and Sideshow Deterrence CON Allocated $550,000 $550,000

SFMTA |Lincoln Way Traffic Signals [NTP] 4 PS&E Allocated $500,000 $500,000

SFMTA |Duboce Triangle Slow Streets Study [NTP] 5 | PLAN/CER Allocated $250,000 $250,000
; 6

SEMTA Monterey Boulevard Pedestrian Safety Improvement PS&E Allocated $60,000 $60,000




2023 Prop L 5-Year Project List (FY 2023/24 - FY 2027/28)

Neighborhood Transportation Program (EP 25)

Programming and Allocations to Date
Pending October 2025 Board

95

Fiscal Year
Agency Project Name Phase Status Total
2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
i 6
SEMTA P,/I\l?l_r;aerey Boulevard Pedestrian Safety Improvement CON Allocated $290,000 $290,000
SFMTA |District 5 Daylighting [NTP] 7 CON Allocated $117,500 $117,500
SFMTA |West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP] 8 PS&E Pending $75,000 $75,000
SFMTA |West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP] 8 CON Pending $186,000 $186,000




96

2023 Prop L 5-Year Project List (FY 2023/24 - FY 2027/28)
Neighborhood Transportation Program (EP 25)

Programming and Allocations to Date
Pending October 2025 Board

Agency

Project Name

Phase Status

Fiscal Year

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

2026/27

2027/28

Total

Total Programmed in 2023 5YPP| $1,587,355 | $4,401,645 | $2,311,000 $200,000 $200,000 | $8,700,000
Total Allocated and Pending|  $900,000 | $2,301,645 | $461,000 $0 $0 | $3,662,645
Total Unallocated| $687,355 | $2,100,000 | $1,850,000 $200,000 $200,000 | $5,037,355

Total Programmed in 2023 Strategic Plan| $4,050,000 | $2,200,000 | $2,050,000 $200,000 $200,000 | $8,700,000
Deobligated Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Cumulative Remaining Programming Capacity| $2,462,645 $261,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Pending Allocation/Appropriation

Board Approved Allocation/Appropriation

FOOTNOTES:

' BYPP amendment to fund Walter U Lum Place Public Space Study [NTP] and Inner Sunset Multimodal Safety and Access Study [NTP] (Resolution 2024-014, 10/24/2023):
Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder: Reduced from $3,850,000 to $3,150,000.
Walter U Lum Place Public Space Study: Added project with $350,000 in FY2023/24.

Inner Sunset Multimodal Safety and Access Study [NTP Planning]: Added project with $350,000 in FY2023/24.

N

Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder: Reduced from $3,150,000 to $2,865,855.
Great Highway Gateway: Added project with $159,145 in FY2024/25.
Clement Street Intersection Improvements: Added projects with $25,000 PS&E and $125,000 CON in FY2024/25.

w

Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder: Reduced from $2,865,855 to $2,165,855.
District 11 Traffic Calming and Sideshow Deterrence [NTP]: Added project with $700,000 in FY2024/25.

IS

5YPP amendment to fund Lincoln Way Traffic Signals [NTP] (Resolution 2025-029, 2/25/2025):

Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder: Reduced from $2,165,855 to $1,665,855.
Lincoln Way Traffic Signals [NTP]: Added project with $500,000 in FY2024/25.

5 5YPP amendment to fund Duboce Triangle Slow Streets Study [NTP] (Resolution 2025-029, 2/25/2025):
Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder: Reduced from $1,665,855 to $1,415,855.
Duboce Triangle Slow Streets Study [NTP]: Added project with $250,000 in FY2024/25.

o

Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder: Reduced from $1,415,855 to $1,065,855.
Monterey Boulevard Pedestrian Safety Improvement [NTP]: Added project with $350,000 in FY2024/25.

7 5YPP amendment to fund District 5 Daylighting [NTP] (Resolution 2025-046, 5/25/2025):
Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder: Reduced from $1,065,855 to $948,355
District 5 Daylighting [NTP]: Added project with $117,500 in FY2024/25.

5YPP amendment to fund District 11 Traffic Calming and Sideshow Deterrence [NTP] (Resolution 2025-025, 12/17/2024):

5YPP amendment to fund Monterey Boulevard Pedestrian Safety Improvement [NTP] (Resolution 2025-038, 3/25/2025):

5YPP amendment to fund Great Highway Gateway and Clement Street Intersection Improvements (Resolution 2025-011, 9/24/2024):



2023 Prop L 5-Year Project List (FY 2023/24 - FY 2027/28)
Neighborhood Transportation Program (EP 25)

Programming and Allocations to Date
Pending October 2025 Board

97

Agency

Fiscal Year

Project Name Phase Status

2023/24 ‘ 2024/25 ‘ 2025/26 ‘ 2026/27

8 5YPP amendment to fund West Broway Tunnnel Safety [NTP] (Resolution 2026-019, 10/28/2025):
Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder: Reduced from $948,355 to $687,355
West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP]: Added project with $75,000 for design and $186,000 for construction in FY2025/26.

‘ 2027/28

Total



08 ATTACHMENT 5
San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements

Primary Sponsor: | Department of Public Works

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

PROP AA Expenditure Plans | Prop AA Pedestrian Projects

Current PROP AA Request: | $1,100,000

Supervisorial District | District 05

REQUEST

Brief Project Description

In the cultural heart of Japantown, this project will implement improvements to the Japantown Buchanan Mall, a culturally
significant public plaza on Buchanan St, between Post St and Sutter St. Improvements include repaving the uneven
walkways, three new curb ramps, new trees, landscaping with culturally relevant plants, enhancing the existing historic
public art, and installing new energy efficient pedestrian lighting.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach

The Japantown Buchanan Mall is a publicly-owned plaza located at the geographic and cultural heart of Japantown, lined
with shops, and maintained by the Nihonmachi Parking Corporation. Despite its importance, the community perceives the
space to be difficult to walk on, and that it could be further activated — this project seeks to revitalize the space through
pedestrian safety as well as artistic and landscaping improvements including those listed below. See the attached
renderings.

* Repaving the mall, rehabilitating the Post St intersection and crosswalk, constructing three new ADA compliant curb
ramps

¢ Constructing new planters and seating, planting more trees, landscaping, and irrigation system

* New pedestrian lighting and catenary lighting

« Repairing the Ruth Asawa Origami Fountains, rehabilitating the Ruth Asawa benches, upgrading the "cobblestone
river" to be ADA compliant

* Sewer main and water main replacement/repairs

¢ Encouraging businesses to provide outdoor seating and displays along the storefronts

« Utilizing new energy- and water-efficient technologies to light the plaza and maintain the fountains

Prop AA funds would supplement the California Natural Resources Agency Grant funding programmed for this project.
Coordination will take place with the adjacent Japantown Peace Plaza project with work just south of the proposed project
limits.

This project has worked with the community every step of the way and comes at the recommendation of the Japantown
Cultural Heritage & Economic Sustainability Strategy (JCHESS) report. The project held three community open house
events and have been meeting with stakeholders from prominent community groups, including the Japantown Taskforce,
Japantown Community Benefit District, Nihonmachi Parking Corp., and the Ruth Asawa Lanier, Inc. from project initiation.
This stakeholder group has been actively involved in the support, planning, and community outreach of the project.

In 2022, the Transportation Authority programmed $100,000 for the design phase and $400,000 for the construction phase
of the project. The Transportation Authority allocated design funds In 2024. Since the original budget was developed,
however, the construction estimate has increased by $2.6 million due to several key changes, including the following:



99

« Post St intersection/crosswalk ADA rework (high crown, new concrete)

¢ Increased pavement thickness based on updated structural analysis

« Expanded lighting scope (more poles, catenary lighting)

e Utility coordination (PUC sewer/water replacements)

« Historic preservation requirements (fountain, cobblestone, planter layout)
« Community-requested amenities (additional seating, cobblestone reuse)

SFPW has secured $1.36 million of the additional funds from SFPUC. This request includes Prop AA funds previously

programmed to the project's construction phase, and an additional $700,000 in Prop AA funds to help cover the cost
increase and fully fund the project. The remainder of the funding gap will be funded with SFPW funds.

Project Location

Buchanan St, between Post St and Sutter St

Is this project in an Equity Priority Community? | Yes

Does this project benefit disadvantaged populations? | Yes

Project Phase(s)

Construction (CON)

5YPP/STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION

Type of Project in the Prop L 5YPP/Prop | Named Project
AA Strategic Plan?

Is requested amount greater than the | Greater than Programmed Amount
amount programmed in the relevant
5YPP or Strategic Plan?

PROP AA Amount | $400,000.00

Justification for Necessary Amendment

This request includes an amendment to reprogram $700,000 from the Oakdale Lighting Improvements Phase 1, which
was completed under budget, to the subject project. The Japantown Buchanan Mall project is at 99% design completion,
and SFPW is prepared to advertise the construction contract as soon Prop AA funds are secured. In Spring 2026,
Transportation Authority staff plan to advance a request for the design phase of Oakdale Lighting Improvements Phases 2
and 3, estimated to cost $615,000, with Prop L funds from the Equity Priority Community Program.



100

San Francisco County Transportation Authority

Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action:

FY2025/26

Project Name:

Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements

Primary Sponsor:

Department of Public Works

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type:

Categorically Exempt

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End
Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year
Planning/Conceptual Engineering (PLAN) Apr-May-Jun | 2023 Jan-Feb-Mar | 2024

Environmental Studies (PA&ED)

Jul-Aug-Sep | 2024

Apr-May-Jun | 2025

Right of Way

Design Engineering (PS&E)

Jan-Feb-Mar | 2024

Jul-Aug-Sep | 2025

Advertise Construction

Oct-Nov-Dec | 2025

Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract) Apr-May-Jun | 2026

Operations (OP)

Open for Use

Apr-May-Jun | 2027

Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure)

Apr-May-Jun | 2028

SCHEDULE DETAILS

Public Works has ongoing coordination with the Japantown Peace Plaza team including regular meetings between project
managers. The Peace Plaza project has recently announced a delay in their construction completion to Summer 2026 but
it is currently anticipated to have no or minimal overlap, barring further delays.



101

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements

Primary Sponsor: | Department of Public Works

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

EP-702: Prop AA Pedestrian Projects $700,000 $400,000 $0 $1,100,000
California Natural Resources Agency grant $0 $0 $4,200,000 $4,200,000
(CNRA)
Certificates of Participation (COP) $0 $0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
SFPUC - CDD (Community Designated $830,000 $0 $0 $830,000
Development Funds)
SFPUC - WWE (Water and Wastewater $530,000 $0 $0 $530,000
Enterprise Funds)
SFPW Addback $0 $150,000 $0 $150,000
SFPW General Fund $0 $100,000 $0 $100,000
SFPW RMRA Fund (Road Maintenance and $0 $100,000 $0 $100,000
Rehabilitation Account)

Phases In Current Request Total: $2,060,000 $750,000 $5,200,000 $8,010,000
FUNDING PLAN - ENTIRE PROJECT (ALL PHASES)

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

PROP AA $700,000 $400,000 $100,000 $1,200,000
California Natural Resources Agency grant $0 $0 $5,000,000 $5,000,000
(CNRA)
Certificates of Participation (COP) $0 $0 $2,000,000 $2,000,000
SFPUC - CDD (Community Designated $830,000 $0 $0 $830,000
Development Funds)
SFPUC - WWE (Water and Wastewater $530,000 $0 $0 $530,000
Enterprise Funds)
SFPW Addback $0 $150,000 $0 $150,000
SFPW General Fund $0 $100,000 $0 $100,000
SFPW RMRA Fund (Road Maintenance and $0 $100,000 $0 $100,000

Rehabilitation Account)




102

Funding Plan for Entire Project Total: $2,060,000 $750,000 $7,100,000 $9,910,000
Phase Total Cost PROP AA - Source of Cost Estimate
Current
Request
Planning/Conceptual Engineering $578,000 Actual expense
Environmental Studies $7,000 Actual expense
Right of Way $0
Design Engineering $1,315,000 Actual expense + estimate to finalize
Construction $8,010,000 $1,100,000 | Engineer's estimate at 99% design
Operations $0
Total: $9,910,000 $1,100,000
% Complete of Design: | 99.0%
As of Date: | 08/18/2025
Expected Useful Life: | 20 Years




San Francisco County Transportation Authority

Prop L/Prop AA/Prop D TNC Allocation Request Form

MAJOR LINE ITEM BUDGET
SUMMARY BY MAJOR LINE ITEM (BY AGENCY LABOR BY TASK)

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION PHASE

Budget Line ltem Totals % of contract SFPW SFMTA SFAC Contractor

1. Contract
Task 1: General $ 450,000 $ 450,000
Task 2: Roadway $ 200,000 $ 200,000
Task 4: Landscape/Furnishing $ 3,100,000 $ 3,100,000
Task 5: Sewer $ 360,000 $ 360,000
Task 6: Water $ 320,000 $ 320,000
Task 7: Electrical $ 500,000 $ 500,000
Task 8: Structural $ 250,000 $ 250,000
Task 9: Fountain System $ 270,000 $ 270,000
Subtotal $ 5,450,000 $ 5,450,000

2. SFAC Sculpture De/Re-Install $ 50,000 $ 50,000

3. Construction Management/Support | $ 1,635,000 30% $ 1,560,600 | $ 74,400

4. Other Direct Costs * $ 55,400 $ 18,000 | $ 37,400

5. Contingency $ 819,600.00 15% $ 819,600.00

$ 8,010,000 $ 1,578,600 | $ 111,800 | $ 50,000 | $ 6,269,600

* Striping, signage, survey monuments

103



104

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements

Primary Sponsor: | Department of Public Works

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number: Resolution Date:
Total PROP AA Requested: $1,100,000 Total PROP AA Recommended $1,100,000
SGA Project Name: | Japantown Buchanan Mall
Number: Improvements
Sponsor: | Department of Public Works Expiration Date: | 06/30/2028
Phase: | Construction Fundshare: | 13.73%

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY2025/26 FY2026/27 Total

PROP AA EP-702 $275,000 $825,000 $1,100,000

Deliverables

1. Quarterly progress reports (QPRs) shall include % complete to date, photos of work being performed, upcoming
project milestones (e.g. ground-breaking, ribbon-cutting), and delivery updates including work performed in the prior
quarter, work anticipated to be performed in the upcoming quarter, and any issues that may impact delivery, in addition
to all other requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement.

2. With the first QPR (January 2026), Sponsor shall provide 2-3 photos of typical before conditions; with the first
quarterly report following initiation of work, Sponsor shall provide a photo documenting compliance with the Prop AA
attribution requirements as described in the SGA; and upon completion of the project, Sponsor shall provide 2-3 photos
of completed work.

Special Conditions

1. Recommendation is conditioned upon concurrent amendment of the Prop AA 5-Year Project List to increase the
amount programmed for the construction phase of the Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements project from $400,000
to $1,100,000 with funds reprogrammed from the completed Oakdale Lighting Improvements Project Phase 1. See
attached Prop AA 5-Year Project List for details.

Metric PROP AA TNC TAX PROP L

Actual Leveraging - Current Request 86.27% No TNC TAX | No PROP L

Actual Leveraging - This Project 87.89% No TNC TAX | No PROP L




San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

105

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2025/26

Project Name: | Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements

Primary Sponsor: | Department of Public Works

EXPENDITURE PLAN SUMMARY

Current PROP AA Request: | $1,100,000

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no

circumstance replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement:

JLY

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager
Name: | Trent Tieger Victoria Chan
Title: | Project Manager Budget Manager
Phone: | (415) 558-4045 (415) 205-6316
Email: | trent.tieger@sfdpw.org victoria.w.chan@sfdpw.org




J@H,TED PLAN

@catneary lighting
(see options)

pedestrian scale o iardcn gate lighting
pole lighting (16ft) entry sign

forest books

133¥1S ¥31Ins

hinodeya

paper tree ramen bar

S~

A

e ADA compliant
granite cobble river

erestored fountains
w/ drainage basin,
plumbing, and

ignag
Japantown Osaka Way Upgrades Proieci T COMMUNITY BRIEFING | JANUARY 21, 2025

o precast seat walls

®@ve.

ramen yamadaya
(upper floor)

matsuyama
shabu house

g4

Elarra ks A :
o exposed aggregate
concrete

@ refurbished Ruth
Asawa benches

D e
ia

install (5)
mp posts

soko hardware

o ginkgo trees

@® cherry tree plagues

€@ cherry trees

133¥1S 1s0d

1



107

Bl POST ST ENTRY

Lok,

g

‘

[ |
L]
 She 10 2w Nk

\
N\
RN

SR

o

it ]
U RO ST S
T4 -\\\“ Whi.
R 5 '§,‘ o
¢ =, iy
N vraa
\ iy
-

UL

1S y3Lins
1S 1S0d

HOW TO GET INVOLVED

JAPANTOWN IXvINIRI Y
SIGN UP FOR OUR MAILING LIST! , ey sncics PNsAN sfac 1 ‘ Japantown Community  Nihonmachi Community Briefing o -\’\ .

Planning WORKS 2418 FRANCISCO ‘ Srrms N, y c B Benefit District Parking Corporation JANUARY 21, 2025 OSAKA WAY (ucHanan MaLL) [l KBRIE (7% +v7>-E—L)
WWW.0Sa kaway. org . Japtoun

fskorce e UPGRADES PROJECT Ty roL—R7O Ok



108

2022 Prop AA 5-Year Project List (FY 2022/23 - FY 2026/27)

Programming and Allocations to Date
Pending October 2025 Board

Fiscal Year
Agency Project Name HIEES Status 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 o
Street Repair and Reconstruction Total Funds Available in Category| $2,686,679 | $2,409,525 | $2,409,525 | $2,409,525 | $2,409,525 |$12,324,780
SFPW Hunters Point, Central Waterfrorjt and Potrero Hill CON Allocated $2.882,492
Area Streets Pavement Renovation
SFPW 8th St, (;Iay St and Levenworth St Pavement CON Allocated $2,360,572
Renovation
SFPW Brotherhood Way, Hollqway Ave and Lake Merced 3 CON Programmed $0 $0
Blvd Pavement Renovation
SFPW Front St, Sansome .St' 1st St and Montgomery St CON Programmed $1,860,572 $1,860,572
Pavement Renovation
SFPW |Fillmore St Pavement Renovation CON Programmed $2,360,572 | $2,360,572
SFPW |Various Locations Pavement Renovation No. 90 3 CON Allocated $2,360,572
Total Programmed in 2022 5YPP| $2,882,492 | $2,360,572 $0 | $4,221,144 | $2,360,572 ($11,824,780
Total Allocated and Pending| $2,882,492 | $2,360,572 $0 | $2,360,572 $0 | $7,603,636
Total Unallocated $0 $0 $0 | $1,860,572 | $2,360,572 | $4,221,144
Deobligated Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Cumulative Remaining Programming Capacity| ($195,813)| ($146,860)| $2,262,666 $451,047 $500,000 $500,000
Pedestrian Safety Total Funds Available in Category| $1,182,359 | $1,060,389 | $1,060,389 | $1,060,389 | $1,060,389 | $5,423,915
SFPW |Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements PS&E Allocated $100,000
SFPW |Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements 4 CON Pending $1,100,000 $1,100,000
SFPW |Oakdale Lighting Improvements Project Phase 1 PS&E Allocated $324,000
SFPW |Oakdale Lighting Improvements Project Phase 1 CON Allocated $1,200,000
SFPW |Oakdale Lighting Improvements Project Phase 1 4 CON Programmed $0
SFPW |Innes Avenue Sidewalk Improvements PS&E Allocated $179,000
SFPW |Innes Avenue Sidewalk Improvements CON Allocated $672,000
SFMTA |Central Embarcadero Safety Project CON Programmed $1,000,000 $1,000,000
SFMTA |Howard Streetscape Pedestrian Safety Project CON Programmed $1,000,000 $1,000,000
SFMTA [Bayview Community Multimodal Corridor Project CON Programmed $598,915 | $598,915
Total Programmed in 2022 5YPP| $603,000 | $3,872,000 | $1,100,000 $0 | $598,915 | $6,173,915
Total Allocated and Pending| $603,000 | $1,872,000 | $1,100,000 $0 $0 | $3,575,000
Total Unallocated $0 | $2,000,000 $0 $0 $598,915 | $2,598,915
Deobligated Funds| $106,070 $38,948 $90,720 | $250,000 $0| $485,738
Cumulative Remaining Programming Capacity| $685,429 |($2,087,234)|($2,036,125)| ($725,737)| ($264,263)| ($264,263)

Transit Reliability and Mobility Improvements

Total Funds Available in Category| $1,251,540 | $1,122,433 | $1,122,433 | $1,122,433 | $1,122,433 | $5,741,270 |




109

2022 Prop AA 5-Year Project List (FY 2022/23 - FY 2026/27)
Programming and Allocations to Date

Pending October 2025 Board

Fiscal Year
Agency Project Name HIEES Status 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 o
SEMTA M Ocean View Transit Reliability and Mobility PS&E Allocated $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Improvements
- — — ;
SEMTA 29 Sunset Transit Reliability and Mobility PS&E Programmed $0 $0
Improvements
SFMTA |29 Sunset Improvement Project (Phase 1) 1 PS&E Allocated $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Elevator Modernization Project, Phase 1.3, Powell
BART Street and Civic Center/UN Plaza Stations CON Programmed $3,441,270 $3,441,270
TJPA |Salesforce Transit Center Wayfinding Phase 1 CON Allocated $300,000 $300,000
X - 2
SFCTA ;ffg?eacﬁuena Island Multi-Use Path - Transit Lane PS&E Appropriated $750,000 $750,000
Total Programmed in 2022 5YPP| $2,300,000 $0 $750,000 | $3,441,270 $0 | $6,491,270
Total Allocated and Pending| $2,300,000 $0 | $750,000 $0 $0 | $3,050,000
Total Unallocated $0 $0 $0 | $3,441,270 $0 | $3,441,270
Deobligated Funds $0 $0 | $591,123 $0 $0 | $591,123
Cumulative Remaining Programming Capacity|($1,048,460) $73,972 | $1,037,528 |($1,281,310)| ($158,877)| ($158,877)

Total Available Funds $5,120,578 $4,592,347

Total Programmed $5,785,492 $6,232,572

$4,592,347 $4,592,347 $4,592,347 $23,489,965
$1,850,000 $7,662,414 $2,959,487 $24,489,965

FOOTNOTES:

" To accommodate funding of 29 Sunset Improvement Project (Phase 1) (Resolution 2023-021 - 12/13/22)
29 Sunset Transit Reliability and Mobility Improvements: Reduced from $1,000,000 to $0
29 Sunset Improvement Project (Phase 1): Added project with $1,000,000 for design in FY2022/23
2 Yerba Buena Island Multi-Use Path - Transit Lane Project: project added with $750,000 in FY2024/25 for design drawing programming from programwide de-obligated funds

# To accommodate cost increase for construction of Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements (Resolution 2026-XX - 10/X/25)

(Resolution 2025-021 - 11/19/24)

Cumulative Remaining

($558,844) ($2,160,121)

Programwide Cumulative Remaining Capacity at end of 5-year period reduced from $824,825 to $74,825
3 To accommodate funding of Various Locations Pavement Renovation No. 90 (Resolution 2026-004 - 7/22/25)
Brotherhood Way, Holloway Ave and Lake Merced Blvd Pavement Renovation: Reduced from $2,360,572 to $0
Various Locations Pavement Renovation No. 90: Added project with $2,360,572 for construction in FY2025/26

Allocated :I

Oakdale Lighting Improvements Project Phase 1: Reduced from $450,000 to $0 (project completed with cost savings)
Programwide Cumulative Remaining Capacity: Reduced from $326,861 to $76,861
Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements: Increased from $400,000 to $1,100,000 for construction in FY2025/26

$1,264,068 ($1,555,999)

$76,861

$76,861

Pending Allocation :I




1 1 0 ATTACHMENT 6

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

RESOLUTION ALLOCATING $6,606,363 IN PROP L FUNDS, WITH CONDITIONS,
AND $1,100,000 IN PROP AA FUNDS, WITH CONDITIONS, FOR FOUR REQUESTS

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority received four requests for a total of
$6,606,363 in Prop L transportation sales tax funds and $1,100,000 in Prop AA
vehicle registration fee funds, as summarized in Attachments 1 and 2 and detailed in
the attached allocation request forms; and

WHEREAS, The requests seek funds from the following Prop L Expenditure
Plan programs: Traffic Signs and Signals Maintenance and Neighborhood
Transportation Program; and from the Pedestrian Safety category of the Prop AA
Expenditure Plan; and

WHEREAS, As required by the voter-approved Expenditure Plans, the
Transportation Authority Board has adopted a 5-Year Prioritization Program (5YPP)
for each of the aforementioned Prop L programs and Prop AA category; and

WHEREAS, Two of the three Prop L requests are consistent with the relevant
5YPPs; and

WHEREAS, The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency's (SFMTA's)
request for the West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP] project requires amendment of
the Prop L Neighborhood Transportation Program 5YPP to add the subject project,
as detailed in the attached allocation request form, with funds from the
Neighborhood Program (NTP) Project Placeholder; and

WHEREAS, San Francisco Public Works' Prop AA request for the Japantown
Buchanan Mall Improvements project requires amendment of the Prop AA 5-Year
Project List to reprogram $450,000 surplus funds originally programmed to Oakdale
Lighting Improvements Phase 1 and $250,000 of further cost savings deobligated
from the completed Oakdale Lighting Improvements Phase 1 to the subject project

as detailed in the attached allocation request form; and

Page 1 of 4



111

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

WHEREAS, After reviewing the requests, Transportation Authority staff
recommended allocating $6,606,363 in Prop L funds, with conditions, and
$1,100,000 in Prop AA funds, with conditions, for four requests, as described in
Attachment 3 and detailed in the attached allocation request forms, which include
staff recommendations for Prop L and Prop AA allocation amounts, required
deliverables, timely use of funds requirements, special conditions, and Fiscal Year
Cash Flow Distribution Schedules; and

WHEREAS, There are sufficient funds in the Capital Expenditures line item of
the Transportation Authority’s approved Fiscal Year 2025/26 budget to cover the
proposed actions; and

WHEREAS, At its September 24, 2025 meeting, the Community Advisory
Committee was briefed on the subject requests and unanimously adopted a motion
of support for the staff recommendation; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby amends the Prop L
Neighborhood Transportation Program 5YPP, as detailed in the attached allocation
request form; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby amends the Prop AA 5-
Year Project List, as detailed in the attached allocation request form; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby allocates $6,606,363 in
Prop L funds, with conditions, and $1,100,100 in Prop AA funds, with conditions, for
four requests as summarized in Attachment 3 and detailed in the attached allocation
request forms; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority finds the allocation of these
funds to be in conformance with the priorities, policies, funding levels, and
prioritization methodologies established in the Prop L Expenditure Plan, the Prop L
Strategic Plan, the relevant 5YPPs, and the 2022 Prop AA Strategic Plan and 5-Year
Project List; and be it further

Page 2 of 4



112

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby authorizes the actual
expenditure (cash reimbursement) of funds for these activities to take place subject
to the Fiscal Year Cash Flow Distribution Schedules detailed in the attached
allocation request forms; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Capital Expenditures line item for subsequent fiscal year
annual budgets shall reflect the maximum reimbursement schedule amounts
adopted and the Transportation Authority does not guarantee reimbursement levels
higher than those adopted; and be it further

RESOLVED, That as a condition of this authorization for expenditure, the
Executive Director shall impose such terms and conditions as are necessary for the
project sponsors to comply with applicable law and adopted Transportation
Authority policies and execute Standard Grant Agreements to that effect; and be it
further

RESOLVED, That as a condition of this authorization for expenditure, the
project sponsors shall provide the Transportation Authority with any other
information it may request regarding the use of the funds hereby authorized; and be
it further

RESOLVED, That the Capital Improvement Program of the Congestion

Management Program is hereby amended, as appropriate.

Attachments:
1. Summary of Requests

2. Project Descriptions

3. Staff Recommendations

4. Prop L and Prop AA Allocations Summaries - FY 2025/26
5. Allocation Request Forms (4)

Page 3 of4



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800

Memorandum

AGENDA ITEM 8
DATE: September 25, 2025

TO: Transportation Authority Board

info@sfcta.org www.sfcta.org

FROM: Anna LaForte - Deputy Director for Policy and Programming

SUBJECT: 10/7/2025 Board Meeting: Amend the One Bay Area Grant Cycle 2 Project List

and the Prop K Standard Grant Agreement for the Bay Area Rapid Transit District's

Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform Elevator Project to Reflect a New

Phased Approach to Project Delivery

RECOMMENDATION OliInformation [X Action

¢ Amend the One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) Cycle 2
Project List for the Bay Area Rapid Transit District's
(BART's) Embarcadero Station: New Northside
Platform Elevator (Project) to reflect a phased project
delivery approach due to cost increases and other
factors.

¢ Amend the Prop K Standard Grant Agreement (SGA)
for the Project, consistent with the requested
amendment to the OBAG Cycle 2 Project List.

SUMMARY

In September 2017, the Transportation Authority Board
approved $2,000,000 in OBAG Cycle 2 funds for construction
of BART's Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform
Elevator project, and in July 2019, the Board allocated
$1,000,000 in Prop K funds for construction of the project. The
original scope included, among other elements, installation of
a new elevator at the north end of the BART/Muni Station
between the BART platform and the mezzanine area. Due to
several factors including significantly higher than expected
contract bids, location-specific restrictions, and the COVID
pandemic, BART has restructured the project into two phases
to enable delivery of benefits to the public sooner, while

seeking additional funding for the full scope. Phase 1

O Fund Allocation
Fund Programming
O Policy/Legislation
O Plan/Study

O Capital Project
Oversight/Delivery

O Budget/Finance
O Contract/Agreement
O Other:

Page 1 of 4

113



114

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 8 Page 2 of 4

prioritizes renovation of the existing elevator and widening the
south stairs. BART expects Phase 1 to be open for use by Fall
2029. The new north-side elevator will be constructed in Phase
2, subject to future funding availability. BART staff will attend
the meeting to answer any questions the Board may have.

BACKGROUND

As San Francisco’s Congestion Management Agency, the Transportation Authority is
responsible for prioritizing San Francisco projects for the OBAG county program. In
2017 and 2018, the Transportation Authority Board programmed $42,286,000 in
OBAG 2 funds to the six projects shown in Attachment 1, including $2,000,000 for
construction of BART's Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform Elevator
project (Project). In 2019, the Board allocated $1,000,000 in Prop K funds to help fully
fund the Project, consistent with the OBAG 2 funding plan. The original scope
included a new elevator at the north end of the Embarcadero BART/Muni Station, in
between the BART platform and the mezzanine area, as well as expansion of the paid
area to include the new elevator, relocation of the east staircase, and expansion of
the south staircase. The construction phase cost estimate at the time of approval of

OBAG 2 was $15,000,000.

DISCUSSION

BART has requested amendment of the OBAG Cycle 2 Project List and of the
aforementioned Prop K SGA to reflect that the Project will be delivered in two phases
to enable the public to enjoy benefits sooner while BART continues to look for
additional funds to cover the cost increase for the full project scope. Under the
proposed phased approach, BART will use existing Project funds, including OBAG
and Prop K, to construct Phase 1 which includes modernization of the existing
elevator, widening of the south stairs, and relocation of the existing machine room.
BART estimates Phase 1 total project cost (planning through construction) at
$24,817,461 compared to $15,000,000 estimated for the original Project scope,
which was more expansive.

Phase 2, to be built when funds are secured, encompasses construction of the new
north-side elevator, development of a new machine room for the new elevator,
demolition and reconstruction of the wider north stairs, and implementation of a
Muni stair option (to be funded by Muni), at an estimated cost of $30 million.



115

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 8 Page 3 of4

The updated allocation request form for the proposed amended project (Attachment
3) provides a timeline and history of the project, detailing the various factors
contributing to cost increases and scope modifications over time, as well as lessons
learned by BART.

Recommendation. We recommend amending the OBAG Cycle 2 Project List and
Prop K SGA, as requested by BART. Attachment 2 summarizes the proposed OBAG
Cycle 2 Project List and Prop K amendment, and Attachment 3 includes detailed
information on the updated phased scope, schedule, budget, funding, and
deliverables.

BART has concurrently submitted an amendment to the Transportation Improvement
Program to reflect the phased approach to the project. Metropolitan Transportation
Commission (MTC) staff is supportive of this request and the MTC Commission is
expected to approve the amendment on October 22, 2025.

If the proposed amendments are approved, BART anticipates advertising the
construction contract by the end of the 2025 calendar year, awarding the
construction contract by June 2026, and opening the Project for use by Fall 2029.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The recommended action would amend the aforementioned Prop K SGA to allow the
previously allocated $1,000,000 to be applied to the revised scope as described
above. The expenditure of those funds would be subject to the amended Fiscal Year
Cash Flow Distribution Schedule contained in the attached Allocation Request Form
(Attachment 3).

There is no impact to the Transportation Authority’s Fiscal Year 2025/26 budget.
Furthermore, sufficient funds will be included in future budgets to cover the
recommended cash flow distributions in those fiscal years.

CAC POSITION

The CAC considered this item at its September 24, 2025 meeting and unanimously
adopted a motion of support for the staff recommendation.



116

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 8 Page 4 of 4

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS

e Attachment 1 - Proposed Amended OBAG Cycle 2 List

e Attachment 2 - Proposed Prop K Standard Grant Agreement (120-902064)
Amendment

e Attachment 3 - Allocation Request Form

e Attachment 4 - Resolution



Attachment 1

San Francisco One Bay Area Grant Cycle 2 (OBAG 2)
Proposed Amended Project List

Sponsor . Recommended A . Approved OBAG
e Project Name Phase(s) District(s) | Total Project Cost 2 Funds
SFPW |Better Market Street %° Design 3,5,and 6 | $ 603,720,000 | $ 15,980,000
PCJPB |Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project Construction 6,10 $ 1,980,253,000 | $ 11,187,736
. . . 1,2,3,5, and
SFMTA |Geary Bus Rapid Transit Phase 1 Construction 5 $ 64,656,000 | $ 6,939,000
John Yehall Chin El tary Safe Routes t
sppwy [0 Shal nin Hlementary sate Rottes to Construction 3 $ 4,200,000 | $ 3,366,000
School
San Francisco Safe Routes to School Non- Construction (Non-
SFMTA Infrastructure Project (2019-2021) Infrastructure) all $ 3177752 | 3 2,813,264
) . $15.:666:066
Efevatorand-Faregates . $ 00U,
BART Embarcadero Station Construction 3,6 24817 461 $ 2,000,000
Platform Elevator Phase 1
TOTAL | $ 2,680,824,213 | $ 42,286,000

TOTAL OBAG 2 FUNDS §$

42,286,000

! Sponsor abbreviations include: Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART), Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board (PCJPB), San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency (SFMTA), and San Francisco Public Works (SFPW).
2 On November 27, 2018, the Transportation Authority Board approved a Prop K fund exchange with Better Market Street to help
backfill the Central Subway RIP commitment. See Resolution 19-22 for more detail.
3 On July 23, 2019, the Transportation Authority Board approved a Prop K/OBAG fund exchange between Better Market Street
and John Yehall Chin to assist with project delivery. See Resolution 20-02 for more detail.

117



1 1 8 Attachment 2

Proposed Grant Amendment - BART: Embarcadero Station New Northside Platform Elevator

Prop KSGA | Project Name (Project

Need for Amendment and Project Description Recommendations
Number Sponsor)

Resolution

BART requests concurrent amendment of the One Bay Area Grant Cycle 2
Project List and Prop K Standard Grant Agreement (SGA) to reflect a phased
project delivery approach for the subject project due to cost increases and
other factors. The original scope included a new elevator at the north end of
the Embarcadero BART/Muni Station, in between the BART platform and the
mezzanine area, as well as expansion of the paid area to include the new
elevator, relocation of the east staircase, and expansion of the south
staircase. Due to several factors, including higher than expected contract
bids, location-specific restrictions, and the COVID-19 pandemic, BART has

Embarcadero Station: o
restructured the project into two phases.

20-03 120-902064 [New Northside Platform

Elevator (Amendment) The subject Prop K grant will be used for the Embarcadero Station Platform

Elevator Phase 1 and includes renovation and modernization of the existing
elevator, demolition and rebuilding of wider south stairs, and relocation of
the existing machine room. Phase 1 is expected to be open for use by Fall
2029. Phase 2 will include the procurement and installation of the new
elevator, subject to funding availability.

See proposed amended allocation request form (Attachment 3 to the
memo) for additional details.




ATTACHMENT 3 1 1 9
San Francisco County Transportation Authority

Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2019/20

Project Name: | Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform Elevator (Amendment)

Primary Sponsor: | Bay Area Rapid Transit District

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Supervisorial Districts | District 03, District 06

REQUEST

Brief Project Description

Phase 1 will modernize an existing elevator at Embarcadero Station to improve reliability and accessibility for BART riders,
including people with disabilities, seniors, families with strollers, and bicyclists. The work will also expand the south stairs
and relocate the machine room. The project directly addresses accessibility needs, ensuring that people with disabilities
and other riders who rely on elevators have safe, reliable access to one of the system'’s busiest stations. Phase 2 to install
a new platform elevator will proceed in the future, subject to funding availability.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach

See attachment.

Project Location

Embarcadero BART Station

Is this project in an Equity Priority Community? | Yes

Does this project benefit disadvantaged populations? | Yes

Project Phase(s)

Construction (CON)



120

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2019/20

Project Name: | Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform Elevator (Amendment)

Primary Sponsor: | Bay Area Rapid Transit District

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type: | Categorically Exempt

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End
Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year
Planning/Conceptual Engineering (PLAN) Apr-May-Jun | 2022 Jan-Feb-Mar | 2024

Environmental Studies (PA&ED)

Right of Way

Design Engineering (PS&E) Oct-Nov-Dec | 2022 Oct-Nov-Dec | 2025
Advertise Construction Oct-Nov-Dec | 2025

Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract) Apr-May-Jun | 2026

Operations (OP)

Open for Use Jul-Aug-Sep | 2029

Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure) Jan-Feb-Mar | 2030

SCHEDULE DETAILS



121

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2019/20

Project Name:

Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform Elevator (Amendment)

Primary Sponsor:

Bay Area Rapid Transit District

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

BART $225,996 $0 $0 $225,996
CCSF CFD $0 $0 $2,429,348 $2,429,348
FTA 5307 $903,985 $0 $4,928,388 $5,832,373
Measure RR $0 $0 $434,117 $434,117
OBAG 2 $0 $0 $2,000,000 $2,000,000
Prop K $0 $0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
SFMTA JMA $0 $0 $7,928,503 $7,928,503

Phases In Current Request Total: $1,129,981 $0 $18,720,356 $19,850,337

FUNDING PLAN - ENTIRE PROJECT (ALL PHASES)

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

BART $225,996 $0 $250,000 $475,996
CCSF CFD $0 $0 $4,417,754 $4,417,754
FTA 5307 $903,985 $0 $4,928,388 $5,832,373
Measure RR $0 $0 $1,250,000 $1,250,000
OBAG 2 $0 $0 $2,000,000 $2,000,000
Prop K $0 $0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
SFMTA JMA $0 $0 $9,841,338 $9,841,338

Funding Plan for Entire Project Total: $1,129,981 $0 $23,687,480 $24,817,461

COST SUMMARY

Phase Total Cost Source of Cost Estimate
Planning/Conceptual Engineering $412,731 | Actual cost
Environmental Studies $0 | N/A

Right of Way $0 | N/A




122

Phase Total Cost Source of Cost Estimate

Design Engineering $4,554,393 | Actuals plus estimate to complete
Construction $19,850,337 | Engineer's estimate as of August 2025
Operations $0

Total: $24,817,461

% Complete of Design: | 100.0%
As of Date: | 09/30/2025
Expected Useful Life: | 25 Years




San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA/Prop D TNC Allocation Request Form

MAJOR LINE ITEM BUDGET
SUMMARY BY MAJOR LINE ITEM (BY AGENCY LABOR BY TASK)

Budget Line Item Totals % of phase BART Contractor
1. Contract
Task 1: Construction $ 10,793,240 $ 10,793,240
Subtotal $ 10,793,240 $ 10,793,240
2. Construction
Management/Support $ 5,429,093 27% $ 2,469,091 | $ 2,960,002
3. Contingency $ 3,628,003.66 18% $ 3,628,004
eiis CONSTRU:HT;(;'; $ 19,850,336 $ 2,469,001 |$ 17,381,245

123



124

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action:

FY2019/20

Project Name:

Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform Elevator (Amendment)

Primary Sponsor:

Bay Area Rapid Transit District

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number:

Resolution Date:

Total PROP K Requested:

$1,000,000

Total PROP K Recommended

$1,000,000

SGA Project Name: | Embarcadero Station Platform
Number: [ 120-902064 Elevator Phase 1
Sponsor: | Bay Area Rapid Transit District Expiration Date: | 03/31/2030
Phase: | Construction Fundshare: | 5.04%

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source

FY2026/27

FY2027/28

FY2028/29

Total

PROP K EP-120U

$400,000

$500,000

$100,000

$1,000,000

Deliverables

1. Quarterly progress reports (QPRs) shall include % complete to date, photos of work being performed, and delivery
updates including work performed in the prior quarter, work anticipated to be performed in the upcoming quarter, and
any issues that may impact delivery, in addition to all other requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement.

2. Upon completion of the project Sponsor shall provide 2-3 photos of completed work.

Metric PROP AA TNC TAX PROP K
Actual Leveraging - Current Request No PROP AA No TNC TAX | 94.96%
Actual Leveraging - This Project No PROP AA No TNC TAX | 95.97%




San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Allocation Request Form

125

FY of Allocation Action: | FY2019/20

Project Name: | Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform Elevator (Amendment)

Primary Sponsor: | Bay Area Rapid Transit District

EXPENDITURE PLAN SUMMARY

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no

circumstance replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement:

RA

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager
Name: | Michael Gerbracht Aileen Hernandez
Title: | Senior Manager of Engineering Programs Principal Grants Officer
Phone: (510) 464-6564
Email: | MGerbra@bart.gov ghernan@bart.gov




FOR
f-LEVAl'OFI‘ :
! e/ Ticke!

Enter with Clipper/
ot Platform Fare Gate

Ingreae con su Clipper
o boleto en la puerta de
admisidn de la plotaforma

1 Clippor F/MILN i
AaRRMPISA

ooy e ELevaToR(s) AT

==

Embarcadero Station

i

PARA
EL ELEVADOR | b

wans |

- ,_-....—-ﬁ!

FOR
ELEVATOR

Enter with Clipper/Ticket

ot Platform Fare Gate

PARA
| EL ELEVADOR

Ingrese con su Clipper

o boleto en In puerta de
admisién de la plataforma

Rl

14 clj
AumR

/0
M A

Platform Elevator Project

PROPOSITION K AND OBAG 2 AMENDMENT REQUEST

AUGUST 2025

.....
......
R

& BART Opens
at 5am
starting 2/11/2019

inday Scheduly

S L i e




127

Contents

Project Scope

Details

Project Location

Conclusion

N OO NN

Elevator Modernization Project | 1



128
Summary

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) requests amending grant number OBA-902012 (OBAG 2) and 120-
902064 (Prop K) which fund the Embarcadero Station Platform Elevator project. The requested amendment includes a revised
scope of work as well as a new requested end date for Prop K from 12/31/2026 to 6/30/2027 to align with the end date for
OBAG 2.

Project Scope

I Details

This project will renovate an existing elevator at Embarcadero Station to improve reliability and accessibility for BART riders,
including people with disabilities, seniors, families with strollers, travelers with luggage, and bicyclists. The work will also
expand the south stairs and relocate the machine room.

The original plan called for a new elevator connecting the BART platform and concourse at the north end of the Embarcadero
BART/Muni Station. As part of the Embarcadero and Montgomery Capacity Implementation Plan and Modernization Study,
BART conducted extensive community outreach through open houses, surveys, fliers, news stories, email alerts, and social
media. The outreach aimed to inform riders about the planning process, build understanding of station capacity challenges,
gather feedback on potential solutions, and gauge preferences for improvements. Elevators were identified as a top capital
priority in BART’s 2019 Short Range Transit Plan and Capital Improvement Plan.

In 2019, the project went out to bid, but all proposals came in 75-100% above the engineer’s estimate. Although BART secured
additional funding, all bids were ultimately rejected, and the project approach was re-evaluated.

During redesign, several new challenges emerged. A limited pool of qualified contractors and location-specific restrictions
complicated delivery. One key lesson learned was that materials could only be moved below grade during non-revenue hours,
adding complexity and cost. These factors led to extensive internal reviews and schedule delays. To improve efficiency, BART
consolidated elevator modernization and new elevator projects under a single management team.

The COVID-19 pandemic further disrupted progress. Staffing shortages, leadership transitions, and retirements slowed project
momentum, while rising construction and material costs drove expenses higher. Together, these factors have significantly
increased the project’s overall cost and extended its delivery timeline.

Elevator Modernization Project | 2



129

Year
2012-2017 Construct new traction elevator system within paid area to improve customer S10 M
access to station with access to concourse and BART and Muni platforms
2018-2021 Construct new elevator in north side of the station $20.64M - $24.45M
Renovate and modernize existing hydraulic elevator currently serving
concourse and BART and Muni platforms
Demolish and rebuild wider south and north stairs, from 33 to 44” to improve
egress
Develop new machine room for new elevator
Option to construct stairs for Muni specific access (to be paid by SFMTA)
2022 Phase | Phase | - $24M-$25 M

Renovate and modernize hydraulic elevator #63

Demolish and rebuild wider south stairs

Relocate existing machine room

Phase Il Phase Il - S30 M
Construct new elevator in north side of the station

Construct new machine room for new elevator

Demolish and rebuild wider north stairs

Implement option for Muni stairs

From 2012 to 2017, the project scope focused on constructing a new elevator on the north side of the station within the
station’s paid area to improve customer access between the concourse and both BART and Muni platforms. At that time, the

estimated cost was $10 million.

In 2017, Disability Rights Advocates and Legal Aid at Work sued BART, alleging systemic discrimination against riders with
mobility disabilities due to broken, dirty, or inaccessible elevators, as well as non-functioning escalators and fare gates. In April
2024, a federal judge approved a class settlement requiring BART to improve accessibility systemwide. The agreement
mandates elevator and escalator renovations and preventative maintenance, timely repairs and cleaning, improved outage
communication, emergency preparedness protocols, staff training, and a complaint process for accessibility issues. The lawsuit
was brought on behalf of Senior and Disability Action, the Independent Living Resource Center of San Francisco, and two
individual plaintiffs with disabilities.

Between 2018 and 2021, the scope expanded significantly. In addition to constructing a new elevator on the north side of the
station, plans included renovating and modernizing the existing hydraulic elevator, demolishing and rebuilding both the south
and north stairs to widen them from 33 inches to 44 inches for improved egress, and developing a new machine room for the
new elevator. An optional component was also introduced for Muni-specific stairs, to be funded by SFMTA. With these
additions, the cost estimate rose to between $24 and $26 million. The project was advertised in September of 2019, with bid
opening in November of 2019 and all bids rejected in January 2020. COVID lock-down (California Stay at Home Order) occurred
in March of 2020 leading to additional challenges and delays.

Elevator Modernization Project | 3



130

In 2022, the project was restructured into phases to prioritize renovation of the existing platform elevator and widening the
south stairs only. Construction of a new north side elevator and widening of the north stairs was deferred to a subsequent
phase. Phase I includes renovating and modernizing elevator #63, demolishing and rebuilding the wider south stairs, and
relocating the existing machine room, with an updated estimate of $24.8M. Phase Il encompasses construction of the new
north-side elevator, development of a new machine room, demolition and reconstruction of the wider north stairs, and
implementation of the Muni stair option, at an estimated cost of $30 million.

This phased approach allows work to proceed in a logical sequence while managing funding availability, but also reflects the
expanded scope and increased costs over time.

‘—/[f-l:k.'ﬂl:lﬂ 52

£ vvoon
WRLILTS

VINDOR VAATE

N

TIATCN AGERT-MLN

CECALAROR Wi

SCALATCR PT
[FCALATOR b
[SCAMATIR Gd

AN

Construct machine room on MUNI Level  Relocate existing utilities and
and connect to the existing elevator reconfigure platform areas

Construct new decking on Concourse and Muni level and

relocate north/east stair

Elevator Modernization Project | 4



131

l'|' @ @ @ ®@ @ @ @ 6 & @ @
| | ‘
14 | | /- fuovaroa fies | . /- (s.r;u.m‘:n L]
® n/ @ @ wE/ﬂ I )
) ",i Install new elevator cab and connect to new machine room

N PECALATOR ’?/ CLEV. MACHINE RM.

Modify current elevator to serve as

Muni's primary elevator

| Construct new elevator and machine

room at current stairway location

Elevator Modernization Project | 5



132

I Project Location

Phase 1 Project Location

~ / D g
- . ' / & 4
Concoursgl'lan View ( it NN y
= N | _ Street Level M y Fi
N exit A3 L OamEA @l @J : Exit
. et : ; o : Al

= 1 Elevator ﬂ.gﬂl'ﬂ;atﬁ)rms : 1
WARKET : ! = (] HLJ MARK
STREET : ki [T] Wl < !Iﬂl H < 3 R STRE
ol e - =
B3 Exit B1 [~
= %

\ ‘
w
ST

South Stairs

Statien Section View ) . Street Level

Phase 2 Project Location

., i ..\-. g T
Concourse Plan View / S y o 4
= ~ ¥ Street Level
SPexitas . ommA | al .El_fﬂ“
- - 1 ' Elevator to Train Platforms 4 . ¥
MARKET e & T ® Iﬁl = (&l I4-] B
STREET ' [l | :

e . > ..
T Sl i g

w, Y EE North Elevator EE |
@‘ e (New) and North ”
stairs

Station Section View Street Level

Concourse

Elevator Modernization Project | 6



133

I Conclusion

Despite the project’s evolving scope, updated costs, and pandemic-related delays, the Embarcadero Station Platform Elevator
improvements remain a critical and appropriate use of Prop K and OBAG funds. The project directly addresses accessibility
needs identified in BART’s capital priorities and reinforced by the 2024 ADA settlement, ensuring that people with disabilities
and other riders who rely on elevators have safe, reliable access to one of the system’s busiest stations.

By modernizing a key station elevator, widening stairs to improve passenger flow, and upgrading supporting infrastructure,
the project advances regional goals of equity, safety, and system modernization. Leveraging Prop K and OBAG to deliver these
improvements maximizes local and regional investment in a project that is not only legally mandated but also essential for
maintaining BART's role as a dependable, inclusive transit system.

It is for this reason that BART requests amending grant number OBA-902012 (OBAG 2) and 120-902064 (Prop K) to include this
revised scope of work as well as a new requested end date for Prop K to 6/30/2027. Approval of this amendment will ensure
consistent funding, allow the project to remain on schedule, and enable BART to deliver critical accessibility and capacity
improvements at one of the system’s busiest stations.

Elevator Modernization Project | 7



134

ATTACHMENT 4

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ONE BAY AREA GRANT CYCLE 2 PROJECT LIST
AND PROP K STANDARD GRANT AGREEMENT FOR THE BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT'S EMBARCADERO STATION: NEW NORTHSIDE PLATFORM
ELEVATOR PROJECT TO REFLECT A NEW PHASED APPROACH TO PROJECT
DELIVERY

WHEREAS, In 2017, the Transportation Authority programmed $2,000,000 in
One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) Cycle 2 Funds for the Bay Area Rapid Transit District's
(BART's) Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform Elevator (Project), and in
2019 allocated $1,000,000 in Prop K funds to help fully fund the Project; and

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority received a request from BART to
amend the OBAG Cycle 2 Project List (Attachment 1) and the Prop K Standard Grant
Agreement (SGA) (SGA 120-902064) to reflect a phased project delivery approach
for the Project due to cost increases and other factors; and

WHEREAS, As summarized in Attachment 2, BART proposes to divide the
project into two phases where the subject Prop K grant and OBAG funds will be used
for Phase 1 including renovation and modernization of the existing elevator,
demolition and rebuilding of wider south stairs, and relocation of the existing
machine room; and Phase 2 will encompass construction of the new north-side
elevator, development of a new machine room, demolition and reconstruction of the
wider north stairs, and implementation of the Muni stair option, subject to funding
availability; and

WHEREAS, BART submitted a revised allocation request form for the Project,
included as Attachment 3, which updates the project name, scope, schedule, budget
and funding plan to reflect the new, phased approach to the Project; and

WHEREAS, The Metropolitan Transportation Commission, which administers
the OBAG program, is supportive of the proposed amendment to OBAG Cycle 2 list;

and

Page 1 of 4



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

WHEREAS, After reviewing BART’s amendment request, Transportation
Authority staff recommended amending the OBAG Cycle 2 Project List, as outlined in
Attachment 1, and the Prop K SGA for the Project, as described in Attachment 2, to
incorporate the information detailed in the revised allocation request form,
Attachment 3, which also includes updated deliverables, expiration date, and Fiscal
Year Cash Flow Distribution Schedule; and

WHEREAS, There is no impact to the Transportation Authority’s Fiscal Year
2025/26 budget; and

WHEREAS, At its September 24, 2025 meeting, the Community Advisory
Committee was briefed on the subject amendment requests and unanimously
adopted a motion of support for the staff recommendation; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby amends the OBAG
Cycle 2 Project List, as detailed in Attachment 1; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby amends the Prop K SGA
for the Project, as summarized in Attachment 2 and detailed in Attachment 3; and be
it further

RESOLVED, That the Capital Improvement Program of the Congestion
Management Program is hereby amended, as appropriate; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby authorizes the actual
expenditure (cash reimbursement) of Prop K funds for these activities to take place
subject to the Fiscal Year Cash Flow Distribution Schedule detailed in Attachment 3;
and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Capital Expenditures line item for subsequent fiscal year
annual budgets shall reflect the maximum Prop K reimbursement schedule amounts
adopted and the Transportation Authority does not guarantee reimbursement levels

higher than those adopted; and be it further

Page 2 of 4

135



136

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

RESOLVED, That as a condition of this authorization for expenditure, the
project sponsors shall provide the Transportation Authority with any other

information it may request regarding the use of the funds hereby authorized.

Attachments:
1. Amended OBAG Cycle 2 Project List

2. Proposed Prop K Standard Grant Agreement (120-902064) Amendment
3. Allocation Request Form

Page 3 of4



137

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800  info@sfcta.org  www.sfcta.org

Memorandum

AGENDA ITEM 9

DATE: September 25, 2025

TO: Transportation Authority Board

FROM: Anna LaForte - Deputy Director for Policy and Programming

SUBJECT: 10/7/2025 Board Meeting: Approve San Francisco’s Program of Projects for the
2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program, Totaling $9,887,000

RECOMMENDATION Olinformation [X Action O Fund Allocation

Approve San Francisco’s Program of Projects for the 2026 Fund Programming
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) O Policy/Legislation

i 9,887,000 in RTIP funds to:
programming $ in unasto O Plan/Study

1. Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC): O Capital Project

Planning, Programming, and Monitoring ($196,000) Oversight/Delivery

2. Transportation Authority: Planning, Programming, and 0 Budget/Finance

Menitoring ($298,000) O Contract/Agreement

3. MTC: Project to be Determined ($9,393,000)
O Other:

SUMMARY

As San Francisco’s Congestion Management Agency
(CMA), the Transportation Authority is responsible for
programming San Francisco’s county share RTIP funds.
The Board has long-standing RTIP priorities (Attachment
1) which currently reflect remaining commitments of
$15,699,654 for SFMTA's Central Subway and
$31,000,000 for MTC's Advance for Presidio Parkway, to
be programmed to an eligible project or projects of
SFMTA's and MTC's choice, respectively. These
commitments are of equal standing and have first call on
RTIP project funds until the commitments are fulfilled.
Due to an overcommitment of near-term RTIP funds, the
California Transportation Commission (CTC) has advised

that new RTIP programming is almost exclusively

Page 1 of 4



138

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 9 Page 2 of 4

available in Fiscal Years (FYs) 2029/30 and 2030/31.
SFMTA was unable to identify a project that would meet
eligibility and timely use of funds requirements for the
RTIP funds this cycle; thus, we recommend directing
$9,393,000 in RTIP funds to a project of MTC's choosing.
MTC will identify a project by December 2025 to meet its
own deadline for programming actions. For the 2028
RTIP, SFMTA would have priority for the first $9,393,000
in RTIP funds with MTC and SFMTA having equal priority
for any remaining funds. San Francisco’s proposed
remaining RTIP commitments are shown in Attachment
4. RTIP programming is subject to approval by the MTC
(anticipated in December) and the CTC (anticipated in
March 2026).

BACKGROUND

The State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) is a five-year investment plan
for certain state transportation money that is updated every two years by the CTC.
Regional spending plans, developed by the MTC for the nine county Bay Area region
and by other agencies elsewhere in California, account for 75% of the STIP. These are
known as Regional Transportation Improvement Programs or RTIPs. The RTIPs can
fund a broad range of capital projects from bike paths to highway redesigns or rail
line extensions. The remaining 25% of the STIP is a statewide spending plan known
as the Interregional Transportation Improvement Program, which is developed by the
state department of transportation (Caltrans) to fund projects that connect metro
areas or cross regional boundaries.

The CTC's RTIP guidelines include strict timely use of funds deadlines. For instance,
RTIP funds must be allocated by the CTC in the year they are programmed, and
sponsors may not incur costs against RTIP funds or advertise a contract for work to be
performed prior to allocation. Further, projects must have a fully funded phase (e.g.
construction) to receive an allocation and must be ready to award a contract within
six months of allocation. As in previous RTIP programming cycles, these and other
eligibility requirements significantly narrowed the list of potential projects that are
good candidates for the 2026 RTIP.

San Francisco’s Remaining RTIP Commitments. In 2005, the Transportation
Authority Board adopted a list of San Francisco RTIP priorities to help fund some of



139

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 9 Page 3 of4

the major capital projects in the Prop K Expenditure Plan. Attachment 1 shows the
two remaining RTIP priorities with commitments totaling over $46 million: SFMTA's
Central Subway and payback to MTC of an advance for Presidio Parkway (Doyle
Drive). Since the Central Subway and Presidio Parkway contracts have all been
awarded, we cannot program RTIP funds directly to those projects and are meeting
the commitments instead by funding other RTIP-eligible SFMTA and MTC projects, as
RTIP funds become available.

DISCUSSION

Funds Available. MTC has initiated development of the 2026 RTIP, providing
guidance based on CTC-adopted guidelines and the 2026 Fund Estimate. For the
2026 RTIP, San Francisco has $9,887,000 in new RTIP funds that can be programmed
in FYs 2028/29 through 2030/31 to RTIP-eligible projects (Attachment 2). These
funds are split into two categories: $494,000 for planning, programming and
monitoring and $9,393,000 for capital projects. Due to an overcommitment of near-
term RTIP funds, CTC has advised that new RTIP programming is almost exclusively
available in FYs 2029/30 and 2030/31.

Staff Recommendation. Our staff recommendations for 2026 RTIP programming
are summarized in Attachment 3 and described below.

¢ Planning, Programming and Monitoring (PPM)($196,000 MTC, $298,000
SFCTA). CTC guidelines allow up to 5% of RTIP funds to be used for PPM
activities such as regional transportation planning, program development,
and oversight of state and federally funded projects. MTC and the CMAs have
a long-standing arrangement to split the PPM funds in recognition of the role
each agency plays in advancing the state’s transportation goals. We have
primarily used our PPM funds to support project delivery oversight of
regionally significant major capital projects such as The Portal and Caltrain
Electrification. Per CTC guidelines, $494,000 in new PPM programming is
available to be split between MTC ($196,000) and the Transportation
Authority ($298,000). The CTC's required Project Programming Request form
for the recommended Transportation Authority PPM funds is included as
Attachment 5.

e MTC Project TBD ($9,393,000). Our recommendation for the 2026 RTIP
capital project funds is to program all $9,393,000 to a project of MTC's
choosing. As mentioned in the memo summary, while the Board's long-
standing RTIP priorities (Attachment 1) assigned equal standing to the



140

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 9 Page 4 of 4

remaining SFMTA Central Subway ($15,699,654) and MTC Advance for
Presidio Parkway ($31,000,000) commitments, the SFMTA was not able to
identify an eligible project that would be able to meet all timely use of funds
requirements associated with this funding source for the 2026 RTIP cycle.
Therefore, we recommend programming all of the 2026 RTP project funds to
a project of MTC's choosing and giving SFMTA priority for the first $9,393,000
of available funds in the 2028 RTIP. SFMTA and MTC would have equal
priority for any additional RTIP funds until our outstanding commitments are
fulfilled. MTC will identify the specific project to be funded prior to the MTC
Commission adoption of the RTIP priorities later this calendar year.

Next Steps. After the Board adopts San Francisco’s 2026 RTIP Program of Projects,
we will submit the Program of Projects to MTC by its October 31, 2025 deadline. The
MTC Commission is expected to consider the 2026 RTIP on December 17, 2025. The
CTC will consider adopting the 2026 RTIP at its March 19, 2026, meeting. Provided
that our nominated projects adhere to MTC and CTC RTIP guidelines, we do not
anticipate any issues with securing those approvals.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The recommended action would not have an impact on the Fiscal Year 2025/26
budget. The proposed PPM funds, following approval by the CTC, would be
included in the agency’'s FY 2029/30 budget.

CAC POSITION

The CAC considered this item at its September 24, 2025 meeting and unanimously
adopted a motion of support for the staff recommendation.

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS

e Attachment 1 - Current Remaining RTIP Commitments

e Attachment 2 - 2026 RTIP New Funds Available for San Francisco

e Attachment 3 - 2026 Proposed Program of Projects

e Attachment 4 - Proposed Remaining RTIP Commitments

e Attachment 5 - Project Programming Request Form - SFCTA PPM (1)
e Attachment 6 - Resolution



Attachment 1.
San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Current Remaining Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) Commitments’

141

Initial RTIP Current Remaining

Project 2 Commitment RTIP Commitment
Central Subway ® $92,000,000 $15,699,654
MTC STP/CMAQ Advance for Presidio Parkway * $34,000,000 $31,000,000
Caltrain Downtown Extension [Fulfilled] $28,000,000 $0
Caltrain Electrification [Fulfilled] $24,000,000 $0
Presidio Parkway [Fulfilled] $84,101,000 $0
Total $262,101,000 $46,699,654

' Based on Transportation Authority Board-adopted RTIP priorities last amended by Resolution 24-15,
approved October 24, 2023. Per Resolution 24-15, repayment of remaining RTIP commitments to MTC and

SFMTA have equal priority in the 2026 RTIP.

2Acronyms include Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ), Metropolitan Transportation Commission
(MTC), San Francisco County Transportation Authority (SFCTA), San Francisco Municipal Transportation
Agency (SFMTA), and Surface Transportation Program (STP).

® Since sufficient RTIP funds were unavailable when SFMTA was awarding the Central Subway construction
contracts, we are honoring this commitment by programming new Regional Improvement Program (RIP)
funds when they become available to other SFMTA eligible projects to comply with RTIP guidelines.

4 Through Resolution 12-44, the SFCTA accepted MTC's proposed advance of $34 million in STP/CMAQ
funds for Presidio Parkway to be repaid with future county share RTIP funds. On September 22, 2021 as part
of its approval of the 2022 RTIP guidelines, the MTC reduced the Transportation Authority's remaining
commitment by $3 million, contingent on the Transportation Authority allocating $3 million in local funds to
serve as MTC's contribution to the next phase of project development for the Caltrain Downtown Extension

project.



142

Attachment 2.

2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP)

New Funds Available for San Francisco

The 2026 RTIP covers five years (Fiscal Years (FYs) 2026/27 - 2030/31). However, the
California Transportation Commission has advised that new project programming is
almost exclusively available only in the last two years, FY 2029/30 and FY 2030/31,
with very small amounts in FY 2026/27 and FY 2028/29.

Programmin | San Francisco County Eligible Activities
g Category Share - New
Programming
SECTA.: Up to 5% allowable per 3-year county
" | share period, FY 2028/29 - 2030/31,
$298,000 | (different than 5-year range of the RTIP)
. for PPM activities including regional
Planning, ' transportation planning, program
Programming, MTC: | development, and project monitoring.
and o $196 000 | MTC and the Congestion Management
Monitoring I Agencies have a long-standing
(PPM) arrangement to split the PPM in
PPM subtotal: | recognition of the role each agency plays
in advancing the state’s transportation
$494,000 goals.
Capital projects to improve
New formula | transportation, including highways, local
distribution: | roads, bicycle and pedestrian facilities,
$9,393.000 and t'ransit. projects. For the 2026 RTIP,
transit projects must be State
Capital Constitution Article XIX compliant (e.g.
Projects no rolling stock) or must seek federal-
. . only funding and provide required
Capital Projects | ,;iching funds if no state Public
subtotal: | 151550 rtation Account funds are
$9,393,000 | available. Can fund environmental,
design, right of way and construction
phases.
Total: $9,887,000




Proposed San Francisco 2026 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) Programming Priorities

Attachment 3.

Project Totals by Fiscal Year ($ 1,000's)
CTC has advised that new project programming is almost exclusively available in the last two years,
FY 2029/30 and FY 2030/31

Agency ' Project Total FY 2026/27 FY 2027/28 FY 2028/29 | FY 2029/30 | FY 2030/31 Phase
2024 RTIP Programming Priorities
SFMTA New Flyer Midiife Overhaul - $45,569 $45,569 Construction
Phase llI
Planning, programming, and
SFCTA Monitoring $927 $326 $327 $274 n/a
Planning, Programming, and
MTC Monitoring $279 $91 $93 $95 n/a
Funds Programmed to 2024 RTIP Priorities $46,775 $417 $45,989 $369
2025 MTC RTIP Programming - Fund Exchange2
SEMTA New Flyer Midlife Overhaul - $18,270 $18,270
Phase llI
MTC RTIP Fund Exchange $18,270 $18,270
New 2026 RTIP Programming Priorities
MTC Project TBD $9,393 $9,393 TBD
SFCTA Plan'nln'g, programming, and $298 $208 n/a
Monitoring
Planning, Programming, and
MTC Monitoring $196 $98 $98 n/a
Proposed 2026 RTIP Programming $9,887 $9,789 $98
Total RTIP Funds Available $9,887

Surplus/(Shortfall)

$0

! Acronyms include the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), San Francisco County Transportation Authority (SFCTA), and San Francisco Municipal Transportation

Agency (SFMTA).

ZMTC programmed $18.27 million in MTC RTIP funds reserved for the Housing Incentive Pool (HIP) program to the SFMTA's New Flyer Mid-Life Overhauls Phase Il project in
exchange for a like amount of Prop L funds for a HIP-eligible SFMTA project or projects. The benefits of this fund exchange include: earlier availability of the HIP funds than if they
were in the RTIP (FY31 for RTIP funds); ability for SFMTA to use flexible Prop L funds instead of RTIP funds, which are much more restrictive; and, the mid-life overhauls project
would become a top priority for RTIP programming in the region. The $18.27 million in MTC RTIP funds are in addition to the $45.569 million in San Francisco RTIP funds that the
SFCTA Board recommended programming to the bus overhauls in October 2023.

143



144

San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Proposed Remaining Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) Commitments™

Attachment 4

Proposed October 2025

Proposed
Initial RTIP Current Remaining Proposed New Remaining RTIP
Project2 Commitment RTIP Commitment | Funds 2026 RTIP Commitment
Central Subway® $92,000,000 $15,699,654 $0 $15,699,654
MTC STP/CMAQ Advance for Presidio Parkway* $34,000,000 $31,000,000 $9,393,000 $21,607,000
Caltrain Downtown Extension [Fulfilled] $28,000,000 $0 $0 $0
Caltrain Electrification [Fulfilled] $24,000,000 $0 $0
Presidio Parkway [Fulfilled] $84,101,000 $0 $0
Total $262,101,000 $46,699,654 $9,393,000 $37,306,654

! Based on Transportation Authority Board-adopted RTIP priorities last amended by Resolution 24-15 approved October 24, 2023. Per Resolution 2024-15,
remaining RTIP commitments to MTC and SFMTA have equal priority in the 2026 RTIP recommendations.

2Acronyms include Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ), Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), San Francisco County Transportation
Authority (SFCTA), San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA), and Surface Transportation Program (STP).

® Since sufficient RTIP funds were unavailable when SFMTA was awarding the Central Subway construction contracts, SFCTA is honoring this commitment
by programming new RTIP funds when they become available to other SFMTA eligible projects to comply with RTIP guidelines.

4Through Resolution 12-44, the SFCTA accepted MTC's proposed advance of $34 million in STP/CMAQ funds for Presidio Parkway to be repaid with future
county share RTIP funds. On September 22, 2021 as part of its approval of the 2022 RTIP guidelines, the MTC reduced the Transportation Authority's
remaining commitment by $3 million, contingent on the Transportation Authority allocating $3 million in local funds to serve as MTC's contribution to the next
phase of project development for the Caltrain Downtown Extension project.

® Proposed 2026 RTIP would program $9.393 million from San Francisco's share of available project funds to partially paydown the remaining commitment
to MTC. For the 2028 RTIP, SFMTA would have priority for the first $9.393 million in RTIP project funds to go toward the Central Subway RTP commitment.
MTC and SFMTA would have equal priority for any remaining project funds in the 2028 RTIP beyond the first $9.393 million.




STATE OF CALIFORNIA « DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PROJECT PROGRAMMING REQUEST (PPR)
PRG-0010 (REV 08/2020)

ATTACHMENT 5

PPRID
ePPR-6272-2026-0001 v0

Amendment (Existing Project) |:| YES IZ NO

Date | 09/11/2025 17:43:14

Programs [ ]LPP-C [ ] LPP-F []sccp [ ]TCEP

X sTIP [] Other |

District EA Project ID PPNO Nominating Agency
04 San Francisco County Transportation Authority
County Route PM Back PM Ahead Co-Nominating Agency
San Francisco Count
MPO Element
MTC Local Assistance
Project Manager/Contact Phone Email Address

Mike Pickford 415-522-4822

mike.pickford@sfcta.org

Project Title

Planning, Programming and Monitoring

Location (Project Limits), Description (Scope of Work)

Planning, Programming and Monitoring

Component Implementing Agency
PA&ED San Francisco County Transportation Authority
PS&E
Right of Way
Construction San Francisco County Transportation Authority

Legislative Districts

Assembly: 17,19 Senate:

11 Congressional:

12,14

Project Milestone

Existing

Proposed

Project Study Report Approved

Begin Environmental (PA&ED) Phase

Circulate Draft Environmental Document Document Type

Draft Project Report

End Environmental Phase (PA&ED Milestone)

Begin Design (PS&E) Phase

End Design Phase (Ready to List for Advertisement Milestone)

Begin Right of Way Phase

End Right of Way Phase (Right of Way Certification Milestone)

Begin Construction Phase (Contract Award Milestone)

End Construction Phase (Construction Contract Acceptance Milestone)

Begin Closeout Phase

End Closeout Phase (Closeout Report)




ilAﬁ CALIFORNIA « DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PPRID
CT PROGRAMMING REQUEST (PPR) ePPR-6272-2026-0001 v0
PRG-0010 (REV 08/2020)

Date 09/11/2025 17:43:14

Purpose and Need

The purpose and need of the funds include monitoring STIP project implementation, including timely use of funds, project delivery, and
compliance with State law and the California Transportation Commissioners guidelines.

NHS Improvements [ ] YES [X] NO |Roadway Class NA Reversible Lane Analysis [ ] YES [X] NO
Inc. Sustainable Communities Strategy Goals [X] YES [ ] NO Reduce Greenhouse Gas Emissions [ | YES [X] NO
Project Outputs

Category Outputs Unit Total




STATE OF CALIFORNIA « DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PPR ID
PROJECT PROGRAMMING REQUEST (PPR)

ePPR-6272-2026-0001 vO
PRG-0010 (REV 08/2020)

Date 09/11/2025 17:43:14

Additional Information




aRA%ﬁCALIFORNIA - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
CT PROGRAMMING REQUEST (PPR)

PRG-0010 (REV 08/2020)

PPRID

ePPR-6272-2026-0001 v0

Performance Indicators and Measures

Measure

Required For

Indicator/Measure

Unit

Build

Future No Build

Change




STATE OF CALIFORNIA « DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PROJECT PROGRAMMING REQUEST (PPR)

PRG-0010 (REV 08/2020)

PPRID
ePPR-6272-2026-0001 v0

District County

Route

EA

Project ID PPNO

04 San Francisco County

Project Title

Planning, Programming and Monitoring

Existing Total Project Cost ($1,000s)

Component Prior 26-27 27-28 28-29

29-30

30-31

31-32+

Total

Implementing Agency

E&P (PA&ED)

San Francisco County Transportation

PS&E

R/W SUP (CT)

CON SUP (CT)

San Francisco County Transportation

R/W

CON

San Francisco County Transportation

TOTAL

Proposed Total Project Cost ($1,000s)

Notes

E&P (PA&ED)

PS&E

R/W SUP (CT)

CON SUP (CT)

R/W

CON 579 326 327 274

298

1,804

TOTAL 579 326 327 274

298

1,804

Fund #1: | RIP - National Hwy System (Committed)

Program Code

Existing Funding ($1,000s)

Component Prior 26-27 27-28 28-29

29-30

30-31

31-32+

Total

Funding Agency

E&P (PA&ED)

PS&E

R/W SUP (CT)

CON SUP (CT)

R/W

CON

TOTAL

Proposed Funding ($1

,000s)

Notes

E&P (PA&ED)

PS&E

R/W SUP (CT)

CON SUP (CT)

R/W

CON

298

298

TOTAL

298

298

2026 STIP




aagﬂCALlFORNlA - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
CT PROGRAMMING REQUEST (PPR)
PRG-0010 (REV 08/2020)

PPRID
ePPR-6272-2026-0001 v0

Fund #2:

‘ RIP - National Hwy System (Committed)

Program Code

Existing Funding ($1,

000s)

Component

Prior 26-27 27-28 28-29

29-30

30-31

31-32+

Total

Funding Agency

E&P (PA&ED)

PS&E

R/W SUP (CT)

CON SUP (CT)

R/W

CON

TOTAL

Proposed Funding ($1

,000s)

Notes

E&P (PA&ED)

PS&E

R/W SUP (CT)

CON SUP (CT)

R/W

CON

326 327 274

927

TOTAL

326 327 274

927

2024 STIP

Fund #3:

RIP - National Hwy System (Committed)

Program Code

Existing Funding ($1,000s)

Component

Prior 26-27 27-28 28-29

29-30

30-31

31-32+

Total

Funding Agency

E&P (PA&ED)

PS&E

R/W SUP (CT)

CON SUP (CT)

R/W

CON

TOTAL

Proposed Funding ($1

,000s)

Notes

E&P (PA&ED)

PS&E

R/W SUP (CT)

CON SUP (CT)

R/W

CON

579

579

TOTAL

579

579

2020 STIP and 2022 STIP




ATTACHMENT 6

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD101725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

RESOLUTION APPROVING SAN FRANCISCO’S PROGRAM OF PROJECTS FOR THE
2026 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

WHEREAS, The State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) is a five-year
investment plan for state transportation money, distributed through the Regional
Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) and the Interregional Improvement
Program which can fund a wide variety of projects including major transit expansion,
highway repair and redesign, and bicycle and pedestrian projects; and

WHEREAS, CTC guidelines allow a portion of RTIP funds to be used for
Planning, Programming, and Monitoring (PPM) activities such as regional
transportation planning, program development, and oversight of state and federally
funded projects; and

WHEREAS, As Congestion Management Agency (CMA) for San Francisco, the
Transportation Authority is responsible for programming San Francisco’s county share
of RTIP funds, subject to approval by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission
(MTC) and the California Transportation Commission (CTC); and

WHEREAS, The 2026 RTIP covers five years (Fiscal Years (FYs) 2026/27-
2030/31), but the CTC has advised that new project programming is almost
exclusively available in FYs 2029/30 and FY 2030/31; and

WHEREAS, For the 2026 RTIP, San Francisco has a total of $9,887,000 in RTIP
funds with up to $494,000 available for planning, programming and monitoring
(PPM) and $9,393,000 for RTIP-eligible capital projects as shown in Attachment 1;
and

WHEREAS, MTC and the CMAs have a long-standing arrangement to split
PPM funds in recognition of the role each agency plays in advancing the state’s
transportation goals; and

WHEREAS, Transportation Authority staff recommend programming $298,000
for the Transportation Authority and $196,000 for MTC in PPM funds; and

151



152

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD101725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

WHEREAS, With respect to the $9,393,000 available for RTIP-eligible capital
projects, the Board has long-standing RTIP priorities shown in Attachment 2 which
currently reflect remaining commitments of $15,699,654 for SFMTA's Central Subway
and $31,000,000 for MTC's Advance for Presidio Parkway, to be programmed to an
eligible project or projects of SFMTA's and MTC's choice, respectively, with equal
priority until those commitments are fulfilled; and

WHEREAS, Transportation Authority staff worked with SFMTA and MTC to
identify candidate projects for the 2026 RTIP; and

WHEREAS, SFMTA was unable to identify a project that would meet eligibility
and timely use of funds requirements for the 2026 RTIP cycle; thus, Transportation
Authority staff recommend directing all $9,393,000 in RTIP project funds to a project
of MTC's choosing, which MTC will identify prior to MTC Commission adoption of Bay
Area RTIP priorities in December; and

WHEREAS, Transportation Authority staff recommend that for the 2028 RTIP,
SFMTA have priority for the first $9,393,000 in RTIP funds with MTC and SFMTA
having equal priority for any remaining funds until their RTIP commitments are
fulfilled; and

WHEREAS, Attachment 3 is the required Project Programming Request Form
with additional detail on the scope, schedule, cost and funding for the proposed PPM
funds for the Transportation Authority; and

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority must submit its approved 2026 RTIP
priorities to MTC by October 31, 2025; and

WHEREAS, At its September 25, 2025 meeting, the Community Advisory
Committee considered the staff recommended 2026 RTIP Program of Projects and
unanimously adopted a motion of support for the staff recommendation; now,
therefore, be it

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby adopts San Francisco's
2026 RTIP Program of Projects as shown in Attachment 3 and conditioned on MTC



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD101725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

and CTC approval of San Francisco’s 2026 RTIP Program of Projects, updates San

Francisco’s Remaining RTIP Commitments as shown in Attachment 4; and be it further
RESOLVED, That the Executive Director is authorized to communicate this

information to MTC by its deadline and to all other relevant agencies and interested

parties.

Attachments:

1. 2026 RTIP Funds Available

2. Remaining RTIP Commitments

3. Project Programming Request Form for PPM Proposed 2026 RTIP Program
of Projects

4. Proposed Remaining RTIP Commitments

153



154

[ this page intentionally left blank ]

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

1455 Market Street, 22nD Floor, San Francisco, California 94103 415-522-4800

Memorandum

AGENDA ITEM 10
DATE: September 25, 2025

TO: Transportation Authority Board

info@sfcta.org www.sfcta.org

FROM: Cynthia Fong - Deputy Director for Finance and Administration

SUBJECT: 10/07/2025 Board Meeting: Authorize Borrowing of up to $60 million under the
Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement with U.S. Bank National

Association

RECOMMENDATION OiInformation Action

Authorize Borrowing of up to $60 million from the Amended
and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement with U.S. Bank
National Association

SUMMARY

The purpose of this memo is to brief the Board on our debt
management strategy for the sales tax program and to request
authorization to borrow up to an additional $60 million,
bringing the total authorized borrowing amount up to $125
million, from our $185 million Amended and Restated
Revolving Credit Agreement (Revolver) with U.S. Bank
National Association (U.S. Bank). We anticipate needing to
draw on available funds under the Revolver to meet capital
reimbursement requests for the sales tax program. The
Revolver is a short-term variable rate financing vehicle through
a direct loan with a commercial bank. As of September 19,
2025, we have fully drawn on $65 million of available funds
previously approved by the Board to reimburse light rail
vehicle procurements and $120 million remains available to
draw upon to fund upcoming sales tax capital expenditures.
Through ongoing discussions with our sponsors (particularly
San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA)) and
financial advisor, KNN Public Finance, we have conducted
cash flow analyses and anticipate the need to borrow $60

million over the next several months from the Revolver to meet

O Fund Allocation

O Fund Programming
O Policy/Legislation
O Plan/Study

O Capital Project
Oversight/Delivery

Budget/Finance
O Contract/Agreement
O Other:

Page 1 of 5

155



156

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 10 Page 2 of 5

our financial commitments. We have been tracking some of
the largest sales tax projects and programs in terms of the
amount of the funds allocated and remaining to be
reimbursed (Attachment 1), most of which are in active
construction phases or reaching other milestones that will
trigger large sales tax reimbursement requests. Among the
major cash driver projects are the purchase of new SFMTA
light rail vehicles and motor coaches and BART Fleet of the
Future rail cars. Consistent with our debt management
approach, we would use the Revolver to meet short-term cash
needs, providing time for us to prepare to issue long-term

debt (e.g., bonds) over the next few years, if needed.

BACKGROUND

We receive revenues from the one-half of one percent sales tax which are dedicated
toward financing transportation improvements in the voter approved sales tax
Expenditure Plan (Prop L, approved in 2022, which superseded Prop K, approved in
2003). In Fiscal Year (FY) 2024/25 our sales tax revenues were $110.1 million, and we
budgeted FY 2025/26 sales tax revenue collections at approximately the same level.
To fund transportation projects under the Prop K and Prop L Expenditure Plans, we
have relied on pay-go sales tax revenues and interim financing under the Amended
and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement Loan (Revolver) program. The Revolver is
an alternative variable rate financing vehicle to traditional commercial paper notes
and is a loan directly from a commercial bank. From time to time, we have utilized
available funding under our interim borrowing program to fund peak capital
expenditures that could not be met with available sales tax revenues.

In 2017, we issued our first and only long-term bond issuance to date - the Senior
Sales Tax Revenue Bond, Series 2017 (the Senior Lien Bonds), which provided
approximately $200 million in bond proceeds for projects as well as repaying
amounts previously drawn under a prior revolving credit agreement and paying
related costs. Currently, $164,515,000 of the Senior Lien Bonds are outstanding and
we pay approximately $21.3 million of annual principal and interest payments
through FY 2033/34.

On October 31, 2024, we entered into a Revolver with U.S. Bank for $185 million.
Borrowed amounts under the Revolver carry a rate of interest equal to the sum of
Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) Index plus a fixed
credit spread (subject to adjustment if our credit rating changes). Unborrowed



157

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 10 Page 3 of 5

amounts under the Revolver are subject to a commitment fee of 0.20%. The Revolver
expires on October 29, 2027. The Revolver is secured by a lien on our sales tax
revenues subordinate to the Senior Lien Bonds.

DISCUSSION

We anticipate drawing on a portion of the subject $60 million in funds available
under the Revolver, as soon as November 2025, to meet the anticipated capital
reimbursement requests for the sales tax program. Through ongoing discussions
with our sponsors (particularly the SFMTA) and analysis conducted with our financial
advisor, KNN Public Finance, we have conducted the necessary cash flow review that
confirms our budget assumption of needing to borrow $60 million over the next
several months from the Revolver. Further, if the pace of project delivery and
reimbursements ramps up as anticipated, we may return to the Board for permission
to draw additional funds over the next 6 months. Currently, the Revolver has funding
capacity of $120 million. Following the requested additional borrowing of $60
million, funding capacity of $60 million would remain.

The need to address a rapid spike in reimbursement requests is precisely why we
have a flexible debt instrument like the Revolver in place and it is why we have been
closely tracking some of the largest projects (largest in terms of the amount of sales
tax funds allocated and remaining to be reimbursed), most of which are in active
construction phases or reaching other milestones that will trigger large sales tax
reimbursement requests. Some of the major cash driver projects for FYs 2024/25 and
2025/26 are the SFMTA's Light Rail Vehicles procurement, Motor Coaches
procurement, L-Taraval Transit Enhancements, various signals and signs projects, and
Van Ness Bus Rapid Transit; the Transbay Joint Powers Authority’s The Portal/Caltrain
Downtown Extension; and BART's Next Generation Fare Gates and Core Capacity
Fleet of the Future vehicles. Attachment 1 shows that in aggregate, if project
sponsors were to seek the maximum reimbursement allowable per the grant
agreement as amended, reimbursements could total $133.6 million just for the major
cash drivers by the end of FY 2025/26. While we do not anticipate that this full
amount is likely to be requested for reimbursement in FY2025/26, we are expecting
to see a significant portion requested for reimbursement in the next six months.

We will receive first quarter reimbursements requests in November. Typically, capital
reimbursements from sponsors ramp up over the course of the fiscal year, with the
fourth quarter resulting in the highest level of capital reimbursements paid by our
agency.



158

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 10 Page 4 of 5

We expect to continue to utilize an interim borrowing program in tandem with pay-
go sales tax revenues to meet our near-term transportation expenditure needs.
Concurrently, we are working on a schedule that calls for our agency to be ready to
potentially issue our second long-term bond within the next several years. The
intrinsic flexibility of the Revolver, in combination with a long-term bond, supports
our long-term financing plan to advance funds for projects to deliver the benefits
sooner to the public, while minimizing financing costs. We will continue to monitor
sales tax revenues and capital spending closely through a combination of cash flow
needs for allocation reimbursements, progress reports, and conversations with
project sponsors.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The proposed FY 2025/26 budget already incorporates the need to borrow $60
million under the Revolver to help pay for anticipated capital project reimbursement
requests. Amounts borrowed under the Revolver bear a rate of interest equal to the
sum of SIFMA, a tax-exempt variable rate index, plus a fixed credit spread (subject to
adjustment if our credit rating changes). As of September 10, 2025, our cost of
borrowing (interest rate) under the current Revolver facility is 3.18% and its cost of
maintaining the facility on an unutilized basis is 0.20%. If we identify the need for
additional borrowing from the Revolver, we would seek Board approval to do so and
would reflect the additional amount in the mid-year Fiscal Year 2025/26 budget
amendment as well as the budget for future fiscal years, as appropriate. The
outstanding loan balance is required to be paid off or transferred to a long-term
bond at the expiration date of the current Revolver, October 29, 2027, unless certain
conditions are met. The interest rate on amounts not paid by October 29, 2027,
would be substantially higher.

PUBLIC NOTICE - GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 5852.1

The following information is made available in accordance with Government Code,
Section 5852.1 to provide certain public disclosures related to the proposed
borrowing. All figures represent good faith estimates based on the current U.S. Bank
Revolver terms and assume i) a drawn facility up to the proposed total amount of
$125 million, ii) a variable rate of interest based on the current U.S. Bank Revolver
rate, iii) our current credit ratings, and iv) a borrowing term through the term of the
current Revolver facility of October 29, 2027.

1) True Interest Cost of the Revolver. Based on the current SIFMA variable rate



159

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

Agenda ltem 10 Page 5 of 5

2)

3)

4)

index, a good faith estimate of the true interest cost of borrowing an
additional $60 million plus the currently outstanding $65 million under the
Revolver is 3.15%. The unutilized cost of the remaining $60 million undrawn
on the Revolver is 0.20%. On a weighted average basis, the True Interest Cost
of the Revolveris 2.19%.

Finance Charge of the Revolver. The sum of all fees and charges paid to third
parties (or costs associated with the issuance of the Bank Note), is $45,266.

Revolver Proceeds to be Received. The amount of proceeds expected to be
received by the Transportation Authority for borrowings under the Revolver
less the finance charge to third parties described in #2 above and any
reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the Revolver,
is $60 million. The finance charge to third parties described in #2 above is not
expected to be paid from Revolver proceeds.

Total Payment Amount. Assuming an aggregate borrowed principal amount of
$125 million of borrowings under the Revolver and based on an assumed
current variable rate of interest over the remaining term of the current
Revolver, a good faith estimate of the total payment amount, which means the
sum total of all payments the Transportation Authority will make to pay interest
only debt service on the Revolver plus the unutilized cost associated with the
$60 million remaining undrawn amount, calculated to the term of the current
Revolver, is $8,115,000.

CAC POSITION

The Community Advisory Committee considered this item at its September 24, 2025,

meeting and unanimously adopted a motion of support for the staff

recommendation.

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS

Attachment 1 - Revolver Loan Cash Drivers Table
Attachment 2 - Resolution



160

ATTACHMENT 1

Transportation Sales Tax Capital Expenditures - Largest Cash Flow Drivers FY 2024/25-FY 2025/26

Reimbursed in Remaining FY 2024/25
Name Reimbursed in | FY 2025/26 (as | Approved Cash | Reimbursed + FY
FY 2024/25 of September | Flow Through | 2025/26 Approved
10, 2025) FY 2025/26 Cash Flow
Muni Light Rail Vehicles $35,949,430 $0 $766,234 $36,715,664
Paratransit $14,158,429 $6,114,068 $8,985,874 $29,258,372
BART Core Capacity (Fleet of
the Future Train Cars) $0 $0 $27,127,866 $27,127,866
Muni Motor Coaches $6,105,702 $176 $17,876,834 $23,982,712
The Portal/Caltrain
Downtown Extension $7,782,236 $891,196 $13,711,865 $22,385,297
Caltrain State of Good
Repair $8,568,444 $1,777,660 $11,815,576 $22,161,680
Muni Facilities $2,196,626 $25,485 $17,335,041 $19,557,151
Pavement Renovation $5,353,262 $1,372,264 $10,266,694 $16,992,220
Van Ness Bus Rapid Transit $3,281,519 $4,304,864 $5,760,790 $13,347,173
L-Taraval Transit
Enhancements $10,855,513 $0 $1,617,743 $12,473,256
BART Fare Gates $3,466,638 $1,657,813 $7,249,266 $12,373,717
Signals and Signs $4,226,113 $1,469,246 $6,018,660 $11,714,019
Better Market Street $6,187,299 $0 $5,048,493 $11,235,792
Totals $108,131,211 $17,612,771 | $133,580,935 $259,324,917

'"These project categories represent 81% of FY 2024/25 reimbursements, and about 60% of possible FY
2025/26 reimbursements of currently active Prop K and Prop L grants.




ATTACHMENT 2 1 61
San Francisco
County Transportation

Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE BORROWING OF UP TO $60,000,000 UNDER
THE AMENDED AND RESTATED REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT WITH U.S.
BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION; THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF RELATED
LEGAL DOCUMENTS; AND THE TAKING OF ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY OR
DESIRABLE IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, The San Francisco County Transportation Authority (the
Transportation Authority) is a county transportation authority duly organized and
existing pursuant to the Bay Area County Traffic and Transportation Funding Act,
being Division 12.5 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California (Sections
131000 et seq.) (Act); and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 153-22 (Ordinance) was passed on first reading by
the Board of Supervisors of the City and County of San Francisco (the Board of
Supervisors) on July 12, 2022, finally passed on July 19, 2022 and approved by the
Mayor of the City and County of San Francisco on July 21, 2022; and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to the Ordinance, the Board of Supervisors adopted a
new county transportation expenditure plan (the 2022 Transportation Expenditure
Plan) that superseded the prior transportation expenditure plan and provided for an
election for the purpose of submitting to the voters a measure to enact the
Ordinance (Proposition L) that would, among other things, authorize implementation
of the 2022 Transportation Expenditure Plan, continue collection of the retail
transactions and use tax applicable in the City and County of San Francisco at the
existing level of one-half of one percent (1/2%) (Sales Tax), continue in effect the
Transportation Authority as the independent agency to administer the Sales Tax and
the 2022 Transportation Expenditure Plan, and authorize the Transportation
Authority to issue limited tax bonds from time to time, in a total aggregate amount
not to exceed $1,910,000,000 secured by and payable from the proceeds of the

Sales Tax; and

Page 1 of 6



162

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

WHEREAS, Proposition L was approved by more than two-thirds of the
electors voting on the measure to authorize enactment at the election held for such
purpose on November 8, 2022; and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Sections 131109, 131119 and 131120 of the Act, the
Ordinance and other applicable law, the Transportation Authority is authorized to
issue limited tax bonds or bond anticipation notes secured by and payable from the
proceeds of the Sales Tax levied by the Transportation Authority; and

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority is party to an Amended and Restated
Revolving Credit Agreement, dated October 31, 2024 (Revolving Credit Agreement
or Revolver), by and between the Transportation Authority and U.S. Bank National
Association (U.S. Bank) pursuant to which the Transportation Authority may borrow
amounts from U.S. Bank from time to time in accordance with the terms of such
Revolving Credit Agreement and may have up to $185,000,000 outstanding at any
one time; and

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority’s obligations to repay amounts
borrowed under the Revolving Credit Agreement constitute limited tax bonds
payable from and secured by the Sales Tax as provided in the Third Amended and
Restated Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2017, as supplemented and amended
(Indenture), by and between the Transportation Authority and U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association, as successor Trustee, and by the Sales Tax Revenues
Bank Note (Limited Tax Bond) of the Transportation Authority dated October 31,
2024 (Bank Note) issued pursuant to the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority presently has $65,000,000
outstanding debt under the Revolving Credit Agreement and the Bank Note; and

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority proposes to borrow up to an
additional $60,000,000 principal amount under the Revolver and the Bank Note by
effecting one or more draws (Draw(s)) under the Revolver to finance a portion of the

costs and estimated costs of, incidental to, or connected with, some or all of the

Page 2 of 6



San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

transportation improvements outlined in the 2022 Transportation Expenditure Plan
such as: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency'’s Light Rail Vehicles
procurement, Motor Coaches procurement, L-Taraval Transit Enhancements, various
signals and signs projects, and Van Ness Bus Rapid Transit; and BART's Next
Generation Fare Gates and Core Capacity Fleet of the Future vehicles including,
without limitation, engineering, inspection, legal, fiscal agents, financial consultant
and other fees, working capital and expenses of all proceedings for the Draw(s); and

WHEREAS, Draw(s) and the related limited tax bonds shall be in minimum
principal amounts or specified amounts in excess thereof, shall mature, shall be
payable and shall bear interest and shall be subject to a maximum interest rate and
otherwise have terms as set forth in the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Bank Note
and the Indenture, as such agreements may be modified as permitted by this
Resolution; and

WHEREAS, The total estimated cost of the portion of the Project to be
financed with the Draw(s) is approximately $60,000,000; and

WHEREAS, In accordance with California Government Code, Section 5852.1,
the Board of Commissioners of the Transportation Authority (the Board) has obtained
and disclosed the good faith estimates required thereby, as more fully set forth in the
Staff Recommendation (as defined below) and such good faith estimates have been
made available to the public at the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted; and

WHEREAS, The Board desires to authorize (i) the Draw(s) and (ii) the execution
and delivery of all agreements, instruments, certificates and other documents
necessary or desirable in connection with the Draw(s), including, if and to the extent
applicable, one or more requests for advance; one or more supplemental tax
certificates; any amendments or modifications to or restatements of the Revolving
Credit Agreement, the Indenture and the Bank Note; and other documents related
thereto as deemed appropriate by an Authorized Representative (defined below)

(collectively, the Draw Documents); and

Page 3 of 6

163



164

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

WHEREAS, A staff recommendation has been prepared with respect to the
Draw(s) and has been presented to the Community Advisory Committee (the Staff
Recommendation); and

WHEREAS, At its September 24, 2025, meeting, the Community Advisory
Committee was briefed on the subject request and unanimously adopted a motion of
support for the staff recommendation; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, That the Board hereby finds and declares that the statements,
findings and determinations set forth above are true and correct; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Board hereby authorizes the Draw(s). The Executive
Director of the Transportation Authority and the Chief Deputy Director of the
Transportation Authority, including any such officer serving or acting in an interim
capacity, and any authorized designee of either such officer (each, an Authorized
Representative) are, and each of them acting alone is, hereby authorized, for and in
the name of and on behalf of the Transportation Authority, to determine the timing
and amount of the Draw(s), up to a total aggregate principal amount of $60,000,000,
and to execute by manual or facsimile signature and deliver the Draw Documents in
the form approved by the Authorized Representative executing the same as being in
the best interests of the Transportation Authority, such approval to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the other officers, Board members, employees and agents
are, and each of them acting alone is, hereby authorized, for and in the name of and
on behalf of the Transportation Authority, to execute by manual or facsimile signature
and deliver the Draw Documents in the form approved by an Authorized
Representative to the extent necessary or desirable, including to comply with the
terms of the Indenture, the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Bank Note or applicable
law; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Authorized Representatives are, and each of them acting

alone is, hereby authorized, for and in the name of and on behalf of the

Page 4 of 6



165

San Francisco
County Transportation
Authority

BD100725 RESOLUTION NO. 26-XX

Transportation Authority, to negotiate the terms of the Draw Documents so long as
the aggregate amount of the Draw(s) does not exceed the amount set forth herein;
and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Authorized Representatives, and all other officers,
employees and agents of the Transportation Authority are, and each of them acting
alone is, hereby authorized to take any and all actions and execute and deliver such
documents, agreements, certificates and other instruments as an Authorized
Representative deems necessary or advisable to carry out the purposes of this
Resolution and the Ordinance and to consummate the Draw(s), and all actions
heretofore taken by all officers, employees and agents of the Transportation
Authority with respect to the Draw(s), are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified,;
and be it further

RESOLVED, That in addition to the actions described elsewhere in this
Resolution, the Authorized Representatives are, and each of them acting alone is,
hereby continually authorized, from time to time, for and in the name of, and on
behalf of the Transportation Authority, to amend and modify any and all Draw
Documents and take any other actions, in each case that the Authorized
Representative entering into such amendment or modification or taking such action
determines is necessary or advisable with respect to the Draw Documents; and be it
further

RESOLVED, That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its

adoption and approval.

Page 5 of 6



	Agenda
	ITEM 2
	ITEM 3
	ITEM 4
	Attachment 1 – CAC Roster
	Attachment 2 – CAC Applications
	Attachment 3 – Resolution

	ITEM 5
	ITEM 6
	Attachment 1 – Proposed SGA Amendment for Mission Bay School Access Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital] (Amendment)
	Attachment 2 – Allocation Request Form
	Mission Bay School Access Plan [NTIP Planning and Capital] (Amendment)

	Attachment 3 – Resolution

	ITEM 7
	Attachment 1 – Summary of Requests
	Attachment 2 – Project Descriptions
	Attachment 3 – Staff Recommendations
	Attachment 4 – Prop L and Prop AA Allocations Summary – FY25/26
	Attachment 5 – Allocation Request Forms (4)
	Traffic Signal Hardware Replacement Program FY26
	Traffic Signal Upgrade Contract 35
	West Broadway Tunnel Safety [NTP]
	Japantown Buchanan Mall Improvements

	Attachment 6 – Resolution

	ITEM 8
	Attachment 1 – Proposed Amended OBAG Cycle 2 List
	Attachment 2 – Proposed Prop K Standard Grant Agreement (120-902064) Amendment
	Attachment 3 – Allocation Request Form
	Embarcadero Station: New Northside Platform Elevator (Amendment)

	Attachment 4 – Resolution

	ITEM 9
	Attachment 1 – Current Remaining RTIP Commitments
	Attachment 2 – 2026 RTIP New Funds Available for San Francisco
	Attachment 3 – 2026 Proposed Program of Projects
	Attachment 4 – Proposed Remaining RTIP Commitments
	Attachment 5 – Project Programming Request Form – SFCTA PPM (1)
	Attachment 6 – Resolution

	ITEM 10
	Attachment 1 – Revolver Loan Cash Drivers Table
	Attachment 2 – Resolution





